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LIFE Life Bridges, Inc.
T KNS P.0. Box 29 * 764 Old Chattanooga Pike SW

BR' DGES Cleveland, TN 37364-0029 * (423) 472-5268 * Fax (423) 479-1492
Serving People with

Intellectual
Disabilities since
1973

May 4, 2016

Health Services and Development Agency
500 Deaderick Street

Suite 850

Nashville, TN 37243

To Whom it May Concern,
Life Bridges, Inc. is applying for a CON for the relocation of Cate House, an ICF/IID
home located at 2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland, Tennessee, to Lockhart House at 3745

Adkisson Drive, Cleveland, Tennessee.

The completed CON application is attached, including a check for the application fee of
$3000.00.

If you have any questions, please call me at your convenience. My cell is 423-421-5993.

Thanks for all you do,

A AR A

K. Allen Nope, LPC\MHSP

Director of Quality Assurance\Day Services
Life Bridges, Inc.

CARF Accredited Rehabilitation Center Since 1994
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1. Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution
Life Bridges, Inc
Name
764 Old Chattancoga Pike Bradley
Street or Route County
Cleveland TN 37311
City State Zip Code
2 Contact Person Available for Responses to Questions
Diana Jackson CEO
Name Title
Life Bridges, Inc. dljackson59@hotmail.com
Company Name Email address
764 Old Chattanooga pike Cleveland TN 37311
Street or Route City State Zip Code
CEO 423-421-6436 423-479-1492
Association with Owner Phone Number Fax Number
3. Owner of the Facility, Agency or Institution
Life Bridges, Inc. 423-472-5268
Name Phone Number
764 Old Chattanooga Pike Bradley
Street or Route County
Cleveland TN 37311
City State Zip Code
4. Type of Ownership of Control (Check One)
A. Sole Proprietorship F. Government (State of TN or
B. Partnership ——_ 4 Political Subdivision)
C. Limited Partnership i Joint Venture —_—
D. Corporation (For Profit) = | Limited Liability Company
E. Corporation (Not-for-Profit) X " Other (Specify) SIS

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND
REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.




Page 2

5. Name of Management/Operating Entity {If Applicable)
Not Applicable
Name
Not Applicable Not Applicable
Street or Route County
Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
City State Zip Code
PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE END OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND
REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.
6. Legal Interest in the Site of the Institution (Check One)
A. Ownership X D. Option to Lease
B. Option to Purchase E. Other (Specify)
C. Lease of Years
PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND
REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.
7. Type of Institution (Check as appropriate--more than one response may apply)
A. Hospital (Specify) . Nursing Home
B. Ambulatory Surgical Treatment J. Outpatient Diagnostic Center
Center (ASTC), Multi-Specialty K. Recuperation Center .
C. ASTC, Single Specialty L. Rehabilitation Facility
D. Home Health Agency M. Residential Hospice
E. Hospice N. Non-Residential Methadone
F. Mental Health Hospital Facility g
G. Mental Health Residential 0. Birthing Center -
Treatment Facility P. Other Outpatient Facility
H. Mental Retardation Institutional (Specify) :
Habilitation Facility (ICF/MR) X Q. Other (Specify)
8. Purpose of Review (Check) as appropriate--more than one response may apply)

A. New Institution G. Change in Bed Complement
B. Replacement/Existing Facility [Please note the type of change
C. Modification/Existing Facility by underlining the appropriate
D. Initiation of Health Care response: Increase, l?ecrease,
Service as defined in TCA § Designation, Distribution,
68-11-1607(4) Conversion, Relocation]
(Specify) H. Change of Location X
Discontinuance of OB Services __ l.  Other (Specify) —

F.  Acquisition of Equipment
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Bed Complement Data
Please indicate current and proposed distribution and certification of facility beds.
TOTAL

Beds at
Completion

Staffed
Beds

Beds
Proposed

Current Beds
Licensed *CON

Medical

Surgical

Long-Term Care Hospital

Obstetrical

ICU/CCU

Neonatal

Pediatric

Adult Psychiatric

Geriatric Psychiatric
Child/Adolescent Psychiatric
Rehabilitation

Nursing Facility (non-Medicaid Certified)
Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)
Nursing Facility Level 2 (Medicare only)

Nursing Facility Level 2
(dually certified Medicaid/Medicare)

ICF/MR 6 o 6 0 p
Adult Chemical Dependency

Child and Adolescent Chemical
Dependency

SRRRRARRNAN

OZErxe-—IOMmMOO®>»

o

X

»

Swing Beds
Mental Health Residential Treatment
U. Residential Hospice

TOTAL
*CON-Beds approved but not yet in service

-

T

10.

Medicare Provider Number

3722363

Certification Type

Group Practice

1.

Medicaid Provider Number

3722363

Certification Type Group Practice

12.

If this is a new facility, will certification be sought for Medicare and/or Medicaid?

13.

Identify all TennCare Managed Care Organizations/Behavioral Health Organizations
(MCOs/BHOs) operating in the proposed service area. Will this project involve the
treatment of TennCare participants?_YES  {f the response to this item is yes, please
identify all MCOs/BHOs with which the applicant has contracted or plans to contract.
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SECTION B: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

1. Provide a brief executive summary of the project not to exceed two pages. Topics te be
included in the executive summary are 2 brief description of proposed services and
equipment, ownership structure, service area, need, existing resources, project cost,
funding, financial feasibility and staffing.

Brief Executive Summary of Project

Description of Proposed Services — Cate House is a four bedroom house (2400 square feet)
which opened as a children’s home. The house became home to-six boys. Twenty-one years
later, the house continues to be home to six individuals, five of whom entered as children;
however. the individuals are now adult men, some of whom are over six feet tall with behavioral
issues. Cate House is currently an institutional habilitation facility. The men desire to live
together, however, they need more space than the current building can provide. At the same time,
the agency manages Lockhart House, a ten bedroom group home (5,335 square feet), through
which Life Bridges has provided residential habilitation services for many years. The provision
of services through large group homes such as Lockhart House is being fazed out which leaves
the agency with a ten bedroom home to be re-purposed.

Lockhart House currently provides residential services for seven individuals. They are exploring
opportunities in supported living and family based services through Life Bridges, Inc. Itis
estimated that they will make their decision of a new residence and relocate by the fall of 2016.

Lockhart House would be perfect to meet the needs of the six men served at Cate House.
Therefore, the proposal is to re-purpose Lockhart House as an ICF/IID home providing
institutional habilitation services to the six men currently served at Cate House.

Cate house will then be re-purposed into a setting to provide some type of services within the
HCBS waiver.

Equipment — All specialized equipment will be transferred with the individuals served into the
new location. There will be no appreciable equipment cost with this relocation. The residents
will continue to receive complete support services, equipment, and appropriate transportation
vehicles (e.g. wheelchair vans) as detailed in the comprehensive care plans developed by
Qualified Intellectual Disability Professionals. All of their life care needs will continue to be met
by an experienced team of practitioners and care givers. They will have immediate access to
health care services through the Life Bridges Medical Services Department. Life Bridges has a
long established, positive relationship with Tennova Medical Center, Bradley County’s premier
regional hospital. There will be no decrease in service or equipment with this relocation project.

Ownership Structure — Lockhart House is owned by Bradley Cleveland Property Management
which is managed by Life Bridges, Inc. Bradley Cleveland Property Management will supervise
the renovation of the home to meet licensure requirements, JCF/IID requirements, and the needs
of the individuals to be served in the home. Life Bridges, Inc. is applying for the Certificate of
Need and will manage the property. The cost of the project will be in the renovation process and
the move from one location to the other. The value of the home is included in the project cost
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though it is already owned by Life Bridges, Inc. This move will not affect the per diem rates for
the individuals served at Cate House.

Service Area — The intended service area of this home will be Bradley County and the
surrounding counties in Tennessee, specifically Hamilton, McMinn, Meigs, Monroe, Polk, and
Rhea.,

Need — The six men who live at Cate House need the privacy provided by having their own
bedroom. Their behavioral needs would be more effectively met in a home with space to retreat
to when they feel anxious and/or agitated. Lockhart House will provide both communal living
spaces and the privacy of a bedroom for those moments. Behavioral issues often stem from
having to wait on the restroom as six men currently share two restrooms. Lockhart House has
four restrooms. The nurses have limited space for medications and preparation at Cate House.
Lockhart House provides ample space for medication storage, preparation, and administration.
Lockhart House is located in a neighborhood on the edge of a Cleveland State Community
College. The college campus is beautiful with abounding sidewalks that would be appropriate for
enjoyable walking paths. The close proximity of the campus provides increased access to
concerts and sporting events.

Existing Resources — Bradley Cleveland Property Management already owns Lockhart House
thus limiting the cost of the move to renovation and moving expenses.

Project Cost - $585,000.00
Funding — Life Bridges will fund the project from the cash operating account.
Financial Feasibility — The financial feasibility of this project is excellent.

Staffing — The staffing needs of the individuals who wish to relocate to Lockhart House are
determined by the Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) and are outlined in both CMS guidelines and the
comprehensive care plan developed by the Qualified Intellectual Disability Professionals. The
relocation is not anticipated to change the staffing needs of the home. Thus there would be no
additional staffing expense. Staffing will continue to meet CMS, CARF, and licensure
expectations.
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IL. Provide a detailed narrative of the project by addressing the following items as they
relate to the proposal.

A. Describe the construction, modification and/or renovation of the facility (exclusive of
major medical equipment covered by T.C.A. §68-11-1601 ET SEQ.) Including square
footage, major operational areas, room configuration, etc. applicants with hospital projects
(construction cost in excess of $5 million) and other facility projects (construction cost in
excess of $2 million) should complete the Square Footage and Cost per Square Footage
Chart. Utilizing the attached Chart, applicants with hospital projects should complete
Parts A.-E. by identifying as applicable nursing units, ancillary areas, and support areas
affected by this project. Provide the location of the unit/service within the existing facility
along with current square footage, where, if any, the unit/service will relocate temporarily
during construction and renovation, and then the location of the unit/service with proposed
square footage. The total cost per square foot would provide a breakout between new
construction and renovation cost per square foot. Other facility projects need only
complete parts B.-E. Please also discuss and justify the cost per square foot for this project.

If the project involves none of the above, describe the development of the proposal.

This project is intended to relocate six individuals served in an ICF/IID home (2,400 square feet)
to a larger location (5,335 square feet) which will be better suited to their needs. Renovation of
the new home (Lockhart House) will involve installing a fire sprinkler system throughout the
facility meeting all State and local fire codes (estimated cost $72,113.00). The existing fire panel
will be upgraded to accommodate existing smoke detectors (estimated cost $1,000.00), any
supervisory alarms related to the sprinkler system and notification of local fire authorities.
Electrical upgrades (estimated cost $900.00) will be completed as necessary to accommodate the
new fire systems and to the riser room for heat to protect from freezing. Earth disturbed for
trenching the riser area will be reshaped and seeded. Miscellaneous costs are estimated at 10% or
$7,401.00. This leaves a total renovation cost of $81,414.00 which is $15.26 per square foot. The
total project is valued at $585,000 which includes the value of the home.
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B. Identify the number and type of beds increased, decreased, converted, relocated,
designated, and/or redistributed by this application. Describe the reasons for change in bed
allocations and describe the impact the bed change will have on the existing services.

This project will relocate six ICF/IID beds from a four bedroom home into a ten bedroom home.
The number of ICF/IID beds allocated to Life Bridges, Inc. will remain unchanged. The change
in location will impact the privacy and enhance the living environment for the six individuals.
They will each have their own bedroom. This will be a positive change for four of the six
individuals. They will have their own bedroom to decorate and enjoy. They will also have
increased living space which is anticipated to reduce stress in times of increased
anxiety/agitation. Increased home living space will also provide increased opportunities for
building independence through active treatment. Thus the relocation will enhance the existing
services on many levels.

See Attachment: B. 11. A. Square Footage and Cost per Square Footage Chart, Page 45
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C. As the applicant, describe your need to provide the following health care services (if
applicable to this application):

#11 — ICF/IID Services: The six individuats wishing to relocate to Lockhart House currently live
together at Cate House and receive ICF/IID services and are appropriate to continue those
services, While learning many skills to increase their independence in daily living, they face
health and behavioral barriers requiring the vigilance and support of trained care givers.
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D. Describe the need to change location or replace an existing facility.

Six adult men share a relatively small (2400 square foot) four bedroom home at Cate House. A
larger home would greatly enhance their medical, social/emotional, and behavioral needs.
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E. Describe the acquisition of any item of major medical equipment (as defined by the
Agency Rules and the Statute) which exceeds a cost of $2.0 million; and/or is 2 magnetic
resonance imaging (MRI) scanner, positron emission tomography (PET) scanner,
extracorporeal lithotripter and/or linear accelerator by responding to the following:

1. For fixed-site major medical equipment (not replacing existing equipment):
a. Describe the new equipment, including:
i. Total cost; (As defined by Agency Rule).
jii. Expected useful life;
ili. List of clinical applications to be provided; and
iv. Documentation of FDA approval.
b. Provide current and proposed schedules of operations.

2. For mobile major medical equipment:

a. List all sites that will be served;

b. Provide current and/or proposed schedule of operations;
¢. Provide the lese or contract cost.

d. Provide the fair market value of the equipment; and

e. List the owner for the equipment.

3. Indicate applicant’s legal interest in equipment (i.e., purchase, lease, etc.) in the
case of equipment purchase include a quote and/or proposal from an equipment
vendor, or in the case of an equipment lease provide a draft lease or contract
that at least includes the term of the lease and the anticipated lease payments.

No major medical equipment will be purchased as part of this project.
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IIL. (A) Attach a copy of the plot plan of the site on an 8 1/2” x 11” sheet of white paper
which must

include:

1. Size of site (in acres);

2. Location of structure on the site; and

3. Location of the proposed construction.

4. Names of streets, roads or highway that cross or border the site.

Please note that the drawings do not need to be drawn to scale. Plot plans are

required for all projects.

See Attachment: B. I11. A. Plot Plan, Page 46



Page 12

(B) 1. Describe the relationship of the site to public transportation routes, if any, and to any
highway or major road developments in the area. Describe the accessibility of the proposed
site to patients/clients.

CUAT is the public transportation in Bradley County. The route travels by Lockhart House. The
routes are attached. The home is located 0.7 miles from the nearest exit on I-75. It is 0.2 miles
from Paul Huff Parkway. Paul Huff Parkway is a five lane street which has a multitude of
restaurants and shopping centers which include Target, Wal-Mart, and the Bradley Square Mall.
While CUAT is an option at any time, Life Bridges provides transportation for the individuals as
part of their ICF/IID services.

See Attachment: B. IIL. B. CUAT Public Transportation Routes, Page 47
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IV. Attach a floor plan drawing for the facility which includes legible labeling of patient
care rooms (noting private or semi-private), ancillary areas, equipment areas, etc. on an 8
1/2” x 11” sheet of white paper.

NOTE: DO NOT SUBMIT BLUEPRINTS. Simple line drawings should be submitted and
need not be drawn to scale.

V. For a Home Health Agency or Hospice, identify:

1. Existing service area by County;

2. Proposed service area by County;

3. A parent or primary service provider;

4. Existing branches; and

5. Proposed branches.

See Attachment: B.IV. Floor Plan, Page 48
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SECTION C: GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED In accordance with
Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(b), “no Certificate of Need shall be granted unless
the action proposed in the application for such Certificate is necessary to provide needed
health care in the area to be served, can be economically accomplished and maintained,
and will contribute to the orderly development of health care.” The three (3) criteria are
further defined in Agency Rule 0720-4-.01. Further standards for guidance are provided in
the state health plan (Guidelines for Growth), developed pursuant to Tennessee Code
Annotated §68-11-1625. The following questions are listed according to the three (3)
criteria: (I) Need, (II) Economic Feasibility, and (III) Contribution to the Orderly
Development of Health Care. Please respond to each guestion and provide underlying
assumptions, data sources, and methodologies when appropriate. Please type each question
and its response on an 8 1/2” x 11” white paper. All exhibits and tables must be attached to
the end of the application in correct sequence identifying the question(s) to which they
refer. If a question does not apply to your project, indicate “Not Applicable (NA).”

QUESTIONS

NEED
1. Describe the relationship of this proposal toward the implementation of the State Health
Plan and Tennessee’s Health: Guidelines for Growth.

The State Plan component specifically designates the need criteria for ICF/IID facilities as .032
percent of the general population as candidates for this service. The area that this facility is
located in has a population of 575,773 according to the 2010 U.S. Census. The demographic
need would be for 1,842 individuals. Based on the Tennessee Department of Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities web site Quality Management grid, there are 168 ICF/IID beds in
this six county area. The six individuals affected by this project were in ICF/IID beds prior to,
during, and after the 2010 U.S. Census.

This project is a relocation of individuals within the same agency, city, and county. There will be
no change in the number of ICF/IID beds in the agency, city, or county. This move will provide
growth opportunities for the individuals served. It will enhance their emotional health and well-
being. It will not otherwise impact the implementation of the State Health Plan and Guidelines
for Growth.

a. Please provide a response to each criterion and standard in Certificate of Need
Categories that are applicable to the proposed project. Do not provide responses to General
Criteria and Standards (pages 6-9) here.

Not applicable.

b. Applications that include a Change of Site for a health care institution, provide a
response to General Criterion and Standards (4)(a-c)

Not applicable
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2. Describe the relationship of this project to the applicant facility’s long-range
development plans, if any.

Lockhart House is currently a residential habilitation facility funded through the HCBS waiver.
Referrals for these homes have been stopped. This property must be re-purposed or sold due to
changes in the HCBS new settings rule. The proposal will parlay this change into a benefit for
our current ICF/IID home. Cate House, an institutional habilitation facility, will then be available
to use for a four person home in the HCBS waiver.
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3. Identify the proposed service area and justify the reasonableness of that proposed area.
Submit a county level map including the State of Tennessee clearly marked to reflect the
service area. Please submit the map on 8 1/2” x 11” sheet of white paper marked only with
ink detectable by a standard photocopier (i.e., no highlighters, pencils, etc.).

The service area includes Bradley, Hamilton, McMinn, Meigs, Monroe, Polk, and Rhea
Counties. Cate House (current ICF/IID home) and Lockhart House (proposed ICF/IID home) are
both located in Bradley County. There are currently only four ICF/1ID homes in Bradley County.
The proposed change will not affect the number of ICF/IID homes in the county. It is realistic to
anticipate that future residents could come from the surrounding counties.

See Attachment: C. Need. 3. State Map Showing Service Area, Page 49
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4. A. Describe the demographics of the population to be served by this proposal.

Six gentlemen are served by this pro posal. They each receive ICF/IID services through Life
Bridges. Four of the gentlemen are Caucasian: two are African American. They range in age
from 24 to 63. Three of the men have lived together at Cate House for 21 years; two of the others
joined them in 2000 making 16 years that five of the six have lived together. The sixth
gentleman moved into the home five years ago. There have been no occupancy changes in this
group for five years. The proposal is to maintain this group intact, Three of the gentlemen have a
moderate intellectual disability, one has a severe intellectual disability, and two have a profound
intellectual disability. Four are on the autism spectram. Four have either or both impulse control
and attention deficit/hyperactivity disorders. Two have obsessive-compulsive disorders. They
each have a number of medical diagnoses.

B. Describe the special needs of the service area population, including health disparities,
the accessibility to consumers, particularly the elderly, women, racial and ethnic
minorities, and low-income groups. Document how the business plans of the facility will
take into consideration the special needs of the service area population.

All of the individuals served by the proposal are current ICF/IID recipients. They continue to
meet the criteria to received ICF/IID funding. All will require extraordinary supports to be able
to manage daily living activities and community access.
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5. Describe the existing or certified services, including approved but unimplemented CONs,
of similar institutions in the service area. Include utilization and/or occupancy trends for
each of the most recent three years of data available for this type of project. Be certain to
list each institution and its utilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient bed projects
must include the following data: admissions or discharges, patient days, and occupancy.
Other projects should use the most appropriate measures, e.g., cases, procedures, vigits,
admissions, etc.

The utilization rate at Cate House for the past three years has been 100%. The last occupancy
change occurred five years ago. The population of the home is stable with three of the men
having lived there 21 years with two more joining those 16 years ago. The final individual joined
the group five years ago.
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6. Provide applicable utilization and/or occupancy statistics for your institution for each of
the past three (3) years and the projected annual utilization for each of the two (2) years
following completion of the project. Additionally, provide the details regarding the
methodology used to project utilization. The methodology must include detailed
calculations or documentation from referral sources, and identification of all assumptions.

The utilization rate at Cate House for the past three years has been 100%. The last occupancy
change occurred five years ago. The population of the home is stable with three of the men
having lived there 21 years with two more joining them 16 years ago. The final individual joined
the group five years ago. The occupancy rate is expected to remain at 100% as there are no
indicators of individuals wanting to leave the program or nearing death. ICF/IID referrals will no
longer come from the developmental centers as they have all closed. According to
httg:f!medicaidwaiver.org[statg- tennessee.himl. there are over 7,000 individuals on the

Medicaid Waiver waiting list. Those who are appropriate for ICF/IID services would be
available for referral should a future vacancy occur.

See Attachment: C. Need. 6. Page 50
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ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

1. Provide the cost of the project by completing the Project Costs Chart on the following
page.

Justify the cost of the project.

DOAl projects should have a project cost of at least $3,000 on Line F. (Minimum CON
Filing Fee). CON filing fee should be calculated from Line D. (See Application
Instructions for Filing Fee)

14

O OThe cost of any lease (building, land, and/or equipment) should be based on fair
market value or the total amount of the lease payments over the initial term of the
lease, whichever is greater. Note: This applies to all equipment leases including

by procedure or “per click” arrangements. The methodology used to determine the
total lease cost for a "per click" arrangement must include, at a minimum, the
projected procedures, the "'per click" rate and the term of the lease.

[ 0The cost for fixed and moveable equipment includes, but is not necessarily limited
to, maintenance agreements covering the expected useful life of the equipment;
federal, state, and local taxes and other government assessments; and installation
charges, excluding capital expenditures for physical plant renovation or in-wall
shielding, which should be included under construction costs or incorporated in a
facility lease.

OOFor projects that include new construction, modification, and/or renovation;
documentation must be provided from a contractor and/or architect that support

the estimated construction costs.

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 1. Project Costs Chart, Page 51
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2. Identify the funding sources for this project.

Please check the applicable item(s) below and briefly summarize how the project will be
financed. (Documentation for the type of funding MUST be inserted at the end of the
application, in the correct alpha/n umeric order and identified as Attachment C,

Economic Feasibility-2.)

__A. Commercial loan--Letter from lending institution or guarantor stating favorable
initial

contact, proposed loan amount, expected interest rates, anticipated term of the loan,
and any restrictions or conditions;

__B. Tax-exempt bonds—-Copy of preliminary resolution or a letter from the issuing
authority

stating favorable initial contact and a conditional agreement from an underwriter or
investment banker to proceed with the issuance;

__C. General obligation bonds—Copy of resolution from issuing authority or minutes
from

the appropriate meeting.

__D. Grants--Notification of intent form for grant application or notice of grant award; or
_X_E. Cash Reserves--Appropriate documentation from Chief Financial Officer.
__F. Other—Identify and document funding from all other sources.

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 2.a. Page 52
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3. Discuss and document the reasonableness of the proposed project costs, If applicable,
compare the cost per square foot of construction to similar projects recently approved by
the Health Services and Development Agency.

The proposed cost of this project is $84,000. The majority of the cost being an upgrade to the
existing fire suppression system and moving cost. The property and building are currently owned
by Life Bridges eliminating the cost of purchasing property and new construction. A project
comparable in cost in which property and building are not currently owned would increase the
expense by $500,000.

There are no recent similar projects to compare with this project.
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4. Complete Historical and Projected Data Charts on the following two pages--Do not
modify the Charts provided or submit Chart substitutions! Historical Data Chart represents
revenue and expense information for the last three (3) years for which complete data is
available for the institution. Projected Data Chart requests information for the two (2)
years following the completion of this proposal, Projected Data Chart should reflect
revenue and expense projections for the Proposal Only (i.e., if the application is for
additional beds,

include anticipated revenue from the propesed beds only, not from all beds in the facility).

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 4a. Historical Data Chart, Page 53

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 4b. Projected Data Chart, Page 54
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5. Please identify the project’s average gross charge, average deduction from operating
revenue, and average net charge.

See Projected Data Chart for gross and net operating revenue. This project will not effect the Per

Diem rate. There will be no ongoing deduction from operating revenue. Therefore, there will be
no average net charge.

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 4b. Projected Data Chart, Page 54
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6. A. Please provide the current and proposed charge schedules for the proposal. Discuss
any adjustment to current charges that will result from the implementation of the proposal.
Additionally, describe the anticipated revenue from the proposed project and the impact
on existing patient charges.

The current per diem rate for Cate house (6 person bed) is $585.77 per client. The
implementation of our proposal will have little to no impact on the current per diem rate. We
will not be adding additional ICF clients. We are relocating our current clients in this home.

B. Compare the proposed charges to those of similar facilities in the service area/adjoining
service areas, or to proposed charges of projects recently approved by the Health Services
and Development Agency. If applicable, compare the proposed charges of the project to
the current Medicare allowable fee schedule by common procedure terminology (CPT)
code(s).

-Life Bridges has 4 ICF homes. The other 3 homes per diem rates are as follows:
Wright (6 person bed) $651.21
Mclntire (4 person bed) $819.34

Edgemon (4 person bed) $825.25
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7. Discuss how projected utilization rates will be sufficient to maintain cost-effectiveness.

Life Bridges will continue to run these homes efficiently, providing quality care while
maintaining cost-effectiveness. The relocation of the clients will not lead to higher costs.
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8. Discuss how financial viability will be ensured within two years; and demonstrate the
availability of sufficient cash flow until financial viability is achieved.

Life Bridges will fund this project with cash reserves. We will continue to maintain financial
viability; this project will not cause a negative financial impact.
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9. Discuss the project’s participation in state and federal revenue programs including a
description of the extent to which Medicare, TennCare/Medicaid, and medically indigent
patients will be served by the project. In addition, report the estimated dollar amount of
revenue and percentage of total project revenue anticipated from each TennCare,
Medicare, or other state and federal sources for the proposal’s first year of operation.

This program is currently 100% funded by TennCare and will continue to be after the relocation.
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10. Provide copies of the balance sheet and income statement from the most recent
reporting period of the institution and the most recent audited financial statements with
accompanying notes, if applicable. For new projects, provide financial information for the
corporation, partnership, or principal parties involved with the project. Copies must be
inserted at the end of the application, in the correct alpha-numeric order and labeled as
Attachment C, Economic Feasibility-10.

See Attachment; C. Economic Feasibility. 10. Monthly Income Statement, Page S5
See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 10. YTD Unaudited Income Statement, Page 56

See Attachment: C. Economic Feasibility. 10. Independent Audit, Page 57
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11. Describe all alternatives to this project which were considered and discuss the
advantages and disadvantages of each alternative including but not limited to:

a. A discussion regarding the availability of less costly, more effective, and/or more efficient
alternative methods of providing the benefits intended by the proposal. If development

of such alternatives is not practicable, the applicant should justify why not; including
reasons as to why they were rejected.

b. The applicant should document that consideration has been given to alternatives to new
construction, e.g., modernization or sharing arrangements. It should be documented
that superior alternatives have been implemented to the maximum extent practicable.

The purchase and/or lease of a larger existing home for the six gentlemen in question was
considered, however, this would be much more costly than re-purposing a facility that is already
owned by the agency. By the same token, buying land and building a new home was considered.
Again, the cost would be astronomically higher than re-purposing the building currently owned
by the agency. The eurrent proposal is by far the most cost effective solution to the issue of
needing more space for the individuals served by the proposal.
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE

1. List all existing health care providers (e.g., hospitals, nursing homes, home care
organizations, etc.), managed care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with which the
applicant currently has or plans to have contractual and/or working relationships, e.g.,
transfer agreements, contractual agreements for health services.

Life Bridges healthcare group is on the provider list for each of the following:

Medicare

Medicaid

Humana

Blue Care

TN Care

Americhoice

TN Behavioral Health

TN Care Select

Health Spring

Blue Cross Blue Shield

United Health Care

Wellcare

CIGNA

Cariten

National Association of Letter Carriers
AETNA

United Healthcare Community Plan
Humana Gold

Magellan/TN Health

Health Scope

At present time Life Bridges, Inc. has no Out-of-Network relationships.
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2. Describe the positive and/or negative effects of the proposal on the health care system.
Please be sure to discuss any instances of duplication or competition arising from your
proposal including a description of the effect the proposal will have on the utilization rates
of existing providers in the service area of the project.

Access to health care will not change as a result of the proposal. The individuals served by the
proposal will continue their current use of healthcare resources. Each individual receives nursing
services 24/7 in their home. The proposal will assist mightily in the delivery of this service as the
nurses currently function from a small med closet. The new location will have more space for
medication storage, preparation, and administration.
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3. Provide the current and/or anticipated staffing pattern for all employees providing
patient care for the project. This can be reported using FTEs for these positions.
Additionally, please compare the clinical staff salaries in the proposal to prevailing wage
patterns in the service area as published by the Tennessee Department of Labor &
Workforee Development and/or other documented sources.

The current staffing pattern will be continued following the proposed relocation. First shift
(8:00am — 4:00pm) is staffed with six direct support staff, a shift leader (covers two homes), and
nurse(s). Second shift (4:00pm — 12:00am) has five direct support staff, shift leader (covers two
homes), and nurse(s). Third shift (12:00am — 8:00am) has three direct support staff, shift leader
(covers two homes), and nurse. Supervisory and administrative staff are assigned to multiple
houses across shifts. Nurses serve two homes per shift. There is a second nurse for the two
houses during peak medication administration times. Clinical salaries are commensurate with
like positions in surrounding health care organizations.
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4. Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human resources required by the proposal,
including adequate professional staff, as per the Department of Health, the Department of
Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities, and/or the Division of Mental Retardation
Services licensing requirements.

Life Bridges’ Human Resources Department has established systems and procedures to recruit
and train the necessary personnel for the existing homes and services. The proposal will not
change the needs for professional staff. These professionals are currently in place with ongoing
plans for the individuals effected by the proposal. The current plans and services will continue.
The proposal simply changes the venue where services provided in the home are located.
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5. Verify that the applicant has reviewed and understands all licensing certification as
required by the State of Tennessee for medical/clinical staff. These include, without
limitation, regulations concerning physician supervision, credentialing, admission
privileges, quality assurance policies and programs, utilization review policies and
programs, record keeping, and staff education.

Life Bridges is well versed in the proper credentialing of all medical and clinical staff and keeps

detailed status reports on license renewal for all effected staff, whether part time or full time.

See Attachment: Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care. S. Current
Licenses of Medical/Clinical Staff, Page S8
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6. Discuss your health care institution’s participation in the training of students in the
areas of medicine, nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships, residencies, etc.).

Life Bridges partners with local universities such as Lee University, Cleveland State University,
and Southern Adventist University to provide service learning and internship opportunities.
These are primarily in the areas of nursing, social work, and counseling.
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7. (a) Please verify, as applicable, that the applicant has reviewed and understands the
licensure requirements of the Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health
and Developmental Disabilities, the Department of Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities, and/or any applicable Medicare requirements,

Life Bridges is knowledgeable regarding all applicable licensure requirements. The agency is in
compliance with these requirements as noted through current licenses and surveys. Both the
requirements and levels of compliance are reviewed routinely through the agency’s quality
assurance functions.

(b) Provide the name of the entity from which the applicant has received or will receive
licensure, certification, and/or accreditation.

Licensure: Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities, Tennessee Department of
Health, Tennessee Department of Health and Substance Abuse, Tennessee Department of Mental
Health and Developmental Disabilities

Accreditation: Council of Accreditation Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF)
See Attachment: Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care. 7.b. CARF
Accreditation Report, Page 59

(c) If an existing institution, please describe the current standing with any licensing,
certifying, or accrediting agency. Provide a copy of the current license of the facility.

See Attachment: Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care. 7.c. Current
Facility Licenses, Page 60

(d) For existing licensed providers, document that all deficiencies (if any) cited in the last
licensure certification and inspection have been addressed through an approved plan of
correction. Please include a copy of the most recent licensure/certification inspection
with an approved plan of correction.

See Attachment: Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care. 7.d. Most
Recent Survey Reports, Page 61
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8. Document and explain any final orders or judgments entered in any state or country by
a licensing agency or court against professional licenses held by the applicant or any
entities or persons with more than a 5% ownership interest in the applicant. Such
information is to be provided for licenses regardless of whether such license is currently
held.

There have been no final orders or judgments entered in any state or country by a licensing
agency or court against Life Bridges, Inc.
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9, Identify and explain any final civil or criminal judgments for fraud or theft against any
person
or entity with more than a 5% ownership interest in the project

There have been no civil ot criminal judgments for fraud or theft against any person or entity
with more than a 5% ownership interest in the project.
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10. If the proposal is approved, please discuss whether the applicant will provide the
Tennessee Health Services and Deyvelopment Agency and/or the reviewing agency
information concerning the number of patients treated, the number and type of procedures
performed, and other data as required.

Life Bridges will provide any requested information to any authorized entity/authority.
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION
Attach the full page of the newspaper in which the notice of intent appeared with the mast and
dateline intact or submit a publication affidavit from the newspaper as proof of the publication of
the letter of intent.

See Attachment: Proof of Publication, Page 62
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DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Temmessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(c) provides that a Certificate of Need is valid for a
period not to exceed three (3) years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other projects)
from the date of its issuance and after such time shall expire; provided, that the Agency may, in
granting the Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for Certificates of Need for
good cause shown. Subsequent to granting the Certificate of Need, the Agency may extend a
Certificate of Need for a period upon application and good cause shown, accompanied by a non-
refundable reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by rule. A Certificate of Need which has been
extended shall expire at the end of the extended time period. The decision whether to grant such
an extension is within the sole discretion of the Agency, and is not subject to review,
reconsideration, or appeal.

1. Please complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart on the next page. If the project will be
completed in multiple phases, please identify the anticipated completion date for each phase.

See Attachment: PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART, Page 63
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2. Tf the response to the preceding question indicates that the applicant does not
anticipate completing the project within the period of validity as defined in the
preceding paragraph, please state below any request for an extended schedule and
document the “good cause” for such an extension.

Not applicable.
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STATE OF _[ennesse¢e

COUNTY OF [yvedlew

Dl‘a/na TJacksan

AFFIDAVIT

, being first duly sworn, says that he/she

is the applicant named in this application or his/her/its lawful agent, that this project will be

completed in accordance with the application, that the applicant has read the directions to

this application, the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency, and T.C.A. § 63-

11-1601, et seq., and that the responses to this application or any other questions deemed

appropriate by the Health Services and Development Agency are true and complete.

' ae0
SIGNATURE/TITLE

Sworn to and subscribed before me this Z(Q day of

&.\\

' 70\ a Notary

(Ntantt)

Public in and for the County/State of rexo.c&\eu / TQ,«\E‘\.

My commission expires m(",

Mn W\CQIW

’ NC@RY PUBLIC

2O\

{(Month/Day)

24

(Year)
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319,874

CARE & GROWTH)‘{OME i —GH3
Square Footages

/
Walkways — 93}£sq'
Patio — 384sq/
Driveway — 3887sq

Parking — 781sq’
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4/25/2016 Routes | Cleveland Transit

U777l Gt Gy Lot

Tovu 3
—0 MiOX

Timetable

The timetable shows estimated arrival times at different key locations along a route. To estimate what time the bus will
arrive at your location, add one minute for each quarter-mile distance to the nearest bus stop. For additional assistance
on route time schedules, please call CUATS at 423.478.1396.

Deviated Fixed-Route Service

If you cannot get to a designated bus stop, due to a handicap, the bus may be able to come to you. Deviated service is
offered within one-half mile of all regular routes. Here’s how it works: call CUATS 48 hours in advance to make
Deviated Fixed Route reservation. The bus will deviate off the regular route, pick you up (or drop you off), and return
immediately to the next scheduled stop. (Only two Deviated Fixed Routes are allowed per route, so be sure to place

hitp:/www.rideclevel andtransit.org/routes.htm! 23

¢



wszore U Routos | Cleveland Transit

your reservation for pick-up and drop-off.

Download the
Map and Schedule

/images TS brochure website.pd

Cleveland Urban Area Transit Agency | 165 Edwards Street | Cleveland, TN 37312
Tel: 423.478.1396 | © CUATS 2016 - All Rights Reserved - Powered by Studio 31A

http://www.ridecl evelandtransit.org/routes.html

33
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4/20/2016 P 50 Tennessee Medicaid Waiver

How many people are currently receiving services? There are currently 7,177 persons with
developmental disabilities receiving waiver services in Tennessee. There are also 3,385 persons aged and
disabled receiving waiver services.

What assistance is available while you wait? Some services may be available for urgent needs.
Is there priority preference for people who are in crisis? Yes.
What Services Are Offered & What Are The Service Limitations?

What services does the Medicaid waiver program offer in Tennessee?

‘The Statewide Waiver (0128.R04) serves Tennessee citizens with intellectual disabilities. The target
population consists of children with developmental delays and adults and children with intellectual
disability who meet ICF/IID level of care criteria. The following waiver services are available based on
assessed participant need: Adult Dental Services; Behavioral Respite Services; Behavior Services; Day
Services; Environmental Accessibility Modifications; Family Model Residential Support; Individual
Transportation Services; Intensive Behavior Residential Services; Medical Residential Services; Nursing
Services; Nutrition Services; Occupational Therapy Services; Orientation and Mobility Services for
Impaired Vision; Personal Assistance; Personal Emergency Response Systems; Physical Therapy
Services; Residential Habilitation; Respite; Specialized Medical Equipment & Supplies & Assistive
Technology; Speech, Language, & Hearing Services; Supported Living; Support Coordination; and
Transitional Case Management

The Arlington Waiver (#0357.R02) program serves Tennessee citizens with intellectual disabilities who
have service needs that can be satisfactorily met with a cost-effective array of home and community
services that complement other supports available to them in their homes and the community. These
individuals qualify for and absent the provision of waiver services, would be placed in an ICF/IID. The
target population for this waiver consists of persons with intellectual disabilities who meet ICF/IID level
of care criteria and are class members certified in United States vs. State of Tennessee, et al. (Arlington
Developmental Center). The Arlington Waiver includes the same services available in The Statewide
Waiver.

The Self-Determination Waiver (0427.R01) serves Tennessee citizens with intellectual disabilities who
have moderate service needs that can be met with a cost-effective array of home and community services
that complement other supports available to them in their homes and the community. The Self-
Determination Waiver Program affords participants the opportunity to lead the person-centered planning
process and directly manage selected services, including the recruitment and management of service
providers. Participants and families (as appropriate) electing self-determination are empowered and have
the responsibility for managing a self-determination budget affording flexibility in service design and
delivery. The following waiver services are available based on assessed participant need: Adult Dental
Services; Personal Assistance; Personal Emergency Response Systems; Physical Therapy Services;
Behavioral Respite Services; Behavior Services; Day Services; Respite; Environmental Accessibility
Modifications; Specialized Medical Equipment & Supplies & Assistive Technology; Individual
Transportation Services; Nutrition Services; Semi-Independent Living Services; Speech, Language, &
Hearing Services; Occupational Therapy Services; Nursing Services; and Orientation and Mobility
Services for Impaired Vision.

Does Tennessee offer community group homes? Yes, Tennessee offers Residential Habilitation
services. Residential Habilitation: A group home where a provider owns or leases the home. Staff help
teach skills for daily living. These are skills such as bathing, dressing, and making their bed.

Does Tennessee offer supported living? Supported living services are offered on the Arlington and
Statewide waiver. Supported Living is not offered on the Self Determination Waiver. Supported Living:
A home that is under the control and responsibility of the recipients living in the home. This home is
owned, rented or leased by those living in the home. Staff helps with things that necd to be done each day
such as bathing, dressing, paying bills. They can also help the recipient go to places like the bank or

http://medicaidwalver.org/state/tennessee.html 2/6
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Construction and equipment acquired by purchase:
1.
2.

Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:
1.

o x> N

Financing Costs and Fees:

—

2
3.
4

© o N oo AW

Architectural and Engineering Fees

PROJECT COSTS CHART

Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee),

Consultant Fees
Acquisition of Site
Preparation of Site
Construction Costs
Contingency Fund

Fixed Equipment (Notincluded in Construction Contract)

Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000)

Other (Specify)

Facility (inclusive of building and land)

Building only
Land only

Equipment (Specify)
Other (Specify)

g\ AV

Interim Financing
Underwriting Costs

Reserve for One Year's Debt Service

Other (Specify)

Estimated Project Cost
(A+B+C)

CON Filing Fee
Total Estimated Project Cost

(D+E)

16

TOTAL _

B\ AA
3‘000

24, AA
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gﬂiﬂg Folnplammlnmkechﬁ Llfe Brldges, Inc'
Disabili(ies since 1973 P.O. Box 29 * 764 Old Chattanooga Pike SW

Cleveland, TN 37364-0029 * (423) 472-5268 * Fax (423) 479-1492
April 11, 2016

State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, gt Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

RE: Economic Feasibility — Type of Funding

To whom it may concern:

Life Bridges, Inc. will be financing the project costs from our cash operating account to convert a group
home to an ICF home. The estimated project costs are approximately $84,000.

Sincerely,
MD% , &0

Ginger Davis
CFO
Life Bridges, Inc.

2
arf
L

0

CARF Accredited Rehabilitation Center Since 1994
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART

————————

Give information for the last three {3) years for which complete data are available for the facility or

agency. The fiscal year begins in Su\\{ (Month) -~ N
Year OV Year_'zg\é‘\ Year 20\S
A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure) Nrousonds v i
B. Revenue from Services to Patients
1. Inpatient Services $ $ )
2. Outpatient Services
3. Emergency Services
4. Other Operating Revenue __ '~ O \_ANA 206
(Specify)_ Dec Oveen
. Gross Operating Revenue $_\\O  $.1134 A\ Dk
C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments ®cd TIONX $ =%  $__G\ $ A
2. Provision for Charity Care
3. Provisions for Bad Debt - X
Total D?ductions $ S% $_ o\ $ A
NET OPERATING REVENUE $ipex  Saonm Al
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries and Wages / Benef = '. $_ns=s &S K94
2. Physician’s Salaries and Wages
3. Supplies 24 G Yo 237
4, Taxes _
5. Depreciation Yo o0y — 20
6. Rent
7. Interest, other than Capital ]
8. Other Expenses (Specify ool 34 3O Wio
T&ﬁiﬁ% L%\Mntal%peratwgmnsés $_ 04k $_Q%A $_\ O
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net (Specify) 3 $ ~ &
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ O $_864. 5§ 0SS
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ S $
2. Interest I V¢ =
Total Capital Expenditures $ $ b
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $_ 07 s_RO oD
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PROJECTED DATA CHART
Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year

begins in )\ Q}, (Month). w v
’ Year 2001 Year_ 2O\
A. Ulilization Data (Specify unit of measure) Moausacds, i

B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services _ $ $

Qutpatient Services ;

2

3. Emergency Services

4. Other Operating Revenue (Specify)m \22lo X, Yo
_Gross Operating Revenue $_\22(p $A\DRD

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments P.JLC&. o 3. 1l 9 ©%
2. Provision for Charity Care '
3. Provisions for Bad Debt .

Total Deductions $ [ $ Y-

NET OPERATING REVENUE B s_\\SA s \\GS
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries and Wages /[ %Q(\e_(-:\lvs. 5 RO I D\
2. Physician's Salaries and Wages —— .
3. Supplies 20 24
4. Taxes
5. Depreciation zZ% =0
6. Rent
7. Interest, other than Capital
8. Other Expenses (Speclfy) Noic)., (Con \v2O AZS
ﬁﬁé"é‘:‘;’ o ! otal Operating Expenses $ 1,074 s_l,o088
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) -- Net (Specify) $ $

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) s 1004 s \O%E

F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ $
2. Interest

Total Capital Expenditures § £ $ ©-

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $ KRS s\
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Life Bridges Inc
YTD Summary Unaudited income Statement
Fiscal Year: 2016 Period: 9

MARCH YiD
2016 FY2016

Income
Income from Waiver Funding $ 1,249,512 $ 8,310,553
ICF Edgemon & McIntire % 203,929 $ 1,781,748
ICF Cate & Wright $ 230,623 $1,992,772
TN Care/ Medical 45,519 4 55,650
Choices $ 1,600 $5,334
Medlcare / Medlcal $ 18,640 4 146,929
Private / Medical $ 3,008 $ 35,160
TN Care / Transpartation $ 3,108 $ 27,834
Rental Income $ 24,030 $ 220,110
Contract Income $ 2,088 $ 51,754
Miscellaneous Income $ 6,978 $ 30,446
Total Income $ 1,749,035 ¢ 12,658,291
Non Oparating Income
Grants 8 Donations % 6,474 $ 33,527
Interast Income £1,914 $ 3,497
Galn (Loss) on Sale of Assets $ 20,816 $ 27,200
Charitable Contributions $ 5,250 $ 18,490
Total Non Operating Income $ 34,455 % 82,714
Net Income § 1,783,480 $ 12,741,005
Expenses
Salarles / Wages ($ 911,933) ($ 7,475,391)
Fringe Beneflts ($ 218,378) ($ 1,892,599)
Cllent Wages ($9,520) (4 54,126)
Professlonal Services ($ 32,078) ($ 335,891)
Workers Comp ($ 23,350) (5 186,699)
Travel ($ 4,625) (% 34,395)
Communications ($ 8,859) (% 76,102)
Utilities ($ 10,458) ($ 110,399)
Memberships ($ 515) ($ 18,022)
Maintenance and Repair ($ 10,589) ($ 92,904)
Supplles {8 26,385) ($ 226,209)
Food (5 13,716) ($128,177)
Mortgage Interest (% 6,013) ($ 54,423)
Rent ($ 1,881) (% 15,830)
Insurance ($ 15,804) (4 135,218)
Transportation Expense (5 15,840) ($ 168,426)
Advertising ($337) (% 4,687)
ICF / MR Tax ($ 21,718) ($ 198,156)
Miscallaneous Expanse ($ 5,577) ($ 45,418)
Training (% 8,545) (% 44,020)
Stipens (% 32,551) ($ 286,904)
Rental Expense ($ 2,341) (5 20,084}
Total Expense ($ 1,381,006) ($ 11,604,078)
Non Operating Expense - (Depreciation)
Consumer Benevolence $ 701 § 4,693
Non Operating Expense / (Depteciation) (5 27,8685) (% 250,961)
Total Non Oparating Exepense - (Depreciation} ($ 27,184) ($ 246,068)
Net Expenses (% 1,408,190) (% 11,850,146)
Program Total $375,300 $690,860
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Life Bridges, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Life Bridges, Inc. and related
entity (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2015, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined financijal statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinjon

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Life Bridges, Inc. and related entity as of June 30, 2015, and the
changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The consolidated data on pages 12-13 is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the individual
companies. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state -awards, as required the
State of Tennessee, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statemnents or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 28,
2015, on our consideration of Life Bridges, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
‘financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is'an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Life Bridges, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance,

' Cleveland, Tennessee
September 28, 2015
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LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30,2015

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash in bank 3 4,918,490
Investments, at cost 8,794
Accounts receivable
State of TN - DIDD 919,884
State of TN - ICF/ID 386,151
Other 112,143
Prepaid Expenses 17,068
6,362,530
Funded Reserve
Debt service reserve 36,552

Fixed Assets

Property and equipment, net 3,919,171
Other Assets

Security deposits 6,620
Total Assets $ 10,324,873

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 185,155
Accrued expenses 533,847
Current maturity of long-term debt i 29,712

748,714

Long-Term Liabilities

Loans payable, long-term 1,915,184
1,915,184

Other Liabilities

Security deposits 6,620

Total Liabilities 2,670,518

Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets 7,600,402

Temporarily restricted net assets ) 53,953

Total Net Assets 7,654,355

Totat Liabilities and Net Assets $ 10,324,873

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
3=



LIFE BRIBGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30. 2013

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State of TN - DIDD
U.S. Depl. of Housing and Urban Development
State of Tennessee - ICF/ID
Transportation Grant
Housing Trust Fund Grant
Medical services income
City and County governmenl
Client rent
Workshop contract income
interest income
Gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

Nel assets released from restrictions:
Restrictions satisfied by payment
Net assets restricted:
Funding of debt service reserve

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program services:
HUD - residential
Medicaid waiver adult day services
Medicaid waiver residential services
Medicaid waiver - JOB/OP
ICF/1D services
Medical services
Total Program Services
Administrative costs
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions:
Restrictions satisfied by payiment

Net assets restricted:
Funding of debt service reserve

INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

$ 10,781.272
77.982
4.610,126
59,333
290,634
512,794
6,200
336,380
99,171
700

9,214
16,355
16,800,181

4,780
(8.920)

16,796,041

74,867
1,767.728
6.376,294

80.835
4,381,217

378,408
13,059,349
1,992,292
15051641

1,744,400

1,754,633
_ 5,899,722

§_ 7,654,355

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sale of assets

Changes in other assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Funding of debt service reserve
Principal payments on lease payable
Principal payments on mortgage payable
Net cash used by financing activities

Increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid on debt
Income taxes

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

-6-

$ 1,754,633

404,890
(9,214)

(205,775)
4,478
24,619
98,549
2,072,180

(466,239)
9214

(457,025)

(8,920)
(3,424)
(28,575)
(40,919)

1,574,236
3,344,254

$ 4,918,490

$ 73521
$_

%
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LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2015

1, Swmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Activities

Life Bridges, Inc. and related entity provide program services to eligible mentally handicapped
individuals in Cleveland, Tennessee and Bradley County. Program services consist of day care
programs, residential services, and medicaid services. Funds are primarily provided through the fee for
service contracts with the Tennessee Department of Intellectnal Disabilities Services and State of
Tennessee — ICF/MR; housing assistance payments from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development; revenue from rent paid by tenants; and grants.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of Life Bridges, Inc. and related entity have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets that are based on existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its
donors: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted — Net assets not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Such net assets are available for any
purpose consistent with the Organizations missions.

Temporarily Restricted — Net assets subject to specific, donor-imposed restrictions that must be met by
actions of the Organizations and/or passage of time. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are reported in the statement of activities as
releases from restriction. Restricted contributions received in the same year in which the restrictions are
met are recorded as an increase in unrestricted support.

Permanently Restricted — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions requiring they be maintained
permanently by the Organizations. Such net assets are normally restricted to long-term investment, with
income earned and appreciation available for specific or general Organization purposes. The
Organizations do not have any permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2015.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows the Organizations consider all unrestricted highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less and certificates of deposit to be cash
equivalents.

Investments
Investments arc carried at cost and consist of stocks of $8,794. The cost approximates the market values
of the stock at year end.
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LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (continued)
Donated Services

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services. The Organizations pay
for most services requiring specific expertise.

Property and Equipment
Disbursements for property and equipment are capitalized and reflecied on the statement of financial

position at cost. Expenditures for additions and major improvements are capitalized while those for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method. All equipment, furnishings and vehicles purchased with grant funds are subject to
a reversionary ownership interest on the part of the grantor agency.

Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities and in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates the
estimates and assumptions based on new information. Management believes that the estimates and
assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances; however, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

‘Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue
‘Contributions received are recorded as increases in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted net assets, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

Consolidated Financial Statements
The financial statements of Life Bridges, Inc. and related entity include the operations of the following
entities for which control and economic interest exist:

Bradley/Cleveland Property Development and Management, Inc., a 501(c)(3) tax exempt
organization, which provides Dept. of Housing and Urban Development residential housing for
clients of Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc. .

All significant intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated.
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LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

i. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (continned)

Income Tax Status

The Organizations are exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. They are not classified as a private foundation.

3. Concentration of Credit Risk Arising from Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits

The Organizations maintain cash balances at local financial institutions. The accounts are insured by
the FDIC up to $250,000. At June 30, 2015, the Organizations uninsured cash balances were
$4,445,257.

3. Concentration of Grant Revenue

The Organizations receive a substantial amount of support from the Tennessee Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities and State of Tennessee — ICF/MR for operations. A
major reduction of funds by these grantors, should this occur, may have a significant effect on future
operations.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Land $ 484,964
Land improvements 16,666
Buildings 5,803,827
Equipment, furniture & vehicles 1,614,467
Accumulated depreciation, land improvements ( 16,111)
Accumulated depreciation, buildings (2,711,615)
Accumulated depreciation
equipment, furniture & vehicles (1.273,027)
$3919.171
Depreciation expense at June 30, 2015 $ 404421

5. Debt Sexvice Reserve
The debt service reserve is required by the terms of mortgagors. In case of default on the mortgage

payable this reserve will make the payments for one year. If no default occurs the debt service
reserve will make the final year's payment on the note.

9.
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LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
AND RELATED ENTITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

6. Mortgage Payabie
The Organization’s obligations under mortgages payable as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Mortgage with USDA, monthly installments of $6,592
with an interest rate of 3.75% until maturity in December,
2048, secured by two intermediate care facilities. $1,507,275

Line-of-credit arrangement with a local bank, with interest at

1.350 percentage points over the Index, subject to a floor of

4.75% (4.75% at June 30, 2015), matures November 2015,

secured by real estate. The line-of-credit limit is $400,000. -

Mortgage with USDA, monthly installments of $1,916
with an interest rate of 3.75% until maturity in November,

2048, secured by two facilities. 437.621
1,944 896

Less current maturities 29712
$1,915,184

The aggregate maturities of mortgage payable are as follows:

6/30/16 $ 29,712
6/30/17 30,845
6/30/18 32,022
6/30/19 33,243
6/30/20 34,512
Thereafter 1,784,562

1,944,896

7. Compensated Absences

The Organizations’ liability for unused annual leave at June 30, 2015 was $156,689.

-10-



LIFE BRIDGES, INC,
AND RELATED ENTITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Juone 30, 2015

8. Retirement Plan

Life Bridges, Inc. maintains a defined contribution retirement plan for its employees. The plan is
approved under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plan is funded under a group annuity
contract (tax deferred) through Mutual of America Life Insurance and Annuity Company.

Employees are allowed to participate when they have reached the age of 20 and completed two
years of service. The organization did not contribute to eligible employee accounts during the
year ended June 30, 2015. Participants are 100% vested upon becoming an eligible participant in
the plan.

9. Restrictions on Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2015 consist of $36,552 in the debt service reserve,
$3,229 restricted for a group home trip, $1,200 restricted for historical book, and $12,972
restricted for client benevolence.

Debt service reserve - As explained in Note 5 the debt service reserve is restricted to payments
on the mortgage payable. This restriction will expire when the debt service reserve is used to
make any payments on the mortgage payable.

10. Debt Issue Costs

Debt issue costs represent loan processing fees for the Tennessee Bond Pool loans. This amount
will be amortized over the life of the loan. The breakdown of debt issue costs is as follows:

Debt issue costs $ 28,528
Less: accumulated amortization (__28.528)
Debt issue costs, net b -
Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 $ 469

11. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluaied through September 28, 2015, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

-1i-
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Bradley/Cleveland

Property
Life Development and
Bridges, Inc.  Management., Inc.  Eliminations Total

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 185095 $ 67,908 § (67,848) 185,155
Accrued expenses 533,847 - - 533,847
Current maturity of long-term debt 29,712 - - 29,712

748,654 67,908 (67,348) 748,714
Long-Term Liabilities
Loans payable, long-term 1,915,184 - - 1,915,184
Other Liabilities
Security deposits 450 6,170 - 6,620
Total Liabilities 2,664,288 74,078 (67,848) 2,670,518
Net Assets
Unrestricted net assets 7,401,344 199,058 7,600,402
Temporarily restricted net assets 53,953 - 53,953
Total Net Assets 7,455,297 199,058 - 7,654,355

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $10119585 § 273.136

12

$ _(67.848) § 10324873



f). ST, 5/ LIFE BRIDGES, INC. AND RELATED ENTITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Bradley/Cleveland
Property
Life Development and

Bridges, Inc.  Management. Inc. Eliminations Tolal

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE

TN Dept. of fntellectual Disabilities Services $ 10,781,272 $ . § 10,781,272
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - 77,982 77.982
State of TN ICF/ID 4,610,126 = 4.610.126
Transportation Grant 59,353 59,353
Housing Trust Fund Grant 290,634 - 290.634
Medical services 512,794 - 512,794
City and County government 6.200 - . 6.200
Client rent 243.002 93.378 - 336.380
Workshop contract income 99,171 - - 99,171
Inlerest income 700 w - 700
Managemen! fee income 100,000 B ( 100,000) -
Gain on sale of assets 9,214 - = 9,214
Miscellaneous 16,355 - - 16,355
TOTAL REVENUES 16,728,821 171.360 (100.000) 16.800.181
Nel assets released from restrictions:
Restrictions satistied by payment 4,780 - = 4,780
Net assels restricted:

Funding of debt service reserve (8,920) - - (8.920}
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE 16,724,681 171,360 (100,000) 16,796.041
EXPENSES

Program services:

HUD - residential - 174,867 (100.000) 74.867

Medicaid waiver adult day services 1,767,728 - - 1.767.728

Medicaid waiver residential services 6,376,294 - - 6,376,294

Medicaid waiver - Job/OP 80,835 - - 80.835

ICF/ID services 4.381.217 - - 4381.217

Medical services 178,408 - - 378,408

Total Program Services 12,984,482 174,867 (100,000) 13.059.349

Administrative costs 1,992,292 - - 1.992.292
TOTAL EXPENSES 14,976,774 174,867 (100,000) 15.051,641
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 1,747,907 (3,507) . 1.744.400
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Contributions 6,093 - - 6.093

Net assets released from restrictions:

Restrictions satisfied by payment (4.780) - - (4.780)

Net assets restricted:

Funding of debt service reserve 8,920 - - 8.920
iINCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 10,233 - - 10.233
INCREASE (DECREASE) INNET ASSETS 1,758.140 (3,307) . 1.754.633
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.697.157 202,565 - 5,899,722
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 7,455,297 § 199,058 - $ 7654355

-13-
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LIFE BRIDGES. INC. AND RELATED ENTITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30. 2013

Federal Grantor/ Beginning Ending
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA  (Accrued) Cash Cash (Accrued)
Program Title Jrant Number Deferred i Dishursements  Deferred

FEDERAL AWARDS

.8, Department of HUD
Pass-through TN Housing Development Agency:
Received by Bradley/Cleveland Property
Development and Management, Inc.

Section 8 Housing Vouchers TN37-H112-064 14177 & - 5 29433 % 29433 &

Seclion 8 Housing Youchers TN37-H112-080 14.177 - 22329 22,329 -

Section 8 Housing Youchers TN37-H112-081 14.177 - 26,220 26,220 -
. 77,982 77,982 ]

Pass-through TN Housing Development Agency:
HOME Investment Partnership Program HM-12-29 14.239 - 119.606 119,606 -

U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through TN Dept. of Transportation
Received by Life Bridges, Inc.
Capital Assistance -Elderly Persons and Persons
with Disabilities 2-15-EPD020-00 20.513 - 52058 52,758 -

Total Federal Awards - 250,346 250,346

STATE AWARD

TN Housing Development Agency
Received by Life Bridges, tnc.

Housing Trust Fund Program HTF-14-06 14.239 . 28,420 28,420
Housing Trust Fund Program HTF-15-F-07 . 142,608 142 608 .
- 171,028 171028 -

U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through TN Dept. of Transportation
Received by Life Bridges. Inc.
Capilal Assistance -Elderly Persans and Persons

with Disabilities Z-15-EPD020-00 20.513 - 6595 6,595
Totat State Awards - 177,623 1717.623 -
Total Federal and State Awards 5 - £ 427969 § 427969 § -~

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) includes the federal and state grant activity of Life Bridpes. Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2015. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations
of Life Bridges, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Life Bridges. Inc.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the acerual basis of accounting.
(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

\4-
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HARTING, BISHOP & ARRENDALE, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
KELVIN W. BISHOP, CPA

THOMAS H. ARRENDALE, CPA, MBA
JANICE L. HAYES, CPA

MEMBER
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Life Bridges, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Life Bridges, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial staternents, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Life Bridges, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Life Bridges, Inc.’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Life Bridges, Inc.’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-15-
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Life Bridges, Inc.’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

U{wfm% Bisap vlwanaadl, PALC

Cleveland, Tennessee
September 28, 2015

-16-
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CARF Istomaticosl Hesdemastsr
8964 E. Southpolit Read
Tuestn, AL 857668407, USA

www . carf.org

February 4, 2016

Diana L. Jackson, M.Ed., LCSW, M.S.S.W.

Life Bridges/Bradley/Cleveland Property Management and Development, Inc.
764 Old Chattanooga Pike SW

Cleveland, TN 37311

Dear Mrs. Jackson:

It is my pleasure to inform you that Life Bridges/Bradley/Cleveland Property
Management and Development, Inc. has been issued CARF accreditation based on
its recént survey. The Three-Year Accreditation applies to the following service(s):

Community Employment Services: Employment Supports
Community Employment Services: Job Development
Community Housing

Community Integration

Host Family/Shared Living Services

Organizational Employment Services

Services Coordination

Supported Living

Case Management/Services Coordination: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Adults)
Community Housing: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Aduits)
Community Integration: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Adults)

This accreditation will extend through January 31, 2019. This achievement is an
indication of your organization's dedication and commitment to improving the quality
of the lives of the persons served. Services, personnel, and documentation clearly
indicate an established pattern of conformance to standards.

The survey report is intended to support a continuation of the quality improvement
of your organization's service(s). It contains comments on your organization’s
strengths as well as any consultation and recommendations. A quality improvement
plan (QIP) demonstrating your organization's efforts to implement the survey
recommendation(s) must be submitted within the next 90 days to retain
accreditation. The QIP form is posted on Customer Connect
(customerconnect.carf.org), CARF's secure, dedicated website for accredited
organizations and organizations seeking accreditation. Please log on to Customer
Connect and follow the guidelines contained in the QIP form.

Your organization should take pride in achieving this high level of accreditation.
CARF will recognize this accomplishment in its listing of organizations with
accreditation and encourages your organization to make its accreditation known
throughout the community. Communication of the accreditation to your referral and
funding sources, the media, and local and federal government officials can promote
and distinguish your organization. Enclosed are some materials that will help you
publicize this achievement.

Your organization's complimentary accreditation certificate will be sent separately.
You may use the enclosed form to order additional certificates.

if you have any questions regarding your organization's accreditation or the QIP,
you are encouraged to seek support from John Hannon by email at
jhannon@ecarf.org or telephone at (888) 281-6531, extension 7198.
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Mrs. Jackson 2 February 4, 2016
CARF encourages your organization to continue fully and productively using the

CARF standards as part of its ongoing commitment to accreditation. CARF

commends your organization's commitment and consistent efforts to improve the

quality of its service(s) and looks forward to working with your organization in its
ongoing pursuit of excellence.

Sincerely,

Wﬁ{, 0.

Brian J. Boon, Ph.D.
President/CEO

Enclosures
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QOrganization

Life Bridges/Bradley/Cleveland Propesty
Management and Development, Inc. (1.BI)
764 Old Chattanooga Pike SW

Cleveland, TN 37311

Organizational L.eadership

Diana L. Jackson, M.Ed., LCSW, M.S.S.W.
CEO

Kenneth A. Nope, LPC-MHSP
Day Setvices/Quality Assurance, Director

Three-Year Accreditation

Survey Dates

December 9-11, 2015

Survey Team

William M. Ferney, M.Ed., CADAC, LADC], Administrative Sutveyor
Julia Dotson, LAC, Program Sutveyor

F
CAl'T INTERNATIONAL

Stuart Munget, Program Sutveyot
Deborah Jones, M.Ed., Program Susrveyor

Programs/Services Surveyed

Community Employment Services: Employment Suppotts
Community Employment Setvices: Job Development
Community Housing

Community Integration

Host Family/Shared Living Services

Otganizational Employment Setvices

Services Cootdination

Supported Living

Case Management/Services Coordination: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Adults)
Community Housing: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Adults)
Community Integration: Psychosocial Rehabilitation (Adults)

Previous Survey
December 12-14, 2012

Thtee-Year Accreditation
Survey Outcome

Three-Year Accreditation
Expitation: January 31, 2019

v, cavt.org



STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE BRIDGES, INC,

(Name of Licensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Cate House

(Name of Facmty or Service as Known to the Publlc)

2601 Bower Lane S. E Cleveland, TN 37323

(Street Address or Locatlon Clty or Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:;

Accessible to Approved for persons with:
moblle,
non-ambulatory
Distinct Category Individuals
Mental Retardation Institutional Habilitation Y Y Y ] Haalth Care

Hearing Vislon Ocgupancy
Loss Impairment Capaclty Classlfication

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 L000000013599

Date License Granted’ Date Licenss Expires License Number

Mﬁ. i %
Commissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Developmental Disabliities

THIS LICENSE iS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.,
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.

MAQNRA (Raw a0y



THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE INACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

__LIFE BRIDGES, INC.

et et e

(Name of Licensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Lockhart House

PSS

"(Name of Facility or Service as Known to the Public)

3745 Adkinson Drive N.W,, Cleveland, TN 37364
"~ (Street Address or Locatlon, City or Town) '

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accessible to Approved for persons with:
moblle,

non-ambulatory

Distinct Category ' individuals
Mental Retardation Residential Habllitation Y N N 12 Small Residentlal

Board & Care,
Slow Evacuation

Capabllity

Hearing Vislon Occupancy
Lass Impalrment Capacity Claselfication

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 LO00000013601

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

e S T @:’u—w

Commiizsionar of Department Of Intellectual & Deveiopmental Disabilities
THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.

ARLE ARG A (D BEWIL



STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE | BRIDGES INC.
(Name of Llcensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

erght House

(Name of Faclllty or Servlce as"Knonn to the Publlc)

2611 Bower Lane S.E., Cleveland, TN 37323

(Street Address or Location Clty or Tovdn)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accessible to Approved for persons with:

mobile,
non-ambulatory Hearing Vision Occupancy

Distinct Category individuals _ Loss Impalrment Capaclty Classification

Mental Relardation Institutional Habilitation Y Y Y 6 Heallh Care

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 1000000013606

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

Commissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities
THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.
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STATE OF TENNESSE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

S,

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL

LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE BRIII_)GES, INC.
(Name of Licensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Mcintire House

(Name of Facility Br. .Ser;gcé_as_ Known to the Public)

207 Kile Lake Road, Cleveland, TN 37323

" (Street Address or Location, City o Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND .
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL 8 DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

" THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accessible to Approved for persons with:
mobile,
non-ambulatory
Distinct Category Individuals
Mental Retardation Institutional Habilitation Y

Hearing Vislon Occupancy
Loss Impalrment Capaclty Classification

Y Y 4 Resldentla) Board
and Care

L.000000013602

Licensa Number

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016

Date License Expires

Commmissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Devalopmental Disabllities
THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.

Date License Granted
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE BRIDGES, INC.

(Nafne of Licenseé)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Edgemon House

(Name of Facility or Service as Known to the Public)

209 Kile Lake Road, Cleveland, TN 37323

(Stret_et Addréss or I'.ocatio.r-i, City c;r Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accessible to Approved for persons with:
moblle,
non-ambulatory
Distinct Category individuals
Mental Retardation Institutional Habllitation Y Y Y 4 Residential Board
and Care

Hearing Vision Occupancy
Loss Impairment Capacity Classification

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 L600000013600

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

Commissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Developmental Disabillties
THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE:
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.




STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:.

LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
(Name of Licansee)
TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE

PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Life Bridges, Inc.

(Name of Facilly or Service as Known to the Public)

764 Old Chattanooga Pike S.W., Cleveland, TN 37364-0029

(Street Address or Location, City or Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accessible to Approved for persons with:
mobille,
non-ambulatory Hearing Vislon QOccupancy
Distinct Category Individuals Loss Impalrment Capacity Classification

Mental Retardation Adult Habllitation Day Y Y n/a Health Care

Mental Retardation Placement Services nfa nla Business
Mental Retardation Resplte Care Services n/a Business
Mentgl Retardation Seml:Independent Living nla Busingss
Mental Retardation Supported Living nla Business

Personal Support Services . nia na nia n/a

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 1000000013598

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

NSRRI -%n--

Commissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Devalopmental Disabilities
THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.

13598
L000000013598




LB
THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL 8 DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
(Name of Licensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Wilson House

1100 Blythe Ferry Road, Claveland, TN 37364

(Stré;t-Address or Locatlon, City or Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accesslble to Approved for persons with:
moblle,

non-ambulatory

Distinct Category individuals
Mental Retardation Residential Heb!ﬂ!ntiam Y Y Y 12 Small Resldential

Board & Care,
Slow Evacuation

Capablllty

Hearlng Vislon Occupancy
Loas Impairment Capacity Classification

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 L000000013605

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

Commissioner of Department Of Intellectual & Developmental Disabllities
* THIS LICENSE IS NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.

2 W
:'-;E';’g'ﬂ" flid o




STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

__HFE BRIDGES, INC.

(Name of Lioensee)

TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENTIFIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE
PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Summers House

(N;n_\;a of' Faclllly or Serwce as Known to the Publlc)

4755 Fronbage Road, Cleveland, TN 37364

(Slreet Address or Locatlon City or Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accesslble to Approved for persons with:
moblle,

non-ambulatory

Distinct Category Indlviduals
Mental Retardation Residential Habililation Y N N 12 Small Restdentlal

Board & Care,
Slow Evacuation

Capabliity

Hearing Vision Occupancy
Loss Impalrment Capacity Classlfication

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 1.000000013604

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

NS e “\L-ba:;.u?;(-.p..

Commissioner of Department Of Inteflectual & Developmental Disabliities
THIS LICENSE (S NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE.




LICENSE

THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES GRANTS THIS FULL
LICENSE IN ACCORDANGE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 TO:

LIFE BRIDGES, INC.
(Name of Licensee)
TO OPERATE A FACILITY OR SERVICE IDENT!FIED AND LOCATED AS FOLLOWS FOR THE

PROVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES OR
PERSONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

Pettit House

(Name of Facility or Service as Known to the Public)

3004 Pleasant Grove Road, Cleveland, TN 37311

. (Stréet Add.r;sé Ior"Lo.tlzvalion,. C-i_ty“or Town)

THE LICENSEE HAS DEMONSTRATED COMPLIANCE WITH T.C.A. TITLE 33, CHAPTER 2, PART 4 AND
WITH RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES.

THIS LICENSE AUTHORIZES LIFE SAFETY QCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATIONS AND THE FOLLOWING
DISTINCT CATEGORY OF FACILITY OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:

Accassible to Approved for persons with:
moblle,
non-ambulatory
Distinct Category individuals
Mental Retardation Residential Habilitation : N N N 8 Small Resldential
Board & Care,
Slow Evacuation
Capabliity

Hearing Vision Occupancy
Loss Impairment Capacity Classlfication

January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016 LO00000013603

Date License Granted Date License Expires License Number

Commissioner of Depaﬁment Of Intelleciuai & Developmental Disabilities
THIS LICENSE {5 NON-TRANSFERABLE AND NON-ASSIGNABLE.
POST THIS LICENSE IN A CONSPICUQUS PLACE.

A AT R 1Ok DR
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CENTERS FOR MEDICARL & MEDICAID SERVICES
MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL
PART I- TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STATE SURVEY AGENCY

ID: ICMZ
Facility ID: TNPS387

. MEDICARE/MEDICAID PROVIDER NO. 3, NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY 4 TYPEOF ACTION: 2 (L®)
Ll  44GO0%0 (€3) LIFE BRIDGES CATE HOUSE
1. Initial 2. Recertlficalion
2 STATE VENDOR GR MEDICAID NO. {14} 2601 BOWERLANE S E
3. Terniination 4, CHOW
(L) (LSY CLEVELAND, TN L6y 37323 5. Validation 6. Complaint
7. On-Slte Vislt 9. Othor
5. EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF O\WNERSHIP 7. PROVIDER/SUPPLIER CATEGORY n (3]
B, ¥ull Snrvey Aftor Complalo{
8] 01 Hosplinl 0S HHA 09 ESRD 13 PTIR 22 CLEA
6 DATE OF SURVEY 07/08/2015  (1.34) 02 SNF/NF/Dua) 06 PRTF 10NF 14 CORF

(A1)} 03 SNF/INF/Distinet 07 X-Ray 11 ICK/ID 1§ ASC FISCAL YEAR BNDING DATE: (L35}
§  ACCREDITATION STATUS:
0 Unaceredited 1TIC 04 SNF 08 OPT/ASP 12 RUC 16 HOSPICK 06/30
2A0A 3 Cther

11, .LTC PERIOD OF CERTIFICATION 10.THE FACILITY I8 CERTIFIED AS.

From (a): 07/6L72015 A InCompliance With And/Or Approved Waivers OF The Foliowing Requirements:
To  {: 09/30/2016 Program Requirements 2. Technical Personnet 6. Stope of Services Limit
Complisnce Raged On: 3. 24Hour RN 7 Medical Director
12.Total Facility Beds 6 (L18) 1. Acceptable POC 4: 7-Day RI¥ (Rural SNF) 8. Palient Room Size

5. Life Safety Code 9. Beds/Room

13.Totai Certified Beds 6 (L17) X B. Not m Complisncs with Program
Requirements and/or Applied Waivers: * Code: B* (L12)
14, LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDOWN 15, FACILITY MEETS
@15)
18 SNF 18/19 SNF 19 SNF ICF D 1361 (&) (1) or 1861 G (1):
6
(L37) (138) €39 (142) (LA43)

16. STATE SURVEY AGENCY REMARKS (IF APPLICABLE SHOW 1,TC CANCELLATICN DATE):
17 SURVEYOR SIGNATURE Date : 18, STATE SURVEY AGENCY APPROVAL Date:

Georgiow Brosonfleld BobbeHalgriny

09/11/2015 09/11/2015
w9
PART II-TO BE COMPLETED BY HCFA REGIONAL OFFICE OR SINGLE STATE AGENCY
19. DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 20. COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL 21. 1. Statement of Financial Solvency (FICFA-2572)
RIGHTS ACT: 2. Ownership/Control Interest Disclosure Stmt (HCFA-1513)

X 1. Facility is Eligible 1o Participate 3, Both of the Above :

2. Facility is not Eligible

@
22. ORIGINAL DATE 23.LTC AGREEMENT 24: LTC AGREEMENT 26. TERMINATION ACTION: (L30)
OF PARTICIPATION BEGINNING DATE ENDING DATE VOLUNTARY 00 INVOLUNTARY
10/10/1995 07/01/2015 09/630/2016 01-Merger, Closure 05-Fail to Meet Health/Safety
{1.29) (L41) (L25) 02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimbursement 06-Fail to Meet Agreement
03-Risk of Involuntary Termination
25, LTCEXTENSION DATE: 27 ALTERNATIVE SANCTIONS QTHER
A. Suspension of Admissions; 04-Other Reason for Withdrawal 07-Provider Status Change
(L44) 00-Active
.27 B. Rescind Suspension Date:
(L4S)

28. TERMINATION DATE: 29, INTERMEDIARY/CARRIER NO.,

(L28) L3y

31, RORECEIPT OF CMS-1532 32, DETERMINATION OF APPROVAL DATE
09/29/2015

132) (L.33)

FORM CMS-1539 (7-84) (Destroy Prior Editions)

30, REMARKS

DETERMINATION APPROVAL

920459



plel. |

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL ID:  JNBN
PART I - TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STATE SURVEY AGENCY Facility ID: TNP538136
| MEDICARE/MEDICAID PROVIDER NO. 3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY 4, TYPEOFACTION: 2 (LB)
(L) 44G140 (L3) LIFE BRIDGES EDGEMON HOUSE
1. fnitial 2, Recertificalion
2 STATE VENDOR OR MEDICAID NO, (L4) 209 KILE LAKE ROAD
3. Termination 4. CHOW
(L2) (Ls) CLEVELAND, TN (L6) 37323 8, Validatlon 6. Complaint
7. On-Site Vialt 9. Other
5. EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 7. PROVIDER/SUPPLIER CATEGORY 1 Ln
8. Pull Survey After Complalnt
(.9 01 Hospltal 05 HHA 09 ESRD 13 PTIP 22 CLIA
6 DATE OF SURVEY 01/21/2016  (L34) 02 SNF/NF/Dual 06 PRTF 100NF 14 CORF
(L10) 03 SNF/NK/Distinet 07 X-Ray 11ICPAID  13ASC FISCAL YEAR ENDING DATE;: (L3S)
8. ACCREDITATION STATUS:
0 Unacoredited 1 TIC 04 SNF 08 OPT/SP 12RIIC 16 HOSPICE
2A0A 3 Other
11, LTC PERIOD OF CERTIFICATION 10.THE FACILITY IS CERTIFIED AS:
X
From (a): 01/01/2016 A. InCompliauce With And/O¢ Approved Waivers Of The Following Requirements:
To (b): 03/31/2017 Program Requirements 2. Technical Personnel 6. Scope of Services Limit
Compliance Besed On; 3, 24HourRN 1. Modical Director
1, Acceplable POC 4. 7-Day RN (Rural SNF) 8. Patient Roomn Size
12, Total Facility Beds 4 (LIB)
5 Life Safety Code 9. Beds/Rooin
13.Total Certified Beds 4 (LIN B Not in Compliance with Prograin
Requirements and/or Applied Waivers: * Code: A* (L12)
14, LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDOWN 15 FACILITY MEETS
18 SNF 18/19 SNF 19 SNF ICF 1D 1861 (o) (1) or 1861 (j) (1): (€L15)
4
(Lan (LI®) (L39) (142) (L43)

16 STATE SURVEY AGENCY REMARKS (IF APPLICABLE SHOW LTC CANCELLATION DATE):

17 SURVEYOR SIINATURLE Date 18, STATE SURVEY AGENCY APPROVAL Date:

AU-’\ . ,—b\_o »\.).\.Q)_GD :O\ 211112016 /—%cb 4 02/11/2016
|
= (L19) \ \‘*-' (L20)

PART Il - TO BE COMPLETED BY HCFA REGIONAL OFFICE OR SINGLE STATI. AGENCY

19. DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 20, COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL 21 ). Statement of Finencial Solvency (HCFA-2572)
RIGHTS ACT: 2 Owmership/Conlrol Interest Disclosure Stmt (HCFA-1513)
X 1. Facllity is Eligible to Participate 3 Bothof the Above :
2. Tacility is not Eligible
L21)

22. ORIGINAL DATE 23. LTC AQREEMENT 24 LTC AGREEMENT 26. TERMINATION ACTION: (L30)

OF PARTICIPATION BEGINNING DATE ENDING DATE YOLUNTARY. 00 INYOLUNTARY

02/23/2011 01/01/2016 03/31/2017 01-Morger, Closue 05-Fail to Meet Healthv/Safety

(L24) (L41) (L25) 02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimbyrsoment 06-Fell to Meet Agreement

03-Risk of Involuntary Termination
25. LTC EXTENSION DATE: 27. ALTERNATIVE SANCTIONS
A Suspension of Admissions: 04-QOther Repson for Withdrawal 07-Piovidet Status Change
(144) 00-Active
(L27) B. Rescind Suspension Date:
(145)
28, TERMINATION DATE: 29, INTERMEDIARY/CARRIER NO 30. REMARKS
(L28) {Lan
31, RO RECEIPT OF CMS-1539 32, DETERMINATION OF APPROVAL DATE
02/23/2016
(L32) (L13) DETERMINATION APPROVAL

FORM CMS-1539 (7-84) (Destroy Piior Editions) 12049y



e\ o
DEPAI¥I‘MENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL ID: MKIX
PART I - TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STATE SURVEY AGENCY Facility ID; TNP538137
I, MEDICARE/MEDICAID PROVIDER NO, 3 NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY 4, TYPEOF ACTION: 2 (L8)
(L) 44Gl4] (L3) LIFE BRIDGES MCINTIRE HOUSE
1. Initlat 2. Recertificallon
2,STATE VENDOR OR MEDICAID NO. (L4) 207 KILE LAKE ROAD
3. Termination 4. CHOW
(L2) (L5) CLEVELAND, TN L6y 37323 S, Validatlon 6. Complaint
7. On-Site Visit 9. Other
5 EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 7. PROVIDER/SUPPLIER CATEGORY 1t (L)
8, Full Survey After Complaint
()] 01 Hospital 05 HHA 09 ESRD 13 PTIP 22 CLIA
6. DATE OF SURVEY 01/21/2016  (L34) 02 SNF/NF/Dunl 06 PRTF 10 NF 14 CORF
(L10) 03 SNF/NF/Dintinet 07 X-Ray 11 ICFAID 15 ASC FISCAL YEAR ENDING DATE: (L35)
8, ACCREDITATION STATUS:
0 Unaccredited 1TC 04 SNF 08 OPT/SP 12 RHC 16 HOSPICE
2 A0A 3 Other
{1. LTC PERIOD QF CERTIFICATION 10.THE FACILITY 1S CERTIFIED AS:
X
From (a) :01/01/2016 A. InCompliance With And/Or Approved Waivers Of The Following Requirements:
To (b):03/31/2017 Programm Requirements 2. Technical Personnel 6. Scope of Services Limit
Compliance Basod On: 3 24 HourRN 7. Medical Director
1. Acceptable POC 4 7-Day RN (Rural SNFI¥) 8 Patient Room Size
12.Total Facility Beds 4 (L18)
5. Life Safely Code 9, Beds/Room
13.Total Certificd Beds 4 (L17) B. Not in Compliance with Program
Requirements and/or Applied Waivers: ¢ Code: A* {L12)
14. LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDOWN 15. FACILITY MEETS
18 SNF 18/19 SNF 19 SNF ICF 11D 1861 (e) (1) or 1861 (j) (1): (L1S)
4
(L37) (L38) (L39) (L42) (L43)

16. STATE SURVEY AGENCY REMARKS (IF APPLICABLE SHOW LTC CANCELLATION DATE):

17 SURVEYOR SIGNATURE Date |8 STATE SURVEY AGENCY APFROVAL Date:

/\ (._
hy\_ ’B “’ 02/11/2016 %C&"QJ\—‘ 02/11/2016
(L19) (L20)

PART II - TO BE COMPLETED BY HCFA REGIONAL OFFICE OR SINGLE STATE AGENCY

19 DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 20. COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL 21 | Statement of Financial Solvency (HCFA-2572)
RIGHTS ACT: 2. Ownership/Control Interest Disclosure Stmt (HCFA-1513)
X 1. Facility is Eligible to Paricipate 3. Both ofthe Above ;
2, Facility is not Eligible
(L21)

22, ORIGINAL DATE 23. LTC AGREEMENT 24. LTC AGREEMENT 26 TERMINATION ACTION: (L30)

OF PARTICIPATION BEGINNING DATE ENDING DATE N TA| 00 NVO!

02/23/2011 01/01/2016 03/31/2017 01-Merger, Closure 05-Fail to Meet Health/Safety

(L24) (LAT) (L25) 02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimbursement 06-Fail to Meet Agresmeont

03-Risk of Involuntary Termination
25. LTCEXTENSION DATE: 27. ALTERNATIVE SANCTIONS QTHER
A. Suspenslon of Admissions; 04-Olher Reason for Withdrawal 07-Provider Stalus Change
(L44) 00-Active
(L27) B. Rescind Suspension Date:
(145)
28 TERMINATION DATE: 29 INTERMEDIARY/CARRIER NQ. 30 REMARKS
(L28) (L31)
31. RORECEIPT OF CMS-1539 32, DETERMINATION OF APPROVAL DATE
02/23/2016
(L32) (L33)  DETERMINATION APPROVAL

FORM CMS-1539 (7-84) (Destroy Prior Editions) 020499
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERYV1CES

1. MEDICARBMEDICAID PROVIDER NO.

(L) 44G09L

2.8TATE VENDOR OR MEDICAID NO.

@)

5. EFFECTIVE DATE CHANGE OF QWNERSHIP

L9)
6 DATE OF SURVEY
8 ACCREDITATION STATUS:

0 Unaceredited
2 AOA

11. .LTC PERIOD OF CERTIFICATION

07/01/2015
09/30/2016

From {a).

To {(b):
12.Total Facility Beds

13.Toial Certified Beds

$7/08/20158

1 TIC
3 Other

MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFICATION AND TRANSMITTAL ID:
PART 1-TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STATE SURVEY AGENCY

3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY
(L3) LIFE BRIDGES WRIGHT HOUSE

(£4) 2611 BOWERLANE S E
(LS) CLEVELAND, TN

7. PROVIDER/SUPPLIER CATEGORY

14. LTC CERTIFIED BED BREAKDOWN

18 SNF

@37

18419 SNF

(L38)

01 Hospital 05 KHA 09 ESRD
{L34) 02 SNF/INF/Dual 06 PRTF 10 NF
(BIH)] 03 SNF/NF/Distinet 07 X-Ray 11 ICF/ED
04 SNF 08 OPT/SP 12 RHC
10.THE FACILITY IS CERTIFIED AS:
X A. InComplience With
Program Requirements
Complisnce Based On:
6 (L18) I, Acceptable POC
6 @17 B. Not in Compliance with Program
Requirements and/or Applicd Weivers:
19 SNF Icr J1)
6
(L39) (L42) (L43)

16 STATE SURVEY AGENCY REMARKS (F APPLICABLE SEOW LTC CANCELLATION DATE),

17 SURVEYOR SIGNATURE

Date !

Andrea Showalter

09/11/2015
L19)

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
0csa
Facility ID: TNP5388

4. TYPE OF ACIICN: 2 {L.B)
1. plidal 2. Recerllflcation
3. Tormination 4. CHOW
(L6) 37323 5. Validation 6. Cumplainl
7. On-Site Visit 9. Other
11 @an
8. Fufl Survey Afier Complabit
13 PTIP 22 CLIA
14 CORF
15 ASC FISCAL YEAR ENDING DATE: (L3S)
16 HOSPICE 06/30
And/Or Approved Waivers Of The Foliowing Requirements:
2. Technical Personnel 6. Scopt of Services Limit
3, 24Hour RN 7. Medical Director
4. 7-Day RN (Rural SNF) 8. Patient Room Size
5. Life Safety Code 9 Beds/Room
*“Code: A* 1.i2)
15, FACILITY MELTS
(L15)
1861 () (1) or 1861 () (1):
18. STATE SURVEY AGENCY APPROVAL Date:
Bobbi Halgriny
09/11/2015
(L20)

PART II - TO BE COMPLETED BY HCFA REGIONAL OFFICE OR SINGLE STATE AGENCY

19, DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY

X 1

2. Facility is not Eligible

22. ORIGINAL DATE
OF PARTICIPATION
10/10/1995
(L24)

25, LTC EXTENSION DATE:

(L2mn

28. TERMINATION DATE:

31. RORECEIPT OF CMB-153¢

20, COMPLIANCE WITII CIVIL
RIGHTS ACT:

Facility is Eligible to Participate

(V1))

23, LTC AGREEMENT 24, LTC AGREEMENT
BEGINNING DATE ENDING DATE
07/01/2015 09/30/2016
L4 L25)

27. ALTERNATIVE SANCTIONS

A. Suspensicn of Admissions:

a4)
B. Rescind Suspension Date:

(L45)

29. INTERMEDIARY/CARRIER NO,

(L28) (L31)
32. DETERMINATION OF APPROVAL DATE
09/29/2015
(L32) @L33)

FORM CMS-1539 (7-84) (Destroy Prior Editions})

21, 1. Statement of Financial Solvency (HCFA-2572)
2. Ownership/Control Interest Disclosure Stmt (HCFA-1513)
3. Both ol the Above :

26. TERMINATION ACTION: (L30)
VOLUNTARY 00 W ARY
01-Merger, Closure 05-Fail to Mest Health/Safety
02-Dissatisfaction W/ Reimbursement 06-Fail to Meet Agreement

03-Risk of Involuntary Termination

07-Provider Status Change
00-Active

04-Other Reason for Withdrawal

30. REMARKS

DETERMINATION APPROVAL

020459
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_LEGAL PUBLICATION 1 : 'LEGAL PUBLICATION

LEGAL PUBLICATION ~ CLASSIFIED SUBSTITUTE TRUSTEE'S 54

 NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE. ADVERTISEMENTS | Sale at bllc auction will be on May 2

AN . atYour Conyeniencel ! [ about, ! Jocal time, at the” Bi

.Courthou %leveland Tennessee, (
the Subsnmtc 'I‘rustce as identlfied :
herein below, Eu to Dy

by JANIE COPELAND, to A
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PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART

Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision date, as published in T.C.A. § 68-11-1609(c): G ' | ' l E

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final agency action on that date; indicate the number of days
from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

Anticipated Date

Phase DAYS
REQUIRED (MONTH/YEAR)

1. _Architectural and engineering contract signed

2. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee

Department of Health (Q O L

3. Construction contract signed

4. Building permit secured

5. Site preparation completed

6. _Building construction commenced GO b lo 1 G

7. Construction 40% complete 90 9 ,.10 l6

8. Construction 80% complete 1 A0 /o Laol A

9. Construction 100% complete (approved for occupancy 140 Y iggu",
10. *Issuance of license mol 10 [ \J.ol?
11. _*Initiation of service 210 lasly
12. Final Architectural Certification of Payment | €0 a k2o

13. Final Project Report Form (HF0055)

* For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation: Please complete items
10 and 11 only.

Note: If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final
determination to reflect the actual issue date.
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State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson, g™ Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

June 1, 2016

Allen Nope

Director of Day Services
Life Bridges, Inc.

PO Box 29

Cleveland, TN 37364

RE: Certificate of Need Application -- Life Bridges, Inc. - CN1605-017
The relocation of a 6 licensed bed ICF/IID home from 2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland
(Bradley County), TN to 3745 Adkisson Drive, Cleveland (Bradley County), TN. The
estimated project cost is $622,065.

Dear Mr. Nope:

This is to acknowledge the receipt of supplemental information to your application for a
Certificate of Need. Please be advised that your application is now considered to be complete by
this office.

Your application is being forwarded to Theresa C. Sloan at the Tennessee Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities for Certificate of Need review by the Office of General
Counsel. You may be contacted by someone from Ms. Sloan’s office for additional clarification
while the application is under review by the Department. Ms. Sloan’s contract information is
Theresa.C.Sloan@tn.gov or 615-253-8731.

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated, §68-11-1601, et seq., as amended by Public
Chapter 780, the 60-day review cycle for this project will begin on June 1, 2016. The first sixty
(60) days of the cycle are assigned to the Department of Health, during which time a public
hearing may be held on your application. You will be contacted by a representative from this
Agency to establish the date, time and place of the hearing should one be requested. At the end of
the sixty (60) day period, a written report from the Department of Health or its representative will
be forwarded to this office for Agency review within the thirty (30)-day period immediately
following. You will receive a copy of their findings. The Health Services and Development
Agency will review your application on August 24, 2016.



Mr. Nope
June 1, 2016
Page 2

Any communication regarding projects under consideration by the Health Services and
Development Agency shall be in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(d):

(1)  No communications are permitted with the members of the agency once the Letter of
Intent initiating the application process is filed with the agency. Communications
between agency members and agency staff shall not be prohibited. Any
communication received by an agency member from a person unrelated to the
applicant or party opposing the application shall be reported to the Executive Director
and a written summary of such communication shall be made part of the certificate of
need file.

@) All communications between the contact person or legal counsel for the applicant and
the Executive Director or agency staff after an application is deemed complete and
placed in the review cycle are prohibited unless submitted in writing or confirmed in
writing and made part of the certificate of need application file. Communications for
the purposes of clarification of facts and issues that may arise after an application has
been deemed complete and initiated by the Executive Director or agency staft are not
prohibited.

Should you have questions or require additional information, please contact me.
Sincerely,
UL W e

Melanie M. Hill
Executive Director

cc: Theresa Sloan, Assistant Commissioner and General Counsel
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities



State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson, 9" Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

MEMORANDUM

TO: Theresa Sloan, Assistant Commissioner and General Counsel
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
Citizens Plaza State Office Building 10" Floor
400 Deaderick Street
Nashville, TN 37243-1403

FROM: Melanie M. Hill /2] #//4/:

Executive Director

DATE: June 1, 2016

RE: Certificate of Need Application
Life Bridges, Inc. - CN1605-017

Please find enclosed an application for a Certificate of Need for the above-referenced project.

This application has undergone initial review by this office and has been deemed complete. It is
being forwarded to your agency for a sixty (60) day review period to begin on June 1, 2016 and
end on August 1, 2016.

Should there be any questions regarding this application or the review cycle, please contact this
office.

Enclosure

cc: Allen Nope, Director of Day Services, Life Bridges, Inc.



State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency

Andrew Jackson Building, 9™ Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

www.tn.gov/hsda  Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

PUBLICATION OF INTENT
The following shall be published in the "Legal Notices" section of the newspaper in a space
no smaller than two (2) columns by two (2) inches.

g R S S N e T ™ol ol S T Tl S T el W B T Tel™ ol ol W "™l ™™ ol T "™l R ™

NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR A CERTIFICATE OF NEED

This is to provide official natice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in
accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 et seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency,
that:

L]IQ.B[lq ges. Inc. , __Private Non-Profit

{Name of Applicant) (Facility Type-Existing)

owned by: _Life Bridges. Inc. with an ownership type of_Private Non-Profit
and to be managed by: _Life Bridges. Inc. intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need

for [PROJECT DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]:

This propasal requests the relocation of a 8 licensed bed ICF/IID home from 2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland, TN to 3745 Adkisson Drive,
Cleveland, TN. The estimated cost of the project is $585,000.

The anticipated date of filing the application is: _May 2 e e , 20 16
The contact person for this project is __Allen Nope Director of Day Services
(Contact Name) {Title)
who may he reached at: Life Bridges, Inc. P.0. Box 29
{Company Name) (Address)
Clevsiand N 37364 (aggy [ 321:08%9
(&) T (Glate) “{Zp Code) Ffea Code / Phone Number)

Upon written request by interested parties, a local Fact-Finding public hearing shall be conducted.
Written requests for hearing should be sent to:

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Bullding, 8" Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashvllle, Tennessee 37243

The published Letter of Intent must contaln the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1 607(c)(1). (A) Any
health care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the
Health Services and Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health
Services and Development Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other
person wishing to oppose the application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development
Agency at or prior (o the consideration of the apelication Y (e AGENY: & o = wmrr = = s = = mn
HF50 (Revised 01/09/2013 — all forms vrior to this date are nhsolete)



Supplemental #1
-Original-

Life Bridges, Inc.

CN1605-017



SUPPLEMENTAL 3
-~ - May 27, 2016
Life Bridges, Inc. 40:30 am

P.O. Box 29, 764 Old Chattanooga Pike, SW, Cleveland, TN 37311
Diana Jackson, MSSW, LCSW .
Email: DLJACKSON59@hotmail.com S
Office: (423) 421-6436

Nationally Accredited Rehabilitation Center Since 1995 (;\(O rf
e

May 25, 2016

Melanie Hill, Executive Director

Health Services and Development Agency
502 Deadrick Street, 9" Floor

Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Ms. Hill:

Life Bridges has submitted an application to relocate Cate House, an existing ICF-IID home
operated by our agency since 1995. The relocation is to move 6 men supported in the Cate
house which has 4 bedrooms to another facility owned by the agency which has 10 bedrooms.
This will give the residents much needed living space and more privacy. The project is
economically feasible, and it will contribute to the orderly development and provision of health

care for the residents.

The relocation does not change the licensed bed count, scope of services, home county, service
area, accessibility, ownership, or management. For these reasons, we respectfully request that it
be scheduled for consent calendar review.

Thank you very much for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Diana Jackson

CEOl/Life Bridges



1 Life Bridges, Inc. CN1605-017 Supplemental 1 SUPPLEMENTAL #1

May 27, 2016
10:30 am

1. Section A, applicant Profile, Item 1

It appears the applicant placed the address of Life Bridges, Inc. for the proposed
facility location. The address of the proposed facility should reflect the actual
address of the proposed location. Please correct and resubmit the first page of
the application.

Response: Lockhart House street address replaced address under Name of Facility.
The amended Page 1 is attached, Item 1.

2. Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 3

Please provide a copy of the applicant facility’s corporate charter and/or submit
documentation from the Tennessee Secretary of State that acknowledges and
verifies the type of ownership as identified by the applicant.

Response: Certificate of Existence/authorization from Secretary of State and Articles of
amendment to the Charter of Bradley Cleveland Services, Inc are attached.

3. Section A. (Applicant Profile) item 6

It is noted Lockhart house is owned by Bradley Cleveland Property Management
which is managed by Life Bridges, Inc. However, please provide a fully executed
option to lease or lease agreement, or other contractual agreement that
demonstrates Life Bridges, Inc. has a legal interest in the Lockhart site.

It is noted the Lockhart House will be managed by Life Bridges, Inc. Please
explain what type of services are involved in the management of the Lockhart
house. Is there an existing contract in providing management services? If so,
please provide.

Response: Bradley Cleveland Property Management is an entity of Life Bridges, Inc.
(formerly Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc.). Bradley Cleveland Property Management
and Life Bridges, Inc. each have a federal tax id number. Please find attached the
Department of State Articies of Amendment to the Charter (Nonprofit) documenting the
name change from Care and Growth Home, Inc. to Bradley/Cleveland Property
Development and Management, Inc., Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc./Care and Growth
Home, Inc. Board Resolution/Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation demonstrating
the relationship between Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc. (currently Life Bridges, Inc.)
and Bradley/Cleveland Property Development and Management, Inc., and the deed to
Lockhart House.

Life Bridges’ Maintenance Department provides oversight of all property maintenance
and repair.



2  Life Bridges, Inc. CN1605-017 Supplemental 1 SUPPLEM ENTAL #1
May 27, 2016
10:30 am

4. Section A. (Applicant Profile) Item 4 and item 6 (Legal Interest in the site of the
Institution)

Your response is noted. For the benefit of the Agency members and reviewers,
please provide a brief description of the applicant, Life Bridges, Inc. Please
include in your description the mission of the not-for-profit corporation, the types
of services it provides, and the locations of its operating facilities.

Response: Life Bridges provides a comprehensive range of habilitation services for
adults with intellectual disabilities. Life Bridges is committed to providing exceptional
services to the individuals served, their families, and community to promote
independence, respect, and trust while meeting its social and financial responsibilities.
Life Bridges believes all people have the right to live, work, and socialize in their
community. Abilities are a primary focus rather than disabilities. Life Bridges believes
persons served should have the freedom to function in an open, non-restrictive
environment consistent with the rights of other people their age. These beliefs are the
impetus for promoting opportunities for all people to choose where they live, work and
with whom they develop relationships.

Life Bridges believes the provision of quality services is strengthened by a commitment
to integrity. Services are based upon a strong commitment to ethical behavior, quality
services and supports, innovation, teamwork, and compassion. These core values
provide the impetus that results in changed lives and quality of life for each individual
served by Life Bridges.

Life Bridges’ services include residential services, personal assistance services, day
services, supported employment services, medical services, therapies, social services,
respite services, and Intermediate Care Facility Services (ICF/IID). Residential and
respite services are provided through homes throughout Bradley County. Day Services,
pre-vocational services, and supported employment services are provided through the
main center. Therapy services include physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational
therapy, behavioral therapy, and nutritional therapy. The medical clinic hosts two
physicians, a physician’s assistant, and a nurse practitioner along with a staff of nurses
and provides primary care physician services for individuals who choose that service.
The ICF/IID serves twenty individuals in four homes located throughout the county.

The following is a list of the facilities operated by Life Bridges, Inc.

Main Office 764 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311

Hunt Opportunity Ctr. 764 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
Residential-Annex Building 764 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
4755 Frontage Road, Cleveland TN 37312

1100 Blythe Ferry Road, Cleveland TN 37312



3 Life Bridges, inc. CN1605-017 Supplemental 1

3745 Adkisson Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3004 Pleasant Grove Road, Cleveland TN 37311
2420 Hensley Road, Cleveland TN 37312

2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland TN 37311

2611 Bower Lane, Cleveland TN 37311

110 Country Club Drive, Cleveland TN 37311
131 Crossing Place, Cleveland TN 37323

2021 Glenwood Drive, Cleveland TN 37311

207 Kile Lake Road, Cleveland TN 37323

209 Kile Lake Road, Cleveland TN 37323

415 Mohawk Drive NW, Cleveland TN 37312
713 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
729 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
737 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
3510 Pinecrest Avneue, Cleveland TN 37311
168 Savannah Ridge Trail, Cleveland TN 37323
2311 Wolfe Drive, Cleveland TN 37311

5101 Bradley Street, Cleveland TN 37312

4001 Dalton Pike, Apt. A, Cleveland TN 37311
4011 Dalton Pike, Apt. D, Cleveland TN 37323
4015 Dalton Pike, Apt. F, Cleveland TN 37323
2630 Lynda Circle, Cleveland TN 37323

3924 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3934 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3944 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3954 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3964 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
3984 Morningside Drive, Cleveland TN 37312
690 Old Chattanooga Pike, Cleveland TN 37311
3915 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

3935 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

3955 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

3965 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

3975 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

3985 Pryor Road, Cleveland TN 37312

2800 Rogers Drive, Cleveland TN 37323

2206 Southfork Road, Cleveland TN 37323
3370 Waterlevel Hwy, Cleveland TN 37323

SUPPLEMENTAL #1

May 27, 2016
10:30 am
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5. Section B, Project description, Item 1
Please explain HCBS: Home and Community Base Services (HCBS)
Response:
Federal HCBS Waivers

The 1915(c) waivers are one of many options available to states to allow the
provision of long term care services in home and community based

settings under the Medicaid Program. States can offer a variety of services under
an HCBS Waiver program. Programs can provide a combination of standard
medical services and non-medical services. Standard services include but are
not limited to: case management (i.e. supports and service coordination),
homemaker, home health aide, personal care, adult day health services,
habilitation (both day and residential), and respite care. States can also propose
"other" types of services that may assist in diverting and/or transitioning
individuals from institutional settings into their homes and community.

Tennessee’s Administration of the HCBS waiver

The Statewide Waiver (0128.R05) serves adults with intellectual disabilities and
children under age six with developmental delays who qualify for and, absent the
provision of services provided under the Statewide Waiver, would require placement
in a private Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities
(ICF/ID).

The Statewide Waiver offers a continuum of services that are selected by each
person supported pursuant to a person-centered planning process and support each
person's independence and full integration into the community, including opportunities
to seek employment and work in competitive integrated settings and engage in
community life. Services are delivered in a manner which ensures each individual's
rights of privacy, dignity, respect and freedom from coercion and restraint; optimizes
individual initiative, autonomy, and independence in making life choices; and are
delivered in a manner that comports fully with standards applicable to HCBS settings
delivered under Section 1915(c) of the Social Security Act, including those
requirements applicable to provider-owned or controlled homes, except as supported
by the individual's specific assessed need and set forth in the person-centered
Individual Support Plan.
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May 27, 2016
10:30 am
The Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (DIDD) serves as the
Operational Administrative Agency for this waiver, which is administered under the
oversight of the Bureau of TennCare.

Services offered by the Tennessee HCBS Statewide Waiver

Adult Dental Services

Behavioral Respite Services

Behavior Services

Employment and Day Services
Environmental Accessibility Modifications
Family Model Residential Support
Individual Transportation Services
Intensive Behavior Residential Services
Medical Residential Services

Nursing Services

Nutrition Services

Occupational Therapy Services
Orientation and Mobility Services for Impaired Vision
Personal Assistance

Personal Emergency Response Systems
Physical Therapy Services

Residential Habilitation

Respite

Semi Independent Living

Specialized Medical Equipment & Supplies & Assistive Technology
Speech, Language, & Hearing Services
Supported Living

Support Coordination

Transitional Case Management

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD

Please clarify if applicant will request Consent Calendar for the proposed
project. If so, please specify the reasons for requesting Consent Calendar
by addressing each of the three criteria: 1) Need, 2)Economic feasibility,
and 3)Contribution to the Orderly development of Health Care.

Response: The letter requesting the consent calendar is attached.
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10:30 am
What is the current square footage of each bedroom in the existing home
and the square footage of each bedroom in the proposed ICFIID home?

Response:

Cate House (existing home) Lockhart House (proposed home)
Bedroom 1: 166 square feet (1 person) Bedroom 1: 122 square feet (1person)
Bedroom 2: 178 square feet (2 persons) Bedroom 2: 110 square feet (1person)
Bedroom 3: 166 square feet (2 persons) Bedroom 3: 122 square feet (1 person)
Bedroom 4: 190 square feet (1 person) Bedroom 4: 140 square feet (1 person)

Bedroom 5: 122 square feet (1person)
Bedroom 6: 122 square feet (1 person)

What is the age of the Cate home?

Response: Cate House is 21 years old.

What is the age of the Lockhart House home?
Response: Lockhart house is 32 years old.

What is the driving distance between the current home and the proposed
home?

Response: The driving distance between the two homes is 8.0 miles (see
attachment)

Cate House is located at 2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland TN 37311 and Lockhart
House is located at 3745 Adkisson Drive Cleveland TN 37311.

6. Section B. (Plot Plan)

Your response is noted. However, please indicate the location of the
structure on the site and resubmit.

Response: See attachment Plot Plan with identified structure Lockhart House

Tennessee Code Annotated 33-2-418 indicates that the DMHDD “shall not
license more than two (2) such residential facilities with five hundred (500)
yards in direction from other such facilities hosing service recipients.
Please verify the proposed ICF/IDD facility is not located at least 500 yards
from other similar facilities.
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Response: Lockhart House is located 0.8 miles from the next closest similar
facility. See attached map.

7. Section B (Floor Plan)

The floor plan is noted. However, if approved, please clarify the plans for the
extra 4 bedrooms in the proposed home.

Response: Plans for the extra bedrooms are office space, sensory/quiet activity space,
and therapy space.

8. Section C, Need Item 1
State Health Plan

Please discuss how the prosed project will relate to the 5 Principles for achieving
Better Health found in the State Health Plan.

1. The purpose of the State Health Plan is to improve the health of Tennesseans.

Response: Each person’s health is the result of the interaction of individual behaviors,
social factors, the environment, health care, and our genetic endowment. The State
Health Plan serves to facilitate the collaboration of state agencies and stakeholders to
improve health with respect to these factors, focusing particularly on behaviors, social
factors, and the environment.

Environmental: The proposed project will enlarge the living space of the individuals
affected by the proposal. Lockhart House has ten bedrooms; six will be used for
bedrooms providing each individual their own personal space. The remaining bedrooms
will be repurposed for therapy uses, sensory/activity rooms, and sitting areas. Lockhart
House offers space to retreat to a quieter environment to destress while, at the same
time, providing roomy areas for socialization. A private bedroom offers the individual
served the opportunity of choice of social or private time. Having two living areas in the
home offers the choice of socialization within small groups or a larger group.

Behavioral: Each person served will have a private room to retreat to when they are
feeling anxious or when another house mate is feeling anxious and having extreme
behaviors. A place to avoid undesired stimulus will decrease anxiety in the persons
served which improves the overall health of the individual. With this move we should
see a decrease in anxiety, behaviors, and self-injurious behaviors (SIB’s). A reduction in
these behavioral issues could result in the reduction of medications prescribed for these
challenges.
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Social factors: The outcomes impacted will be behaviors and socialization of the person
served. A reduction in behaviors due to anxiety will be looked as success. A decrease in
anxiety in the persons will increase opportunities for socialization with persons served.

ICF/IID event management is conducted weekly. Behavioral trends are monitored
through event documentation and will indicate the success/challenges of the move. All
six individuals affected by this project receive ongoing behavioral therapy and are
followed by their Primary Care Physician and Psychiatrist for mental health issues.
These professionals will also be tracking the success/challenges of the move through
the event documentation and observation/interview with the individuals.

2. Every citizen should have reasonable access to health care.

Response: Geographical: There will not be an appreciable change in access as
Lockhart House is located on 2 miles closer to the nearest local emergency room and
hospital than Cate House.

Insurance: There will be no changes in insurance coverage.

Technology: The larger space allows for more advanced equipment and needed
equipment to be located onsite.

Disparity in types of services: At present time there is a need for Medical Residential
and Supportive Living homes in the HCBS waiver. This proposal will open up a home
that may be used as a Medical Residential home. This will provide more opportunities
for individuals to receive needed medical services in the home.

3. The State’s health care resources should be developed to address the needs of
Tennesseans while encouraging competitive markets, economic efficiencies and
the continued development of the state’s health care system?

Response: The private rooms and larger space will decrease self-injurious behaviors,
anxiety and stress. This decrease will create less medical interventions needed,
therefore decreasing medical expenses. It may also result in the decreased need for
medications which will reduce health care cost.

This proposal will make available a home that may be used as Medical Residential
home. This opportunity encourages economic efficiency by creating a more cost
efficient way to provide accessible services to a greater number of people. Many of our
people served in the medical residential model qualify for an ICFADD or nursing home
but are able to be served at a lower more efficient cost in a community setting.

The state and national move toward greater choice of heaith care services provides
more accessibility to health care providers and opportunity for competition in health care
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services. Advertisement and description of services in brochures, website, and annual
Quality Assurance Analysis that Life Bridges will present to the general public will allow
us to compete in the in the health care market.

4. Every citizen should have confidence that the quality of heaith care is
continually monitored and standards are adhered to by health care providers.

Response: The final project is regulated by multiple entities that require quality health
care providers. As in the past, Life Bridges will continue to meet the standards put forth
by CMS, CARF, Licensure, and individual health boards for all clinicians such as
Nurses, Physician Assistants, Medical Doctors, Physical Therapist, Behavior Analyst,
Speech and Language Therapist and all other licensed clinicians.

The final project is regulated by multiple entities that require health care providers to
obtain training and official continuing education credits and hours. As in the past, Life
Bridges will continue to meet the standards put forth by CMS, CARF, Licensure, and
individual health boards for all clinicians such as Nurses, Physician Assistants, Medical
Doctors, Physical Therapist, Behavior Analyst, Speech and Language Therapist and all
other licensed clinicians.

5. The state should support the development, recruitment, and retention of a
sufficient and quality health care workforce.

Response: This project will move staff from Cate House to Lockhart House but will not
alter the number of employees.

It will provide an improved environment for the existing workforce in both ICF/IID and
Medical Residential services.

9. Section C. (Need) item 1 (General Criteria-Relocation)
Please complete a. and b. below.

SERVICE SPECIFIC CRITERIA AND STANDARD REVIEW

CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, EXPANSION, AND REPLACEMENT OF HEALTH
CARE INSTITUTIONS :

For relocation or replacement of an existing licensed health care institution:

a. The applicant should provide plans which include costs for both
renovation and relocation, demonstrating the strengths and weaknesses of
each alternative.
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Response:

Plan for Renovation of Cate House

Cost:

$87,032.00 - Add-on two bedrooms with closets (178sq’ each) with access corridor, exit
doors and sprinkler expansion. (150sq’). 506sq’x $172.00/sq’.

$8,550.00 - Relocate two closets and create corridor in existing structure to access
one existing bedroom and two new bedrooms. 95sq’x $90.00/sq’.

$7,500.00 - Upgrade and expand existing HVAC system to handle additional square
footage.

$2,500.00 - Relocate House Generator

$60,000.00 - Site Preparation — Back fill dirt approx. 450cu yards, compact and
excavate.

$165,582.00 - Estimated total cost — 601sq’x $275.00/sq’

*Cost/square foot input used from CON approved applications 2013 —
2015 for Nursing Home Construction per Square Foot (Median Range)

Weaknesses:

- The home is landlocked on the front and two sides and would not be conducive
to an addition according to the existing house plan. The backside of the house _
where the house plan would be conducive to an addition would require excessive
backfilling since the grade elevation drops 15’ at a steep decline 6’ beyond the
back wall.

- The home is greatly needed AS IS with no renovation required to use as a Med
Res 4 person home ASAP.

- Proposed Lockhart home, funding for which is being phased out by the State, will
require costly renovation to convert to a duplex supported living home or be sold.

- The clients living in the current home will be affected adversely by the new
construction and alteration of the home.

- The cost of transitional housing for the individuals during the renovation would
have to be considered.

- The living room space (360 square feet) is inadequate for a 6 person home with
staff.

- Renovation cost is estimated at $165,582.00. The proposed project cost is
estimated to be $114,064.00.
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Strengths:
- There are no real strengths to a plan involving renovating Cate House rather than
relocating to Lockhart House.

Plan for Relocating to Lockhart House

Cost:
See Project Costs Chart (p 51 in CON application submitted 5/6/16)
Total estimated project cost: $114,064.
Weaknesses:
- There are no appreciable weaknesses.
Strengths
- There are minimal renovation needs to prepare the home.
- There is a generous living and dining area which will help with behavior
challenges.
- Cate House will be available to meet a need for a medical residential home.
- The individuals served will have a private bedroom and double the number of
bathrooms available for their use.
- Transitional living issues during renovation will be avoided by not renovating
Cate House.
- This plan is more cost effective.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that there is an acceptable existing or
projected future demand for the proposed project.
Response: There has been only 1 bed change in ICF/IID services in Bradley
County in the last five years. That bed was filled within two months. This low
turnover rate has existed throughout the history of ICF/IID services in Bradley
County. Using that trend to project into the future, there should be no concern
about being able to maintain the occupancy rate at Lockhart House. The change
is an upgrade in services for the individuals at Cate House. Future ICF/IID
service recipients will be grateful for a private bedroom, plenty of bathrooms and
ample common areas in their home.

10. Section C. (Need) Item 1 (Service Specific Criteria-ICF/IID Facilities)

B. Service Area 1.

Please complete the following table of driving distances and driving time for basic
services from the proposed ICF/ID location:
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Driving Distance table
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Service Closest Location | Driving Distance Driving Time
Nearest Cleveland 0.0 located in 0.0 located in
Incorporated City Cleveland City limits | Cleveland City limits
Hospital Tennova 2.8 miles 6 minutes
Physician Offices | Varies

EMS Fire Station Cleveland Fire 1.7 miles 4 minutes
Dept. Guthrie St
Day Treatment (if | Life Bridges Inc. 7.1 miles 13 minutes

applicable)
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11. Section C (Need), Item 3

The response regarding the proposed service area is noted. Please note if this
facility will be located near families and relatives of the identified residents who
will be placed in this facility.

The houses are only 8 miles apart so the proximity to family and relatives of the
residents remains functionally unchanged. Some of the men do have family in
Cleveland. Others have family within a 1-3 hour drive. The move will alter the distance
away from or toward family members by a maximum of 15 minutes.

12. Section C, Economic Feasibility, Item 5

Your response is noted. Please complete the following table identifying the
project’s gross charge, average deduction from operating revenue, and average
net charge per patient day. The applicant should divide the total patient days in
Year One of the Projected Data Chart into the total gross charges, deductions
from operating revenue total, and total net charges to calculate the charges.

Year One Year Two |

Average Gross Charge
(Gross charges/total 1,225,994/2,190 =559.81 | 1,232,993/2,190=563.01
days)

Average Deduction
(Total Deductions/total 0 0
days)

Average Net Charge
(Total Net Operating 84,553/2,190=38.61 77,124/2,190=35.22
Revenueltotal days)

In addition, please indicate the percentage of resident SSI (supplemental security
income) funds that are dedicated for care expenses. Please indicate if SSI is used
for rent or for personal care services. In addition, please indicate if client food
stamps are used for food expenses.

Response: Percentage of SSI funds dedicated for care expense = ZERO

SSlis NOT used for rent or personal care services, no ICF/ID client’s receive food
stamps.
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13. Section C. (Need) Item 4 (Population Demographics)
Your response to this item is noted. Using population data from the Department of
Health, enrollee data from the Bureau of TennCare, and demographic information from

the US Census Bureau, please complete the following table and include data for each
county in your proposed service area.

Populations Table

Variable Bradle | Polk McMin | Meigs | Monro | Tennesse
y County | n County | e e
County County County
Current year 13,999 | 2,872 1,885 8,813 7,318 753,462
(CY), Age 65+
Projected Year | 17,879 | 3,680 11,089 | 2,677 10,398 | 1,091,516
(PY), Age 65+
Age 65+, % 14% 12.3% | 18.7% 177% |19.1% | 16%
Change
Age 16.9% [21.1% |204% [21.9% |21.7% |16.0%
65+,%Total(PY
)
CY, Total 08,963 | 16,825 |52,266 |11,753 |44,519 |6,346,105
Population
PY Total 105,549 | 17,442 | 54,449 |12,221 | 47,980 |6,812,005
Population
Total Pop. % 3.9% 2.1% 2.3% 2.0% 4.3% 4.3%
Change i
TennCare 23,201 | 4,434 12,979 | 3,373 12,297 | 1,534,367
Enrollees
TennCare 23% 26% 25% 29% 28% 24%
Enrollees as %
of Total
Population
Median Age 38 43 42 43 42 38 years
years years years years years
Median $41,583 | $39,43 | $39,644 | $33,06 | $37,20 | $44,361
Household 4 1 2
Income
Population % 18% 18% 18% 21% 19% 18%
below Poverty
Level

Sources: httn:/lcensusreporter.ora/profiles/04000US47-tennessee/counties

http://Iwww.census.gov/gquickfacts
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14. Section C. (Need) Item 6 — No projected utilization with documented
methodology

Please provide the projected number of annual bed resident days and the
details regarding the methodology used to project “resident bed” days
during the first year of operation and resident bed days during the second
year of operation.

Response: Resident bed days are 365 days per year times the number of
persons in the home (6) for a total of 2,190 resident days per year. No changes
in occupancy are expected in year one or year two, therefore, the resident bed
days for each year are 2,190.

Using the chart below, please provide the occupancy and utilization for the
past three years for the ICF/IIDs currently located in Bradley County.

2013 | 2013 | 2013 | 2014 | 2014 | 2014 | 2015 | 2015 | 2015
County | Facility/Address | Lic. | ADC % Lic. | ADC % Lic. | ADC %
Beds Occup. | Beds Occup. | Beds Occup.

Bradley LBI/Cate/2601
Bower Ln SE, 6 6 100 6 6 100 6 6 100
Cleveland, TN
37323
Bradley | LBI/Edgemon/209
Kile Lake Rd SE, 4 4 96 4 4 100 4 4 100
Cleveland, TN
37323
Bradley | LBI/Mcintire/207
Kite Lake Rd SE, 4 4 100 4 4 100 4 4 100
Cleveland, TN
37323
Bradley | LBIMright/2611
Bower Ln SE, 6 6 100 6 6 100 6 4 100
Cleveland, TN
37323

15, Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 1. (Project cost chart)

The applicant Letter of Intent notes a Project cost of $585,000 while the provided
Project costs chart lists $114,064. Please clarify.

The foliowing definition regarding items acquired by lease in Tennessee Health
Services and Development Agency Rule 0720-2-01 (12)(d) states “If the
acquisition is by lease, the cost is either the fair market value of the property, or
the total amount of the lease payments, whichever is greater.”

Please provide documentation of the fair market values of both the land and the
building and the calculation of the total amount of any applicable lease payments
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over the term of the lease. Please insert the greater amount in line B.1 of the
project costs cost and resubmit a revised chart.

Please provide documentation from licensed construction industry professional
(i.e. architect, builder, engineer) describing the project’s facility required
modifications and his/her estimate of the cost to complete the modifications to
provide a physical environment, according to applicable federal state and local
construction codes, standards, specifications, and requirements, including the
latest AIA Guidelines for Design and construction of Health Care Facilities and
the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Response: It was discovered in the process of gathering information for the
supplemental package that only the fire safety construction costs had been added to the
Projected Costs Chart. The construction costs were added as documented in the
architect's estimate. The construction cost estimate should be $117,064 with $3,000
CON filing fee and the value of the property is $505,000 for a total estimated project
cost of $622,064. See attached Project Costs Chart and other replacement pages.

16. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 3 (Comparison of the cost per square
foot to other ICF/IID projects).

Your response is noted. Please compare the renovation cost per square foot of
construction to similar ICF/IID projects recently approved by the Health Services
and Development Agency.

Response:
1. Michael Dunn Center, CN1602-006

A 10 bedroom home was renovated to become a four bedroom ICF/IID home.
The projected renovation cost per square foot for this approved project was
$54.60.

2. Michael Dunn Center, CN1509-038
A 10 bedroom home was renovated to become a four bedroom ICF/IID home.
The projected renovation cost per square foot for this approved project was
$37.50.

Summary: The projected renovation cost per square foot for the renovation of
Lockhart House is $21.38 thus making it less than either of the comparable
projects.

17. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) item 4 (Historical Data Chart)
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Historical Data chart
Please specify the unit of measure for A. Utilization Data, (i.e. days)

Please indicate the actual number of patient days provided in Years 2013, 2014,
and 2015 on line A. Utilization Data in the Historical Data Chart. Please review and
resubmit.

It is noted the applicant used “thousands” for the amounts included in the
historical data chart. Please apply the actual dollar amounts and include the
revisions in the Historical Data chart.

Please briefly discuss the bed taxes for 2013-2015.

It is noted the applicant applied a bed tax as a contractual adjustment for 2013,
2014, and 2015. However, please designate the bed taxes in D. 8 “other
expenses.”

Why is there $9,000 designated as interest under Capital Expenditures for 2013
and 20147

The Historical Data Chart shows no Provision for charity Care and/or Bad Debt.
Please explain.

Please provide a total for the capital expenditures line.

Please complete the following for line “D.8. Other Expenses (Specify) in the
Historical Data Chart.

Response:
The unit of measure for utilization data = 365 x 6 beds = 2190 days.
Historical Data Chart revised and included.

Bed Tax = tax levy form the State of Tennessee based on payments received from
TennCare.

The Bed Tax was moved to “other expenses” as requested.

The $9,000 that was designated as interest under Capital Expenditures has been
moved to interest under Operating Expenses (it's the mortgage interest paid).

There is no provision for bad debt because there is no bad debt.

Life Bridges has no anticipated Capital Expenditures budgeted.
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See attached Historical Data Chart — Other Expenses (spreadsheet)
Projected Data Chart
Please specify the unit of measure for A. Utilization Data, (i.e. days)

It is noted the applicant used “thousands” for the amounts included in the
historical data chart. Please apply the actual dollar amounts and include the
revisions in the Projected Data Chart.

Please indicate the number of resident days projected in Year One and Year Two
on line A. Utilization Data in the Projected Data Chart. In addition, it appears there
are calculation errors in Net Operating income (loss) lines for 2017 and 2018.
Please revise and resubmit.

Please complete the following for Line D.8. Other Expenses (Specify).
Response:

Unit of Measure for utilization data = 2,190 days

Projected Data chart revised and attached.

See attached Projected Data Chart — Other Expenses (spreadsheet)

18. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) 6.a and 6.b

The Current per diem rate of $585.77 is noted. However, please provide the
prosed per diem rate as reflected in the Projected Data Chart.

The three homes of Wright, Mclintire, and Edgemon are noted. Please indicate the
location of the three homes.

It appears the applicant’s per diem is lower than the three ICF/ID facilities listed.
Please discuss why this is so.

Please clarify what clinical services are included in the per diem charges.

Response:

Proposed (estimated) per diem rate for FY 2017 = $571.07

Proposed (estimated per diem rate for FY 2018 = $592.89 *addition of full-time staff,
health insurance costs

Wright House location is 2611 Bower Lane, Cleveland TN 37323
Mclntire House location is 207 Kile Lake Road SE, Cleveland, TN 37323
Edgemon House location is 209 Kile Lake Road SE, Cleveland, TN 37323
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Per diem rates are calculated based on that home’s expenses for the previous year.
Each home has residents with varying levels of need, medical needs and activities thus

expenses for each home vary.
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Clinical services include physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy,
behavioral therapy, nutritional therapy, nursing services, and medical costs not covered
by insurance.

19. Section C (contribution to Orderly Development) item 3. (Current & anticipated
Staffing)

A) Provide a staffing chart for this proposed home only which includes the
following:

Staffing Proposed (FTE) LBI/TN Dept. Workforce
Development prevailing wages
Resident Manager .50 FTE $13.13
Qualified ID Professional 25 FTE $14.42/$14.80
RN 25 FETE $20.58/27.10
LPN 2.0FTE $16.20
Direct Support Workers 18.0 FTE $9.50
Nutrition Therapist A0 FTE $38.85/29.26
Behavior Analyst ASFTE $31.22/30.83*closest match was
clinical psychologist.
Physical Therapist A5 FTE $40.95/44.61
Occupational Therapist 10 FTE $50.40/43.58
Speech Therapist ASFTE $36.00/37.83
Housekeeping Maintenance and 1.0 FTE $13.23
Grounds
Other Central Office Support 1.0 FTE $20.00
Personnel
Total 23.65 FTE $304.48

See attached Employment Wage Statistics for documentation of comparison source.

it is noted the staff of the proposed home will be shared with another home.
Please clarify where this home is located and the distance from the proposed

home.

Response: From the date of the transition to Lockhart House until the same process can
be completed for the second home, the distance between the two homes is 6.7 miles.
We anticipate submitting a request to relocate the other ICF/IID home to a renovated 10
bedroom home by February 2017. If that request is successful, the homes will be .8
miles apart. We are currently looking at strategies to provide the highest quality of care
to the residents impacted by the sharing of staff during the transition period.
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Itis noted Alisha Y. Gaines certification status is CCC-SLP. Please clarify the
licensure level of the certification and what CCC-SLP represents.

Response: CCC-SLP = Certificate of Clinical Competence-Speech Language
Pathology.

Ms. Gaines holds a Master of Arts in Communication Disorders.
20. Section C (contribution to Orderly Development) Item 7

Please provide the latest State of Tennessee Department of Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities licensure inspection.

See attached survey.
21. Project Completion Forecast Chart

The applicant entered June 1, 2016 as the Agency projected Initial Decision Date.
Please enter the agency initial decision date on the top of the Project completion
Forecast Chart and resubmit a replacement page. If the applicant is requesting
consent Calendar the earliest Initial Decision Date is July 27, 2016.

See attached Project Completion Forecast Chart
22. Proof of Publication

Response: It was confirmed via phone conversation that a full page of the newspaper
was supplied with the original copy of the application.
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1. Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution
Life Bridges, Inc
Name
3745 Adkisson Drive Bradley
Street or Route County
Cleveland TN 37311
City State Zip Code
2. Contact Person Available for Responses to Questions
Diana Jackson CEO
Name Title
Life Bridges, Inc. dljackson59@hotmail.com
Company Name Email address
764 Old Chattanooga pike Cleveland TN 37311
Street or Route City State Zip Code
CEO 423-421-6436 423-479-1492
Association with Owner Phone Number Fax Number
3. Owner of the Facility, Agency or Institution
Life Bridges, Inc. 423-472-5268
Name Phone Number
764 Old Chattanooga Pike Bradley
Street or Route County
Cleveland TN 37311
City State Zip Code
4. Type of Ownership of Control (Check One)
A. Sole Proprietorship F.  Government (State of TN or
g- E.art?edrsglgt . o Political Subdivision)
e R " Joint Venture
i i H.
D. Corporat!on (For Profit) oy ——— | Limited Liability Company
E. Corporation (Not-for-Profit) X " Other (Specify)

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND
REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

Tre Hargett, Secretary of State
Division of Business Services

William R. Snodgrass Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th FL
Nashviiie, TN 37243-1102

GINGER DAVIS July 20, 2015
PO BOX 29
CLEVELAND, TN 37364

T T T T Request Type: Certificate of Existence/Authorization --—igssuance Date: 07/20/2015 — —
Request #: 0169637 Copies Requested: 1

Document Receipt

Receipt # : 002154992 Filing Fee: $22.25
Payment-Credit Card - State Payment Center - CC #: 163743623 $22.25
Regarding: Life Bridges, Inc.
Filing Type: Nonprofit Corporation - Domestic Control # : 75281
Formation/Qualification Date: 08/01/1973 Date Formed: 08/01/1973
Status: Active Formation Locale: TENNESSEE
Duration Term: Perpetual Inactive Date:

Business County: BRADLEY COUNTY

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

I, Tre Hargett, Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee, do hereby certify that effective as of
the issuance date noted above

Life Bridges, Inc.
* is a Corporation duly incorporated under the law of this State with a date of incorporation and
duration as given above;

* has paid all fees, taxes and penalties owed to this State (as reflected in the records of the
Secretary of State and the Department of Revenue) which affect the existence/authorization of

the business;

* has filed the most recent annual report required with this office;

* has appointed a registered agent and registered office in this State;

* has not filed Articles of Dissolution or Articles of Termination. A decree of judicial dissolution

has not been filed.

Tre Hargett

Secretary of S\tlate

Processed By: Cert Web User erification #: 012858730

Phone (615) 741-6488 * Fax (615) 741-7310 * Website: http://tnbear.tn.gov/
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Articles of Amendment to the Charter of Bradley Cleveland Services, Inc.

Corporate Control Number 000075281

Pursuant to the provisions of section 48-60-105 of The Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, the
undersigned corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to its charter:
The name of the corporation as it appears of record is Bradley Cleveland Service, Inc.
The new name is Life Bridges, Inc.
Amendment is to be effective \ -2 0O~ 2O\O.
There are no changes to the Principal address Reglstered agent, or Reglstered address.
‘The corporation is a nonprofit corporation. -

The amendment is a name change only.
The amendment was duly adopted on December 20, 2010 by the board of directors. The

corporation has no members. Therefore no approval by members is required. All required

notice per T.C.A 48-60-102(b) was given.
6. Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by T.C.A. 48-60-301 of the Tennessee

oration act) was not required.

K s WS
Dr. Raymbnd Brown-Director

Peggy ﬁﬁﬁj’éeld»mrector %

Dr. L.E. Wooten-Director

n@;nm/-of?&m

|
T NP I R

non profit ¢

Martha McDowell-Director

Dawd Falr— |recl{)r

AN

%o 100

Ken Webb-Director Diana Jackson{Diirector
U:\Users\1 McCoin Paralegal\Corporate\Life Bridges Inc-Bradley Cleveland Services Inc{Articles of Amendment to the Charter of Bradley
Clieveland Services.doc
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For Office Usa Only

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
TO THE CHARTER

Corporate Filings (Nonprofit)
312 Eighth Avenug North
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower
Nashville, TN 37243

CORPORATE CONTROL NUMBER (IF KNOWN) 0091127

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 48-60-105 OF THE TENNESSEE NONPROFIT
CORPORATION ACT, THE UNDERSIGNED CORPORATION ADOPTS THE FOLLOWING ARTICLES
.OF AMENDMENT TO ITS CHARTER:

1. PLEASE INSERT THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION AS IT APPEARS OF RECORD:
Care_and Growth Home, Inc
IF CHANGING THE NAME, INSERT THE NEW NAME ON THE LINE BELOW:

Bradley/Cleveland Property Development and Management, Inc.

2. PLEASE MARK THE BLOCK THAT APPLIES:

[1 AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE WHEN FILED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE, 7/1/02 (MONTH, DAY, YEAR)
(NOTTOBE LATER THAN THE 90TH DAY AFTER THE DATE THIS DOCUMENTIS FILED,)IF NEITHER BLOCK IS CHECKED,
THE AMENDMENT WILL BE EFFECTIVEAT THETIME OF FILING.

—M
3. PLEASE INSERT ANY CHANGES THAT APPLY:

A. PRINCIPALADDRESS: 764 0ld Chattanooga Pike, SW
STREET ADDRESS
Cleveland TN [/ Bradley 17311 .
Ty STATE /COUNTY i ZIP CODE
B. REGISTEREDAGENT Walter C. Hunt
C. REGISTEREDADDRESS: _ 764 01d Chattanooga Pike, SW
STREET ADDRESS
eveland TN 37311 Rradlev
cITY v STATE ZIP CODE COUNTY -

0. OTHERCHANGES: None _ ]

4. THE CORPORATION IS A NONPROFIT CORPORATION.

5. THE MANNER (IF NOT SET FORTH IN THE AMENDMENT) FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF ANY EX-

CHANGE, RECLASSIFICATION, OR CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIPS IS AS FOLLOWS:
No memberships

6. THE AMENDMENT WAS DULY ADOPTED ON__04/ /6 = (MONTH , DAY, YEAR)
BY (Please mark the block that applies): !
[} THE INCORPORATORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED.

1 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED.
[] THE MEMBERS

7. INDICATE WHICH OF THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS APPLIES BY MARKING THE APPLICABLE
BLOCK:

B8 ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT (AS PERMITTED BY §48-60-301 OF THE
TENNESSEE NONPROFIT CORPORATION ACT) WAS NOT REQUIRED.

(] 'ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT WAS REQUIRED BY THE CHARTER AND WAS

OBTAINED. L e ) .
C'haiv mgd _ _ing,; /| G W
e oo e & Larhupinld
DATE e NAME OF SIGNER (TYFED OR. PRINTED) u
R Ty I LR F o 4] = RDA 1678
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Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc./
Care and Growth Home, Inc.
Board Resolution/Amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation

During the regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors’ of
i}j dley/Cleveland Services, Inc. and Care and Growth Homes, Inc. on:

jMM o?g QO& 72— A quorum was present.

Durlng a the regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors’ of
Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc. and Care and Growth Home, Inc. which serves
as one in the same. The Board of Directors’ approved to change the name of
Care and Growth Home, Inc. to Bradley/Cleveland Property Development and
Management, Inc. The name change will allow the function and purpose of the
corporation to be clearly defined in the community.

This new corporation will be called: Bradley/Cleveland Property
Development and Management, Inc.

After the proposed name change was presented and a motion was made for its’
approval and seconded, the following was approved by unanimous consent:

Walter C. Hunt, Executive Director, is hereby authorized to execute any and all
documents necessary for the change the name of Care and Growth Home, Inc.
to change the name of Care and Growth Home, Inc. to:

Bradley/Cleveland Property Development and Management, Inc.

Approved this ;‘Zg\ﬁ{ day of gfémmf?]’( A0

Bradley/Cleveland Services, Inc.
Care and Growth Home, Inc.

By: gdmzéé‘t / Qéiﬁé‘, _/_’
Secretary
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i Return of Organization Exempt F om Inco :
Form 990 g P WuﬁZb@P"s 2014

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except pri

P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be madhiQu30 am
Internal Revenue Service P> Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at www.irs.goviform990.

Department of lhe Treasury

A For the 2014 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07 /01/14  and ending_ 0 6/30/15

B Checkif applicable: |C Name of organization D Employer identification number

[ | Address change LIFE BRIDGES INC

I:l Name chan Doing business as 23-737433 6

i Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roomisuile E Telaphans numbar
|| witial return P O BOX 29 423-472-5268
Final return/ City or town, stale or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
1 terminaled

CLEVELAND TN 37364-0029 G Gross receipis$ 16,734,914

Ij Amended relurn F Name and address of principal officer:

D Applicalion pending DIANA JACKSON H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? D Yes No
PO BOX 29 H(b) Are all subordinates included? l_! Yes [_J No
CLEVELAND TN 37364-0029 If “No," altach a list. (see instructions)

| Tax pl stalus: le 501(c)(3) | soi(e)  ( ) {insert no.) ‘_| aga7(a){1) or I_ ] 527

J website: WWW.LIFEBRIDGESONLINE . COM

H{c) Group exemption number >

[ L Yearof formation: 1975 l M_ State of legal domicile: TN

K Form ofg[ganiznlinrr. m Corporation Trust [_I Association |_l Other P
: Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
8 CARE OF DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED PERSONS
c
:é; ..................
g 2 Check this box P D if the organlzatlon dlscontlnued ItS operatlons or dlsposed of more than 25% of |ts net assets
o8 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) o 3 12
,§ 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) _______________ 4 12
= 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2014 (Part V, line2a) 5 707
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . 6 | 45
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column ©), Ilne 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 S 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 14,307,426 15,753,678
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIIl, line2g) 1,063,596 854,967
% | 10 investment income (Part Vill, column (A), lines 3, 4, and7d) -83,577 9,914
@ | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c, and 11€) 64,547 116,355
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), line 12) ... 15,351,992 16,734,914
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) _ 0
@ | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 51 0) 11,298,801 12,195,314
@ | 16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11€) B _F_"_(_Z"
§- b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » e swe o
" | 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . ... ... .. . 2,907,888 2,781,460
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 14,206,689 14,976,774
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 I P 1,145,303 1,758,140
5 § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
% 20 Total assets (PartX, line16) 8,270,276 10,119,585
<2 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 2,573,119 2,664,288
25 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 _ 5,697,157 7,455,297

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sig n } Signature of officer

Date

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Here ) DIANA JACKSON

Type or print name and lille

Print/Type preparer's name F’ﬂ"-p‘ir aignalurb %/ Date Check lj if| PTIN
Paid JANICE L. HAYES Ll K é?/;/;r)( 24- | 10/06/15] setr-employed | P01072273

Preparer

timsneme > HARTING, BISHQP_/& ARRENDAI?E, PLLC FmsENd  62-1551418

Use Only 1040 WILLIAM WAY
Firm's addrass > CLEVEILAND 7 TN 37 3 12 - 4 3 63

Phone no 423"472"6543

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? {see instructions)

J}ﬂ Yes [ l No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
DAA

Form 990 (2014)
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1G406/2015 4 01 PM

om 990 P44 M

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

3. 5@4’1‘04 A’

Return of Organization

Itk ot

pt From Inco

Under section 501(c), 527, or'4947(a)(?) of the Internal R.evenue Cche (except privaanfﬂql,s)2°1 G __
» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made %
P Information about Form 990 and Its instructions Is at www.irs.qov/for '30 am

LippLEMENTAL 818 |

2014

A For the 2014 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07 /01/14  andending 06/30 /15

BRADLEY CLEVELAND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT,

B Checkif applicable: C Name of organization

Address change INC.

Doing business as

D Employer identification number

58-1413035

Name change - —
Number and streal (or P.0O. box if mail is nol defivered to street addiass)

P.O. BOX 29

Room/suile

€ Telaphone number

423-472-5268

Initial relurn
Fina! return/ Cily or town, stale or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
ferminated CLEVELAND TN 37364-0029 ——_— 171,360
Amended relum F Name and address of principal officer: N
Application pending DIANA JACKSON H{a) ls this a group relurn for subordinales? Yes X No
PO BOX 29 H{b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No
CLEVELAND ™ 37364-002 9 If “No.” altach a list. (see inslructions)
I Ta pl stalus: X s501cxa) 501(c)  ( ) <« (inserl no.) 4847{a)(1) or - 527
J  Website: P> N/A H{c) Group exemplion numbed®
K Form ol omanization; X w [ Trust Association Other P> | L Year of larmalion: M Stale of lagal domicile;
Summary 3
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:
@ RESIDENTIAL SERVICES TO MENTALLY HANDICAPPED
S bt oo smay SR A ST
£
g 2 Check this box P> if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
o 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a) . ... .. ... ... ) 3 12
‘g 4 Number of independent voling members of the governing body (Part VI, line ) 4 12
:§ .5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2014 (Part V, line2a) ... ... 5 0
2 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if NECESSANY) e 6 0
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vili, column (C), line 12~ 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form890-T, line34 .. .. ...................0..ooooeieenes T 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl line 1h) 79,795 77,982
5?, 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) L 39,298 93,378
= | 10 Investment income (Part VIli, column (A}, lines 3, 4, and Td)y e sesEEsE L 0
® | 11 Other revenue (Part VIl column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c,and 11e) 0
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), ine 12) 119,093 171,360
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3} 0
14 Benefils paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A)dined) . 0
@ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 0
@ | 16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0
:(I’- b Total fundraising expenses (Part 1X, column (D), line25) 0 _______ S i
W | 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11¢=24e) . . ... 107,535 74,867
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) _ 107,535 174,867
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline 18 fromline 12 . . .0 000 11,558 -3,507
= % Beginning of Current Year End of Year
ﬁé 20 Total assets (PartX,line16) 362,720 273,136
<% 21 Totalliabilities (Part X, line 26) R 160,155 74,078
25| 22 Net assets or fund balances. Sublract line 21 fromline 20 . . ... ..o 202,565 199,058

a Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retu

\rue, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

rn, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the besl of my knowledge and belief, it is

1

S|g n ’ Signature of officer Date
Here } __DIANA JACKSON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or print name and lille 2 .

Prinl/Type preparer's name Prepatgt’s signature Date Check if | PTIN
Paid JANICE L. HAYES il (4 é 10/06/15| seremployed |
Preparer | oerame  » _ HARTING, BISH@P/& ARRENDALE,/)PLLC Firm's EIND -
Use Only 1040 WILLIAM @WKY :

Firm's address ¥ CLEVELAND, TN 37312-4363 Phoae no 423-472-6543

No

i\flay the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

Yes

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
DAA

Form 99_0 (2014)



1

E -

-

=

>
—lwi| &

mM )
..M..,.E N &

o N o
ol 32
52 = =
pl.s
5
B
wum..r.
hNy
3
3

J
B
)

| o $ 0 $ 00000T $ 000°00T $ TYLIOL
Wa $ $ 000'00T $ 000'00T $ SHHA SHOQINY HAIT
3 buisiey |eJauag) ERIINER sasuadx3y uonduosag
P pun 4 © Juswabeue|y weliboid |elol
<L

(eoAo|dwia-uoN) @d1A18g 10} S99 Ja4j0 - b | aul 'Xi Hed ‘066 wlod
mucmEoﬂmww jelopo4 geoclyi-85
Wd 10:¥ GL0¢Z/9/0L




O

May 27, 2016
_ 10:30 am

|
TAX ID p-3 -33 f‘/?- Prepared by Robert W. Var:m'?ll. Jr.,
i 4 Attorney, Cleveland, TN b

] FOR FIVE DOLLARS ($5.00) and other valuablie cons%darayionc
te 1t paid, RIDGESIDE ENTERPRISES, a Partnership composed of

Joe G. Rodgers, Jr., Loye Hamilton, A. T. Hamilton and f
James B. Eldredge, have this day bargained and sold, an% do

hereby sell, trensfer end convey unto CARE & GROWTH HOME, INC.

whose address for tax purposes is 7 __Sre [ Jf f

/’ f— . i
gtve/n( ” S 393]) |, its Successors and assigns, forever

in fee simple, the following described real eptate in thé
Third Civil District of Bradley County, Tennessee, to-wit:

run thence with the Southwesternmost line of Moore, North
55° 53' West, 330.0 feet, to an iron pin corner; thence
South 23° 25°¢ West, 175.0 feet, to a corner; thence
Sonth 659 581 East, 330.0 feet, to an iron Pin set in the
Northwesternmost line of Adkisson Drive; and run thence
with said line of said Drive, North 23° 25! East, 175.0

feet, to the BEGINNING, all as shown by survey of Cleveland
Surveying Company .

BEING part of the real estate Cohveyed-to Ridgeside Enterprises,
a Partnership, by Deed of Reuben Moore and wife, Eva W. Moore,

dated 28 September 1979 recorded in ROBCT in Deed Book 249, page
443,

The 1984 taxes are to be prorated between the parties.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said real estate unto the said

CARE & GROWTH HOME, INC., its successorsg and assigns, forever

in fee simple.

We covenant that we are lawfully seized and possessed
of said real estate; that we have a good and lawful right to
sell and convey the same; that the titlelthereto is clear,
free and unencumbered, andlwe will forever WARRANT AND DEFEND
the title thereto against all lawful'claims.

e I

e e
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‘gTATE OF TENNESSEE

. SMM“ A -.&’Lph‘camj’ /)WP-H& !f&M(p

And We, AMY RODGERS, JACKIE HAMILTON, YVONNE P. HAMILTON

JEAN ELDREDGE, jb}m in this instrument to convey any right

or interest in éhe property-which we may possess by law o otherwise. -

'WITNESS our signatures this 1 February 1984.
P :
. RIDGESIDE ENTERPRISES,
iy a Partnership

2 &—/—ﬁ'b""vé})ih

By

i ; Z‘;o_e G. Rodgers(/)dr. Y
i , By %
) e Hami ¢
. By é?u:E: é ﬁ;

T T. Hamilton
BYI /

&James B. B
Lot

redge

COUNTY OF BRADLEY

pefore me,
afor;esaid, persona
As T. HAMILTON

, of the
y appeare JOE G. RODGEHS, JRa
and JAMES B, ELDREDGE, with whom I am personally
scquainted, and who, upon oath, acknowledged themselves to be
partners of RIDGESIDE ENTERPRISES, the within named bargainois
a partnership, and that they as such partners,
to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein
ccnf:.ained by signing ‘the name of the partnership by themselves
as partners. ¢ , :
. My Commission Expires 213 /& . /
%f#ITlI\‘IESS my hand and Seal this 1774 T o i

STATE OF TENNESSEE -
COUNTY OF BRADLEY ) s

3 Sl
) on this Z  gay of February 1984, before me persion_allg__'qol,},,ﬂ
appeared AMY aogcz‘as, JACKIE HAMILTON, YVONNE P. . “

JEAN ELDREDGE, to meé knovn bto be
executed 'the foregoing inatrunent,
exacuted the same as their free pc

. My Commission Expires 3
WITHNESS my hand and Seal the

and acknowledged that they-.,
and deed. 0

and

state and Countty
LOYE HAMILTON,

being authorized 5O

Yy . . QRS PET )

HAMILTON, edg, 2 &
the persons described in, ‘Bnd Wiy L

SUPPLEMENTAL #1

. M
2y k'i},:ms
1,5

t
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3. Seohor A Kpplank Pable, Thanls

ihe undersigned _’%AMM ereby maley octh tha ]
' is the greater of the actual consideration or vcﬂua‘_gi‘- W, ]

- 8.0 L,.500.20-
{ho property hereinapove deacribed a8

Sworn to this Egdayoi

My Commissiongrenpidige

{ the date of this inam?t W

I "
ZSUPPLEMENTAL #1

" “May 27[j2016
10:30 ap

L o
S

Recording

Tees collected

by Register: Ciato Tax ey
Clark Feo, ’f'h._ o
STATE OF TENNESSEE, BRADLEY COUNTY
THE  FOREGOMG =
I HOTE-BG
' /,y 1
PAGE

HECORIIRG F
{ECEPT KO

o SR

—————



o 33 G Seton b Poject Desr PSOPHYEMENTAL #1
May 27, 2016
10:30 am

YOUR TRIP TO: CIOCIOGa

3745 Adkisson Dr NW

14MIN | 8.0MI =

Trip time based on traffic conditions as of 9:17 PM on May 19, 2016. Current Traffic: Moderate

@ 1. Startout going east on Bower Ln SE toward Blackburn Rd SE.

o

Then 0.18 miles 0.18 total mile:

5 2. Turnrightonto Blackburn Rd SE.

Then 0.04 miles 0.21 total mile:

ﬁ 3. Turn left onto APD 40/US-74 E/US-64 Byp E/TN-40 Byp. Continue to follow
APD 40/US-64 Byp E/TN-40 Byp.
If you reach Fritz St SE you've gone a little too far.

Then 2.43 miles 2.65 total mile:

1‘ 4. Stay straight to go onto TN-60.

Then 3.97 miles 6.62 total mile

> 5. Turn right onto Westside Dr NW.

Then 0.68 miles 7.29 total mile.

h 6. Turn left onto Norman Chapel Rd NW,

Then 0.09 miles 7.39 total mile:

> 7. Turn right onto Adkisson Dr NW.

Then 0.61 miles 8.00 total mile

o) 8. 3745 Adkisson Dr NW, Cleveland, TN 37312-2817, 3745 ADKISSON DR NW

¥ is on the left.

Your destination is just past Village Oak Cir NW.

If you reach James Asbury Dr NW you've gone about 0.2 miles too far.

se of directions and maps is subject to our Terms of Use. We don't guarantee accuracy, route conditions or usability. You assume all risk of use.
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3745 Adkisson Dr, Cleveland, TN 37312 to 4755 Frontage Rd NW - GoogleMARPLEMEMTAL #1
May 27, 2016

'03030 ¢, 55(/4"'0" 8. [ lot Mah\ 10:30 am

3745 Adkisson Dr, Cleveland, TN 37312 to Drive 0.8 mile, 2 min
4755 Frontage Rd NW

Google Maps

"

A o

.‘%‘k,

!_ﬂnrmndw
3 L 75 H‘ 3

N e - ot s ; i Y o oy / B /& "o b et
e L el SN

Map data ©2016 Google 500 ft bl

|
: via Adkisson Dr and Frontage Rd NW 2 min
1 2 min without traffic 0.8 mile
via Adkisson Dr and Frontage Rd NW 16 min
0.8 mile

Google Maps

> 14 dmrm A~ a2 11" Ty 02T Tl OO T ANTINMNAIINIATTICES I T LY NNT L
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May 27, 2016
10:30 am

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY REPORT

3745 Adkisson Dr NW, Cleveland, TN 37312

Presented by

Lee Tate

Tennesee Real Edtate License: 00276838

Mobile: (423) 364-2085 | Fax: (423) 478-2331
leetate2790@yahoo.com
http:/Avww leetate.com

Century 21 1¢t Choice REALTORS
2075 N. Ocoee Street
Ceveland, TN 37311

.> 'R P R C‘*’""‘Jﬁﬂé‘ﬁi‘?ﬁ Eﬁ;tﬁﬂagics@uc Al Rights Resu'\-u:l @ 5/21/2016
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P R May 27, 2016
roperty Report 3745 Adigiasan DLW, Cleveland, TN 37312
3745 Adkisson Dr NW, Cleveland, TN 37312
" ' Property Facts Public Facts Listing Facts Refinements
Property Type Special Purpose _ - _ =
T e
e R e s R P
L T T i
g LT -
T s e
Extended Property Facts
Exterior Details
Topography ROLLING

Neighborhood Code FO1

This report contains data and information thatis publicly available and for licensed from third parties and is
provided toyou on an “as is" and "as available" basis. The information is not verified or guaranteed. Neither this
reportnorthe estimated value of a property is anappraisal of the property. Any valuation shown in this report has
been generated by use of proprietary computersoftware thatassembles publicly available property records and
certain proprietary data to arrive at an approximate estimate of a property's value. RPRand its information
providers shall not be liable for any claim orloss resulting from the content of, or errors or omissions in, information
contained in this report.

Public Facts

Owner Information

Owner Name ~ Care

‘Mailing Address 547 Spring St NwCleveland TN 373116057
"Mail Care-Of Name ~ GrowthHomeine

Legal Description
Parcel Number: Zoning: Census Tract: Abbreviated Description: City/Municipality/Township:

033 019.02 000 R3 470110112.024018 DIST:4 Cleveland, TN 37312
CITY/MUNI/TWP:CLEAVELAND

DISTRICT: 4

Assessed Values
Date Improvements Land Total Tax
2015 - e .
2014 - = = =

> i : eescuroen LG, Al Ri eseredd
o> RPR Copyigh 2016 Reclers ropsrty Resuroe L. Al Righs e 51212016
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Maps
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Legend: ® Subject Property
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Legend: ® Subject Property Legend: ® Subject Property
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CRS Data - Search Results ([P of
”ML Feus /*m ﬁeﬁﬁféﬁhe’?é%t k1

/,”
Lee Tate ’/L_sma%
Affilliate Broker
423-478-2332 Powered by =g
leetate2709@yahoo.com CRIData
-,A-‘—‘- Z

1st Choice Realtors

Building Sq. Last Sale Last Sale Year
Owner Name Subdivision Lot Acres Feet Date Price Built

107 Bentley Park Dr NW
Cleveland, TN 37312-8233
Webb Tony Bentley Park 52 3,096 06/13/2014  $400,000 1999

313 Bridgewater Dr
Mc Donald, TN 37353-5481

Weathersby Michael G Dann Bridgewater 30 5772 07/30/2014  $561,000 1999

3258 Cumberland Hills Cir NW

Cleveland, TN 37312-2449 Al

Munck Markietta lemberland 31 3,934 03/08/2016  $525,000 2005
Hills

3345 Cumberland Hills Cir NW
Cleveland, TN 37312-2460

Windham Lacy Marie Etvir Lee E Cumberland 40 4,000 07/17/2014  $494,000 2000
Hills

Keystone Dr NE

TN &

Mullett Sean Mullett Kristen Keystone 33 524 4,136 11/16/2015  $532,000 1991
Ridge

3244 Ridge Top Dr NW

Cleveland TN 37312-1787 [~

Ragland Paul D Penelope W l(._':Igflmberland 18 269 3,200 01/12/2015  $499,000 2002

ills

3630 Willow Oak Cir NW

Cleveland, TN 37312-1748 @}

Hoveland Richard N Pamela Summerfield 14 3,091 04/22/2015  $407,500 1995

381 Windcrest PI NW
Cleveland, TN 37312-3141 @

Coleman John E Jessica F Col Trustees Of The John E Windcrest 41 3,359 09/17/2014  $425,000 1999
Coleman Trust& Jessica F Coleman Trust

© 2016 Courthouse Retrieval System. All Rights Reserved.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.



CRS Data - Search Results

pﬁ¢4(

/5. Sedon Aot

Lee Tate

/“?

wgm( (g,q (ost Chad.

/7/&5/

)d;)i\

Affilliate Broker
423-478-2332
leetate2709@yahoo.com
A z .
1st Choice Realtors
Owner Name Subdivision

625 41st St NE
Cleveland, TN 37312-4937

Williamson Michael

1100 Benton Dr NW
Cleveland, TN 37312-3362

Reid Development

Burris Robert Dee Taylor Thomas Clarke

1850 Executive Park D
TN

Tsa Rentals LLC

3715 Keri Ln NE
Cleveland, TN 37312-5716

Peerless Property Grp

4983 N Lee Hwy
Cleveland TN 37312-4158

Sanders Anthony B Alice K Sa Sou
Service LLC

260 Parker St NE
Cleveland, TN 37311-5341

Highland Properties

1186 Perimeter Dr SE
Cleveland, TN 37323-6007

Hometown Folks LLC

902 Sahara Dr NW
Cleveland, TN 37312-3726

Life Care Centers Of America Inc

2425 S Lee Hwy SW
TN

Tds Investment Grp LLC

4235 Tl Rogers St NE
Cleveland, TN 373124991

Ct Properties

3405 Westside Dr NW

r NW

Saratoga
Townhomes T

thern Water Cawood Property

City Of Cleveland

Southfork Add Rev

Sahara Add

Charles Mullinax

Cleveland, TN 37312-3472 @

Ownbey Randy Ownbey Susan

Lot Acres

8 0.31
0.8

1 0.12
0.8

Pt28

2

14
34

3 0.63
0.65

Building Sq.

Feet

2,688

6,598

5,824

1,164

2,400

9,680

4,800

6,077

1,824

2,500

7,488

0[7

%}Z&

Powered by

Last Sale Last Sale
Date Price
10/05/2015 $517,500
09/14/2015 $525,000
12/29/2014 $490,000
03/08/2016 $425,000
10/30/2014 $431,000
02/02/2015 $475,000
01/05/2016 $460,000
12/29/2015 $575,000
04/11/2016 $530,000
12/30/2015 $450,000
12/10/2015 $420,000

Year
Built

1993

1991

1985

2007

2002

1960

2002

1968

1983

2004

1979



CRS Data - Search Results SUPPLEM Eﬁﬁcﬁﬁf%'{

Py ¢z (s Sﬁf-’kmClgconom«&c_ F(AS\L\"[WB "fzwh l (nz,la‘&@?fMj

1020 William Way NW 10:30 am
Cleveland, TN 37312-4369
William Way Property LLC Dogwood Park Pt3 0.44 1,880 01/30/2015 $560,000 2001

© 2016 Courthouse Retrieval System. All Rights Reserved.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

http://www.crsdata.net/mls/Results/list/~gtpb3DQ3mmPZk6019b87THOdPVATExTIbaRp8... 5/20/2016
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May 27, 2016
PROJECT COSTS CHART 10:30 am

A. Construction and equipment acquired by purchase:

1. Architectural and Engineering Fees

2. Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee),
Consultant Fees

Acauisition of Site
Preparation of Site
Construction Costs $114,065
Contingency Fund

Fixed Equipment (Not included in Construction Contract)

Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000)
Other (Specify)

© ©° N ok~ w

B. Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:

1. Facility (inclusive of building and land) $505.000
2. Building only

3. Land only

4, Equipment (Specify)

5. Other (Specify)

C. Financing Costs and Fees:
Interim Financing

1

Underwriting Costs

3. Reserve for One Year's Debt Service
4. Other (Specify)

D. Estimated Project Cost

(A+B+C)
$619,065
E: CON Filing Fee 3,000
F- Total Estimated Project Cost
(D+E)

TOTAL $622,065
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BUILDING CODE_ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST — pav 27, 2016
Date: 24 IMAY 2O\,  Name of Project: L ocxiaert i
Name of Owner: IR AQ LY // Clevuasd oD nty Doverapivest
Property Address: <2 (49 ADK(Eso0 D2

LLeySLAnD , TA -

Occupancy Classification: L,‘)‘,)T{T{) TIDRAL - Occupant Load Calcutation: ZO

Construction Type (Circle One).

I'A [-B II-A 1I-B II-A II-B IV  V-A
Square Footage: 4,6“(0 Largest Floor Square Footage: 4 . L uﬁ Total # Floors: i

Sprinkler System YES NO Alarm System: YES NO

EXTERIOR:
1. Fire Department access 20 ft. wide with 13'-6" vertical clearance.

. Afire department access road shall be provided so as to extend to within 50 feet of a single exterior
door providing access to the interior of the building.

Fire hydrants must be provided so that any portion of the building's exterior is within 500 feet hose lay
of a hydrant measured along vehicle access route. '

Fire hydrant locations for average conditions must be Installed at least 40 feet from the building to be
protected.

Mo
N Z}\ 5. Proper distance required between buildings and provide protection of facing walls and openings.

6. At least one accessible route, minimum 48" wide.

L~ 7. The slope of a walk may not exceed 8.33% (ramp) and must have a continuous common surface not

interrupted by steps or abrupt changes in grade level greater than %4". Handrails required on both
sides, unless slope is 1 in 20 (5%) or less.

8. Ramps & stairs serving as means of egress shall have one open side.
9. Walks or floors 30" or more above a floor or grade require a guardrail on open sides.

0. Walks terminating at doors must have a 5'-0” x 5-0" level platform that extends a minimum of 18" to

the latch side.

11. Provide handicap parking spaces at the rate of 1 to 25 spaces.
12. Handicapped parking space shall have a ground sign of proper design.
13. Handicap parking spaces must be within 200 feet of accessible entrance.

14. Building shall have address numbers plainly & legibly displayed on street side.

5. Roof, canopy or mechanical condensate water shall not flow over a public walking surface.

%@?@Architecturw- ervices ESTI MATED Q‘J'?UC?VATLO’V Cost w/o -1
77,

il ﬁ

S S UEL  8YSTEr COOT = 407 (56
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BUILDING CODE _ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST ,ﬁ;y 27, 2016
10:30 am

INTERIOR

1.

o]

10

11

SEEREE WE BEEEEEE L

}z
S

Associated

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Building exceeds allowable area / number of stories / height for this type of occupancy and
construction.

Firewall must be four-hour rated and must be constructed in such a way that the wall will remain
standing after the collapse of the structure on either side. Wall must extend minimum three feet

above combustible roof. The firewall must extend not less than 18 inches past any combustible
projection or extension.

Columns, floors, roofs, exterior and interior walls and girders must be protected.

Provide a one hour fire resistant floor over any crawl space or basement in Type V unprotected
construction. '

Openings within 15 feet of a property line must be equipped with opening protection devices.

Provide attic access openings (minimum 22 inches by 36 inches) and attic ventilation within each
draft-stop area.

Provide ___ hour fire rated separation between &

One-hour fire rated tenant separation is required horizontally and vertically. Such separation must
extend through usable crawl space to the ground below.

Fire rated walls must extend tight against the underside of a roof or floor deck or to the underside of a
rated smoke tight ceiling which has the same rating as the wall (e.g., two layers of 5/8 inch, rated
gypsum panels at the ceiling for tenant separation, one hour storage or janitor spaces, and one or two
hour rated walls turned horizontally and anchored to the walls for corridors, elevator, stair, and '
breezeway ceilings).

. Equipment recessed in a rated wall must not decrease the rating of that wall.

. Glazing in non-rated doors, sliding doors, storm doors, within 24 inches of doors, 18 inches above
finished floor, and exceeding 9 square feet within 36 inches of walking surface must be safety glazed,
tempered.

Glazing in fire rated doors must be wired glass or other tested glazing material, and must be limited in
size according to door rating.

A chair rail or other visual barrier is required at glass panels that may be mistaken for door.
Fire rated doors must have fire rated frames, hardware, closers, and other rated accessories.

Closers and positive latching are required on fire rated doors and doors in smoke tight partitions or
barriers.

Concession stands must maintain corridor wall rating. Roll-up doors must be activated by smoke
detectors. ‘

Rooms 50 square feet or greater that are used for storage, any size janitor closets, all rooms used for
storage of hazardous materials, and gas furnace rooms must be one hour enclosed with 45-minute
rated doors or must be protected by automatic sprinklers with smoke tight partitions and solid doors
with self closers.

L.aundry rooms, maintenance shops including woodworking and painting areas, spaces where
combustibie supplies are used or processed, and spaces where hazardous materials or flammable or
combustible liquids are used or processed must be one hour enclosed with 456-minute rated doors
and must be protected by automatic sprinklers with smoke tight partitions and doors with closers.

Architectural Services 2

30l Kermd 5T, Gw, S0 TY &5 Cl/glamd, Ta) 5734
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19.

21.

22.
23.

24,
25,
26.
27.

28.

29.

31.

36.
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/5. Section O ( Economic Feasibiiy) Ttem | ( Project CostChart)
ection C (Econem SUPPLEMENTAL #1
BUILDING CODE ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST May 27, 2016

Fuel fired water heaters with an aggregate input capacity that exceeds 5&63&) A or 210° F or 120
gallons or rooms 50 square feet and greater must be enclosed In one-hour construction.

. Central heating boiler must be enclosed with two hour rated construction.

A shaft that does not extend to or through the underside of the roof deck of the building must be .
enclosed at the top with construction of the same fire resistance as the top most floor protected by
the shaft, but not less than the rating required for the shaft enclosure.

Elevators, shafts, and machine rooms must be enclosed with fire resistant construction.

Elevators and dumbwaiter hoistway doors and frames must be labeled.

Afriums must meet requirements of NFPA 101 (8.6.7). The entire building must be sprinkled with
smoke control In the atrium.

Vertical opening connecting three stories or less must comply with NFPA 101 (8.6.6, 12.3.1).
Legitimate stages must be constructed of materials of Type | construction. Construction of permanent
platforms, and regular and thrust stages must be consistent with the building construction type.

Legitimate stages must have a minimum two-hour rated proscenium wail.

Stages exceeding 1000 square feet, dressing rooms, workshops, and storage rooms must be
separated from each other by minimum one-hour construction with 45-minute doors.

Regular stages In excess of 1000sf and legitimate stages shall be provided with emergency
ventilation to provide a means of removing smoke and combustion gases directly to the outside in the
event of a fire.

Projection room construction must be consistent with building's construction type.

Projection room must have not less than 80 square feet for a single machine and 40 square feet for
each additional machine.

Projection openings cannot exceed 25% of the wall between thé projection room and auditorium.

. Provide accessible means of egress incorporating areas of refuge.

Travel distance to reach an exit must not exceed 200 feet in an un-sprinkled building or 250 feet ina
fully sprinkled building.

. Dead ends in corridors and aisles are limited to 20'-0".

. The minimum number of means of egress from any story or portion thereof, based on occupancy,

shall be as follows:

1-500= two
501 -1000 = three
1001 and over = four

Main and secondary exits must each accommodate one-half of the occupancy load.
Maximum travel distance to an exit is 200 feet in un-sprinkled building..

Exit stair enclosure must be two hour rated in assembly occupancy. Exterior stairs must be separated
from the interior of the building with the same rating required for interior stairs.

Enclosed, usable space underneath a stair shall be 1-hr. rated construction.

Associated Architectural Services 3
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40.
41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

53.

54.

55.

56.
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Associated Architectural Services
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BUILDING CODE ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST May 27, 2016

10:30 a
An exit enclosure shall provide a continuous protected path of travel to an%%%isgﬁlarge.
Exit stairwell doors must be 1 V2 hour fire rated.

Width of stairs must comply with occupancy type & load, but a minimum of 44" unless occupant load
is less than 50; then the minimum width is 36".

Minimum headroom clearance in stair enclosures must be 6'-8" and in the means of egress 7'-6".

Stair treads must be minimum 11 inches and risers must be maximum 7 inches but not less than 4
inches without square nosing.

Changes In elevation of less than 21 Inches in the means of egress must be by ramp or stair. The
stair shall include handrails, 13-inch treads and readily visible treads.

Handrails and guards must be In accordance with NFPA 101 (7.2.2.4), such as 34" and 42" to top of
handrails and guards; handrails on both side of stairs; 23" minimum handrail extension on wall side at
bottom of stair; and four inch maximum diameter sphere for Intermediate rails in guards.

Stairs serving upper floors must be separated by a barrier to prevent travel beyond the level of exit
discharge.

Maximum stair rise to a floor or landing shall be 12°-0".

Normally unoccupied spaces and hazardous areas may not open into an exit stairwell or exit
passageway.

Not more than 50% of the exits may discharge through areas on the level of discharge unless all of
the exceptions are met.

Door swing may not reduce landing to less than one-half its required width.

Stairwells must be at least ten feet from adjacent property lines and other buildings on the same lot
unless openings are protected by 3/4 hour fire resistant door or windows.

Doors, windows, and openings within ten feet horizontal projection and extending vertically from the
ground to a point ten feet above the topmost landing must be 3/4 hour protected, and the stairs must
be separated from the interior of the building by one hour construction.

Rooms containing high-pressure boilers, commercial refrigeration machinery, large transformers or
other service equipment subject to possible explosion must not be located directly under or adjacent
to required exits from an assembly area.

Egress may not be through any space identified as a hazardous location.
Two means of egress must be provided from boiler, incinerator, or furnace rooms which exceed 500

square feet and fuel fired equipment, which exceeds 400,000 BTU input capacity. Maximum distance
of travel to an egress door must not exceed 50 feet. :

. Corridors must have a minimum clear unobstructed width based on occupancy type & load.

Corridors serving 30 people or more must be one hour rated with 20-minute door assembly including
frame and hardware. Corridors may be rated at 30-minutes with 20-minute door assemblies in fully
sprinkled buildings.

The floor on both sides of any door must be substantially level and may not vary more than 1/2 inch
for a distance at least equal to the width of the widest leaf.

Each leaf of door in the means of egress must provide 32 inches clear opening and a minimum
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BUILDING CODE ON-SITE-REVIEW _CHECKLIST May 27, 2016
10:30 am

height of 6'-8", but in no case may any single door exceed 48 inches.
Doors serving 50 or more people and stairway doors must swing with the direction of exit travel.

Every room or space with a capacity of more than 50 persons or where travel distance exceeds 75
feet within the room must have at least two means of egress.

Folding partition requires a walk-thru door between the two areas.

. Panic hardware is required on all doors with a latch or lock in the means of egress from an area

having an occupant load of 100 or more.

. Power operated doors must be capable of being manually opened to permit exit travel in the event of
:

a power failure.

. Astragals are not permitted on doors with fire resistance of B -1 1/2 hour or less in means of egress

that swing in the same direction.

. Astragals and coordinators are required on more than 1 % hour fire rated doors swinging in pairs.

. Balconies or mezzanines having an occupant load not exceeding 50 shall be permitted to be served

by a single means of egress, and such means of egress shall be permitted to lead to the floor below.

_ Balconies or mezzanines having an occupant load exceeding 50 but not exceeding 100 shall have

not less than two remote means of egress, but both such means of egress shall be permitted to lead
to the floor below.

Balconies or mezzanines shall have two means of egress, unless exempted or requiring more as -
described in NFPA 101 (7.4.1, 12.2.4.7).

. All porches, balconies, raised floor surfaces or landings over 30" must have guardrails.

Projection room must have one out swinging, self-closing door not less than 30" by 6'- 8" high.

. Every assembly area shall have the occupant load posted in a conspicuous place near the main exit

of the room on a permanent sign.

Interior finish of vertical exits and exit access must have a Class A flame-spread rating in
un-sprinkled buildings.

. Interior finish in general assembly areas with occupant loads of more than 300 must be Class Aor B

and assembly spaces with 300 or fewer occupants must be Class A, B, or C In un-sprinkled
buildings. :

Screens on which pictures are projected must comply with requirements of Class A or B interior
finish.

. Fixed or moveable walls and partitions, paneling, wall pads and crash pads, applied structurally or

for decoration, acoustical correction, surface insulation or other purposes; must be Class A or B in
un-sprinkled buildings. :

. Carpet on floors in corridors, stairs, and lobbies of un-sprinkled buildings must withstand 0.22

watts/cm?, Radiant Panel Test (Class ).

. Carpet on walls & ceilings must be Class A.

. Folding partitions must comply with interior finish rating requirements.

Proscenium curtains on legitimate stages must be 20 minute fire and smoke resistive and must shut
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BUILDING CODE ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST

May 27, 2016

automatically upon the detection of smoke. 10:30'am

Exits cannot pass through a hazardous area (kitchen, storage, mechanical, etc.).

Minimum clearance between rows of seating shall be 12", up to 14 seats & then shall increase per

additional seat.
Maximum seats on a dead-end aisle shall be 7.
Minimum aisle width shall be determined by total occupant load & number of aisles.

Portable fire extinguishers must be provided & be within 75 feet travel distance.

HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY

1.

2.
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A ramp slope must be no greater than 1 in 12 and have handrails both sides.

Exterior ramps must have a clear width of 48" and interior ramps must have a clear width of 36".
Ramps in a means of egress shall be the same minimum width as corridors.

Landings at top & bottom of ramps and at changes in direction must be minimum of 60" x 60"
Ramp handrails must be 34" above surface, 1 % to 1 %" round & extend 12" at top and bottom.
Doors must have a clear opening of 32" at full open position.

Glass doors must have a .7 %" bottom rail.

The distance between two sets of doors must be minimum of 7°-0".

A partition at the strike side of an interior or exterior door must be 12" or 18" clear, respectively.

A textured surface required on door handles to hazardous areas.

. Vision panels in corridor doors must be 40" off floor & minimum of 30" high.

. Steps in stairs must not have square nosing.

Floors on a story must be on a common level or connected by ramps.

. On every floor where toilets are provided for men & women, 1 of each fixture type to be accessible.
. Toilet stalls shall provide minimum depth of 72" & a 60" diameter clear area.

. The swing of a toilet room door may overlap clear areas by 12" maximum.

Adult water closet seat to be between 16 2" & 19 74"

Grab bars required at each accessible fixture.

Lavatories to have a clear floor space of 30" x 48” & under piping to be protected.
Lavatory counter top between 34" & 36" with 29" clear knee space.

Lavatory water activation by lever, blades or electronic.

. Urinals to have a clear floor space 30” x 48” with rim maximum of 17" above floor.

Associated Architectural Services
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BUILDING CODE_ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST May 27, 2016

A/~ 22. Towel bars & other accessories to be maximum of 48" above floor. 10:30:am
_ﬁ 23. Water fountains to have front controls, by hand and foot or electronic.
__\l 24. Water fountains to have clear floor area 30" x 48" with basin at 34 above floor.
25. An elevator or wheelchair lift is required for this building. |

26. Accessible seating must be provided in assembly spaces.

Eia

27. Tactile exit sign required at a door to stair, passageway or exit discharge.

MECHANICAL:

<
B

1. Penetrations of stairwells such as steam lines, gas lines, water lines, electrical conduit, and duct are
prohibited. Only sprinkler piping, standpipes, electrical conduit serving the stairwell and ductwork and
other equipment necessary for stair pressurization are permitted.

2. Fire dampers are required where ductwork penetrates a one or more hour fire rated wail. They may be
omitted in 1 hr fire rated walls where the duct penetrating the wall is not greater than 100 square
inches, there is no duct opening within five feet of each side of the wall, the duct material is a minimum
26 gauge steel and the duct Is located above the ceiling.

3. Ductwork penetrating a ‘fire rated horizontal assembly (floor-ceiling, roof-ceiling) must be enclosed
within a fire rated shaft (1 hr for 3 stories or less, 2 hrs for 4 stories or more). Fire dampers may be
used in lieu of a shaft where only one floor is penetrated.

4. Ductwork penetrating non-fire rated horizontal assemblies (floor-ceiling, roof-ceiling assemblies) must
be equipped with a fire damper where the duct connects no more than 3 stories. Ducts connecting 4
or more stories must be enclosed In a fire rated shaft.

Provide fire/smoke combination dampers in transfer air grille openings through fire rated wails. A
smoke damper is required at transfer openings for un-rated walls that must resist the passage of
smoke such as a smoke barrier or smoke partition.

6. Smoke dampers must be installed in duct penetrations of smoke barriers, unless the duct is a part of a
smoke removal system.

7. Ceiling dampers or other methods of protecting openings in rated floor- or roof-ceiling assemblies are
required.

8. Systems with a fan capacity less than 2,000 CFM and which serve a means of egress must have
automatic shutdown.

[
©

FrEEEEEE BB

Systems from 2,000 to 15,000 CFM must have a duct mounted smoke detector mounted in the supply
duct downstream of all filfers and in the return air stream prior to any exhausting from the building or
mixing with fresh air makeup. These detectors must be wired to a central control panel which Is
constantly monitored or be wired to a general building alarm.

10. Systems over 15,000 CFM must have duct mounted smoke detector shutdown and smoke dampers
in both the supply and return ducts to isolate the fan from the duct system. These detectors must be
wired to a central control panel which is constantly monitored or be wired to the building alarm.

/7
iy

11. An exit access corridor cannot be used for return or exhaust from adjoining air conditioned spaces
through louvers or other devices mounted in corridor doors, partitions, or ceilings.

12. Combustible material may not be used within a return air plenum unless it is tested for that
application.

5

Associated Architectural Services 7
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BUILDING CODE _ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST May 27, 2016

13. Combustion air and vent_i}llation are provided for the room containing fue?ﬁéﬁ%cﬁﬂnent. Location of
vents within 12" above fifished floor and 12" below ceiling, and 1/4" corrosion resistant screen.

rq 14. Kitchen commercial cooking exhaust hood and duct systems for removal of grease-laden vapor must
comply with 2001 NFPA 96.

15. Gas lines may not penetrate a four-hour firewall.
16. Gas piping is not permitted to be installed in concealed spaces. .

17. Gas piping valves must not be located in non accessible spaces or more than six feet away from the
appliance being served.

18. A separate and individual ventilation system, not part of any other system, must be provided for
ventilation of each room or space containing flammable vapors, combustion vapors, noxious gases,
and flammable dusts.

N BEEREE

19. Minimum required plumbing fixtures: Water Closets ée , Lavatories o
Drinking Fountains _ @ .

SPRINKLER SYSTEM:

1. Occupancy classification and/or size of this building requires a full sprinkler system.

2. An existing sprinkler system in the building requires a registered sprinkler contractor to Inspect, test,
and provide a letter of acceptance for the existing system. :

. Provide a sprinkler system for all stages 1000 square feet or more. Provide coverage at all adjacent
storerooms, workshops, permanent dressing rooms and other spaces contiguous to the stage. '

4. Provide a Class | wet standpipe for all buildings In which the highest floor is 30 feet or less above the
lowest level of fire department vehicle access and exceeding 10,000 square feet per story or when'
any portion of the building's interior area is more than 200 feet of travel from the nearest point of fire
department vehicle access.

5. Provide a Class Il wet standpipe in public assembly halls greater, than 5000 square feet used for
exhibition or display purposes.

7. Provide Class lll wet standpipes on each side of regular stages greater than 1000 square feet or any

/i
"/[A 6. Provide a Class | wet standpipe In un-sprinkled buildings exceeding 1000 persons.
N JA
legitimate stage. .

ELECTRICAL:

1. Provide emergency lighting for assembly areas, stairs, aisles, corridors, and exitways. Emergency
Lighting must have stand-by power source.

2. Exit signs must be visible from all directions of travel.

3. Exit signs must have an emergency power source or be a listed self-illuminating type sign.

v
Tj . 4. Provide a fire alarm system for assembly, education, day care, health care, detention, lodging,

mercantile and industrial occupancies.

5. Working space in front of electrical equipment to be a minimum of three-foot horizontal, six and a half
foot vertical and thirty inches minimum width. Working space may not be used for storage and may

Associated Architectural Services ; 8



Associated Architectural Services

10.

11.

13.
14.

15.

17.

BUILDING CODE ON-SITE-REVIEW CHECKLIST

May 27, 2016

not contain ductwork, piping, etc. 10:30 am

Electrical outlet boxes located on opposite sides of rated walls must be separated by a horizontal
distance of 24 inches.

Provide ground fault interrupter for wet locations, and outside.

Smoke detectors controlling hold open devices must be located In accordance with NFPA 72 and
must be tied into the fire alarm system.

Automatic detection devices must be provided In all hazardous areas that are unoccupied and
un-sprinkled.

Nonmetallic-sheathed cable (types NM and NMC) may not be used In fire resisfive components of a
building with assembly occupancy, in a four or more story building, or in Type | or Il construction.

Connections to the kitchen hood fire extinguishing system that activates the fire alarm system and
other required shutdowns in the event the extinguishing system is activated.

. Shunt trip circuit breakers and gas solenoid valves required - unless a mechanical gas line shut-off is

provided.
Flow switch or alarm check valve connection to the building alarm and central station or fire dept.
Supervisory alarm connection from tamper switches on sprinkler system.

Electrical equipment rated for 1200 amperes or more and over 6 ft wide, containing over-current
devices, switching devices, or control devices, there shall be one entrance not fess than 32 in. wide
and 6 1/2 ft high at each end of the working space. Both entrances shall open in the direction of the
egress and be equipped with panic bars, pressure plates, or other devices that are normally latched
but open under simple pressure.

. Dry-type transformers Installed indoors and rated 112 1/2 KVA or less shall have a separation of at

least 12 In. from combustible material unless separated from the combustible material by a fire-
resistant, heat-Insulated barrier.

Individual dry-type transformers of more than 112 1/2 KVA rating shall be installed in a transformer
room of minimum 1 hour fire-resistant construction.
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Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility or

agency. The fiscal year begins in _Scs\ny  (Month). o~ o N
| ' Year 203 Year20\y Year 7_Q_
A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure) ’2‘\"\03 2.\90 «3045\ 2. \QO(DMIQ__ZJ O (Days)
B. Revenue from Services to Patients
1. Inpatient Services $ $ $
2. Outpatient Services
3. Emergency Services
4. Other Operating Revenue oAz LA M \ 106 D66
(SpeCIfY)M.
. Gross Operating Revenue $ 10 424  $1\3A0W $1. 7206 Cbb
C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments 1"; $ $ 5
2. Provision for Charity Care xgexpmgg ceimoursed lu/ 24 o &
3. Provisions for Bad Debt Gtream of femce . b & £
Total Dedyctions $__ $_@ $_ @
NET OPERATING REVENUE | SINOMA SLBAOA $1200 O
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries and Wages [{y cofiNe, ; $55 30 SRR $BD e
2. Physician’s Salaries and Wages
3. Supplies 25 (600 S3ANS Yo RAT
4. Taxes
5. Depreciation RAATND 35552 20032
6. Rent ‘
7. Interest, other than Capltala\'\o‘\ j“\&w Q255 AN &
8. Other Expenses (Specn‘y) iy GN& AW Ade  1CONSO N6 0OA
b{?:f\iz\) : ‘.L Q::: Uﬂ\} \'1 Bperatmg'ge’penses SAOZHA  $1,05D 8o  $1)00 A
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net (Specify) $ 9% 8
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ $ $
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ $ 5
2. Interest CN@ e A~ Q,>Ax5
Tota Capltal Expendltures $ QZ $_ $ &5
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $ANZ0  $ RO S0 SR
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART - OTHER EXPENSES 10:30 am
FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
Bed Tax $ 58029 $ 60,961 $ 64,380
Maint $ 9,082 $ 7,192 $ 8,086
Comm $ 7,503 $ 6,482 $ 7,167
WC $ 15,714 $ 19,801 $ 20,403
Utilities $ 9,588 $ 8,424 $ 9,734
Food $ 19,914 $ 25741 $ 22,337
Insurance S 13,742 S 12,633 S 12,781
Prof Exp $ 27,553 $ 21,313 $ 16,695
Trans Exp S 23,602 ) 19,414 S 11,274
Travel S 1,292 ) 2,426 S 2,191
Misc $ 5,947 $ 6,363 $ 4,861
TOTALS $ 191,966 $ 190,750 $ 179,909

*Misc - Memberships, Advertising, Rental Expense
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page ©
PROJECTED DATA CHART

Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year

begins in f)lx\;‘ (Month). Y ~\
(2. \C\O) Year20ON 1 Year ZO\%
A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure) d 2 \&0O Z z \8:0

B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services $ $

Outpatient Services

2
3. Emergency Services
4

Other Operating Revenue Specn‘y)@g{_h@%_ 1225004 12372 Oc3
Gross Operating Revenue $1715 Q04 $17232 QO3

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments $ $

2. Provision for Charity Care
3. Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions $___ (& $ &

NET OPERATING REVENUE S, 2O $A\2BL AN
D. Operating Expenses

1. Salaries and Wages | dDones s $ O S $ 4o\, 24%

2. Physician’s Salaries and Wages

3. Supplies 22 (KA 33 WA

4. Taxes

5. Depreciation 2%,.00 20 1S

6. Rent :

7. Interest, other than Capital .

03'

Other Expenses (Specnfy)mx_mmu 18N 08 &\ 000
o\ ] wor Comg. [ Lkes, Oper‘é‘%(nq??‘ﬁéii'{;%%’ $1141, 440  $1\SS BEA

Dok - TxQ ., &N
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) -- Net (Specify) $ $
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $_ %A . SS3 SN\ 4
F. Capital Expenditures

1. Retirement of Principal $ $

2. Interest

Total Capital Expenditures $ (%) $ @

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $§ﬂq§$ $11\ Zé

(ol
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PROJECTED DATA CHART - OTHER EXPENSES 10:30 am
FY2017 FY2018
Bed Tax $ 67,430 $ 67,815
Maint S 8,257 S 8,464
Comm S 7,685 S 7,877
WC $ 21,749 $ 22,293
Utilities $ 9,941 $ 10,190
Food $ 22,583 $ 23,148
Insurance S 12,976 S 13,301
Prof Exp $ 17,248 $ 17,680
Trans Exp S 11,746 S 12,040
Travel S 2,287 S 2,344
Misc $ 5,706 $ 5,849
TOTALS $ 187,608 $ 191,000

*Misc - Memberships, Advertising, Rental Expense
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Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as Social
Workers, All Other in 2014.

](i Sechion C CCoanm‘fon-fD 0rder17 Deuelopmen‘/‘) MMW #1

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $30,791 $53,752 $62,764
Hourly wage $14.80 $25.84 $30.17

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:38 PM

Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as
Registered Nurses in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $44,348 $56,370 $63,374
Hourly wage $21.32 $27.10 $30.47

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Warkforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:32 PM

Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as
Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $30,264 $36,000 $39,503
Hourly wage $14.55 $17.31 $18.99

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:29 PM

Employment Wage Statistics

The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as

Occupational Therapists in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $62,662 $81,812 $90,651
Hourly wage $30.13 $39.33 $43.58

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S

Downloaded: 05/25/2016 Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as

Dietitians and Nutritionists in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $39,633 $52,265 $60,862
Hourly wage $19.05 $25.13 $29.26

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S

Employment Wage Statistics

Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:34 PM
12:25 PM

The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as

Physical Therapists in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $64,379 $83,372 $92,785
Hourly wage $30.95 $40.08 $44.61
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Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:36 PM

Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as
Speech-Language Pathologists in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $44,327 $64,102 $78,694
Hourly wage $21.31 $30.82 $37.83

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:37 PM

Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as
Maintenance and Repair Workers, General in 2014,

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $24,294 $35,737 $43,833
Hourly wage $11.68 $17.18 $21.07

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:39 PM

Employment Wage Statistics
The table below shows the estimated Employment Wage Statistics for individuals in Tennessee employed as Clinical,
Counseling, and School Psychologists (No data available for Counseling Psychologists) in 2014.

Rate Type / Statistical Type Entry Level Median Experienced
Annual wage or salary $49,241 $64,119 $86,410
Hourly wage $23.67 $30.83 $41.54

Source: TN Dept of Labor & Workforce Dev, Div Emp Sec, R&S
Downloaded: 05/25/2016 12:53 PM
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611 Bower Ln SE, Cleveland, TN 37311 to  Drive 6.7 miles, 18 min
00 '] ’ ]
G gle Map 3745 Adkisson Dr, Cleveland, TN 37312
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S 3745 Adkisson Dr, Cleveland, TN 37312 to Drive 0.8 mile, 2 min
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PR?&ESA?’Z;%%'OES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENCIES {X1) PROVIDERISUPPLIERICLIA '(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION (X3) DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 02 - MAIN COMPLETED

44G050 |8 wing 0711312016
NAME OOF PROVIDER OR SUPPLICR STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

2601 BOWER LANE S E

_ GLEVELAND, TN 37323

(x4) 1 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENGIES 1) i PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORREGTION (x5
PREFIX [EACH UEHCIENGY—_W&T DE PRECEDED OY FuLl PREFIX {EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE GOWLTJTOH

TAG HEGULATORY ORLEC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO T$|E APPROPRIATE nA
OEFICIENCY)

LIFE BRIDGES CATE HOUSE

; . - -

K056 483:470G)(1)() LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD KQ0ss Pendent sprinkler heads throughout the house and ~ 8/24/15
. PROMPT under the canopy will be replaced with quick

Where an automatic sprinkler systam is Installed,
l».for aither tolal or partial bullding coverégs, the
‘system is in accordance with Seolion'9,7, by a sprinkler company. The facility Is receiving
1 33.2.3.5.2 and activates the fira alarm system In
| docardanie with 83.2.3.4.1, The adequacy of the
| wator supply Is docurmenled to the authorily The ten year test on the sprinkler heads will be

having Jurigdiclion.

response heads. They system has been assessed

bids which will be used to secure a contractor.,
8/24/15

; forgone due to all sprinkler heads being replaced.

. Excaption No. 1: in prompl.evacuation faciitles,

|--_s_an aulomatio spribkler systam in aecordance wilh

| NFPA 13D, Standatd for the Installation of |
“Sprinkler Systems In Orie:and wo Family '

. Dwellings and Mariufactured Homes, Is permiited,: i
Automatic sprinklers.are not required in closets
nol exceeding 24 sq. fl. and’in balhrooms not
exceading 56 aq. fl., provided (hat such spaces:

are finlshad wilh lath and plaster or materials

- providing a 16 minute thermal barrier.

L}

* Exception No. 2: Not applicable

' Exceplion No. 3: In‘prompf éind Slow avacuation
capabllity facllities where an automatic sprinkler

. systernIs (h accordance with NFPA 13, Standard
for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems,

,automalic sprinklers are not requlred In closets

' nol exceading 24 sq. U and Iy bathrooms not

1 8xcanding 66 sq. ft., provided (hal ‘such spaces
are finished with lath and plaster or material
providing a 16 minute thermal barrler.

‘ Excaplion No. 4: In prompt and slow evacialion |
capabllily faclilies up to and inclyding four stories .
in height, systems in accordance with NFPA 13R,

| Standard for the Installalion of Sprinkler Systems

. In Residentlal Ocoupancies up loand Including
Four Stories In Helght, are permilted.

LABGRATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATVE'S SIGNATURE THE ' EToATE
PAS! - ) et ¥ r7=15
Ay deficlency siatemnnt endffip wilh an astarlsk () denotes u duficiansy whil o insiilulion may b excused lrom cotecling providing 1L Is dolormined fhal
slnar saleguards provida sulficlent proloclion Lo tha patlants, (See Instiuctions. ) Excepl for swrging hames, the findings staled abova are disclesatile 90 days
oltavdng (he dale of survay whalher or nol & plon of Correction Is provided. For nursing homos, the above findings ind plans of correclion are disclosabio 14
laya loliowing Ihet date Ihese dacuments'are made avalloble lo the facility, If dofidunclos o diad. an approvad o of corraction (s requisita lo continued
rogram parlicipation,

'ORM CMS-2587(02-99) Previous Verslons Obsaldle Evenl ID; JCIMZ21 Faciity 10: TNP5307 If continuation sheet Pags 1 of 4
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PRINTED: 07/16/2015
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIGES _ FORM APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OMB NO. 09380

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENGIES (X1) PROVIDE: UPPLIERICLIA. [ (X2) MULYIPLE CONSTRUCTION
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION * IDENTIFIGATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING 92 - MAIN

446090 B. WING 0711312015

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER | STRERTADDRESS, CITY, STAYE, ZIPF CODE
2501 BOWER LANE S E
LIFE BRIDGES CATE HOUSE CLEVELAND, TN 37323

X4) o - SUMIMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENGIES o PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION | xs)
;HEF!K | (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST OE PRECEDED )Yy FLLL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE | comenon

TAG REGULATORY ORLEG IDENTIRYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERESEFEIE‘I;%% E APPROPRIATE

K056 . Conlinued From page 1 Koose H

; | Exception No. 5: Not applicable , i

" Excaption No. 6: Infliation of the fire alarm system
. Is not required for existing installations In
accordance with 33.2,3.5.5.

SLOw
+ Where an automatic sprinkler system is installed,
. ,-for elther total or partial bullding coverage, the
"system is In accordance witt Secllon 9.7 and
i aclivates the fire alarm system in accordance with

133.2.3.4.1. The adequacy of the waler supply is
i documaented'to (he autharlty having Jurisdiction. ' i

' Exception No. 1: Nol Applicable l
| .

-Exception No, 2: Not Applicable ;

Excaptlon No, 3: In prampl and slow evacuation
' capabillly facliities where an automatic sprinkier }
: ~system I3 {n accordance With NFPA 13, Standard i
< for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems, I A
‘autematio sprinklers are: notrequlred in closets i
._.qqi-.'exoéﬂﬂlpdz#;aq. Il and in' bathrooms not H
|.-m;,qdin'g.;ﬁ5'a,q..-n,, provided thal such spaces i
| ace Tinlshed with lath and plaster or materiaj F i
- pPraviding a 16'minute thermal barrier, [ f

f Excegllon No. 4:In prorapt and sfow evacualion . v
'+ gapabllily fagiliiles up 16 and including four stories i
drhalght, systems'in accordance. with NFPA 13R,

| Stendaird for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems

| 11 Residentiaf Qceupancies up 1o and ncluding

| Four Storles In Helght, are permifted.

Exception No. 6: Not Applicable

Eoﬁm-cmasrm-nm Previous Verslons Obsolgte Evant ID: JCMZ21 Facllity (0; TNP5387 IFcontinualion sheel Page 2 of 4
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10:30 am oiren: o760t

' Exception No, 6: Initiation of the fire alarm system
~is not required for existing Installations In
- accordance with 33.2.3.6.5.

| IMPRACTICAL ,
Whare an automatic sprinkler systen Is Installed,

+ for efther tatal or partial building coverage; the
syslem is in accordance wilh Seciion 9.7 and

| activates the fire alarm system in accordance with

1 33.2.3.4.1. The adequacy of the water supply Is

- documented to Ihe authority having jurisdiction,

J 33.2.3.5.2.

l Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.

Excaption No. 2: In slow and impractical
evacuation capability facllities, an aulomatic
sprinkder system in accordance with NFPA 13D,
Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems
", InOne and Two Family Dwellings and
Manufactured Homes, with a 30 minute water
1 supply, is permitted, All habitable areas and
 closets are sprinklered. Aulomalic sprinklers are
not required in bathrooms not exceeding 65 sq.
ft., provided that such spaces are finished with
"lath and plaster or materials providing a 16
minute thermal barrier,

! Exception No. 3: Not Applicable,
]
' Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

" Exceplion No, 8: In impractical evacualion:

| capabllity fagilities up lo and Including four stories
in helght, systems in accordance with NFPA 13R,

1 Standard for the Inslallation of Sprinkler Systems
in Residentlal Occupancies up to and Including
Four Starles In Helght, are parmitted, All

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FORM APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES . OMB NO. 09380391
STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES {X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA {X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION (X3) DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN QF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A BUILDING 02 - MAIN COMPLETED
;= 443000 B.WING __ — 07/13/2015
MAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS; CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
UFE B GATE 2601 HOWER LANE § €
RIDGES CATE HOUSE _ CLEVELAND, TN 37323
— X4} 1D SUMMARY STATEMENT QF DEFICIENGIES 1D ~ PROVIOER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (x5}
sgneirax {EACH DEFICIENGY MUST BE PRECEOED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE CRLE Ry
TAG . REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYWNG INFORMATION) TAG °R°SSREFERE3‘§§,3,ES é ;l)e APPROPRIATE
] ]
K0056 ;Conlinued From page 2 Ko0s61

FORM CMS-2667(02:08) Previous Versions Obsolale Event ID: JCMZ21

FacHity ID; TNP5367

*If conlinuation sheet Page 3 of 4
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j PRINTED: 07/16/2015
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES FORM APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDI IDSERVICES OMB NO 0935:?391
STATEMENT OF DEFICIENGIES {X1) PROVIDERISUPPLIERICLIA {X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION {X3) DATE fé;%v
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDING D2 - MAIN coMP
44G090 B. WING 07/13/2015

STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
2601 BOWER LANE S E

NAME OF PROVIOER OR SUPPLIER

LIFE BRIDGES CATE HOUSE CLEVELAND, TN 37323
X4) 1D SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENGIES R PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION F eonle
é-ne’mx (EAGH DEFIGIENOY MUST DE PRECEOGD By FULL . PREFIX (EACH CORREGTIVE AGTION SHOULD BE couLEon
TAG REGULATORY ORLSG IDENTIEVING INFORMATION) { TG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE
g g DEFICIENCY)
K0058 | Continued From page 3 K0056

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered,

Automatic sprinklers are nol required in.

bathrooms not exceeding §5 59 ft., provided (hat

such spaces are finishad with lath and plaster.or
' materials providing a 16:minule thermal barrier.

| Exception No., 6: Initiation of'the fire alarm system
“is not required for existing instaliatlons In
! accordance wilh 33.2.3,8.5.

; This STANDARD s nol mol as avidenced by:
Based on observalion, Interviaw and record
review, the faclliity failed te maintain the sprinkler
syslem.

»The findings include: ' :
1. Observation and interview with the direclor of 1
malntenaince on 711312015 at 5:06 PM conflrmed
4.0l 4 sprinklers under (he drive through canopy
and 2 of 2 bathroom sprinklers ware corroded, i
(NFPA 25, 6.2.1,1.1, NFPA 25,6.21.1.2),
2. Record roview with the Malntenence ‘Direclor, :
on 7/13/2015.at-5:14 PM confirmed no 10-year |
dry sprinkler testing/replacerent was ‘perfarmed.
(NFPA 25, 2-3.4.1 Excoptlon No; 5: Temporary
Interim amendment 98.1).
' These findings were verifiad by the Diractor of
‘Mainteniance and ackhowledged by (he agsistant
* program manager during (he exit conferenca on I
| T13/2015

L S ——
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W 104 | 483.410(a)(1) GOVERNING BODY W104|| w4 | 82415
. Corrective Action: The relocation of the '
The governing body must exercise general policy, | sensory room was compléted at the main center,
budget, and operating direction over the facility. Client #2-will use the new sensory room per his
plan, The Program Manager will provide
1 operating directions and supervision to ensure
the programing of Client #2 is appropriate and
| . . " in compliance with ISP. The occupational
1 This STANDARD is not.met as evidenced by: therapist is reviewing usage of the room to
Based on observation, interview, and record determine how to enhance functional and
| review, the governing body failed to exercise )} | sensory experiences and enhance client interest
| operating direction and ensure day program in those experiences. The remodel of the Center
| services were appropriate based on client need| pTD.\"?dCS new npportunitics for Skl".';a imquisition
interest and preferences for 1 of 3 sampled training. These arcas may also be utilized as
clients (Client #2) facets of Day Programming for Client #2.
Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the
o h p practice and found that the remodeling of the
The findings included: . Center could effect other individuals in the

home. They have opportunity for enhancement
of their day programming and increased interest

* An observation at the residence on 7/7/15 from

1 8:30 AM to 9:30 AM revealed Direct Supporl in the experience due to changes made
' Professional (DSP) #65 presented Client #2 with threughout the bui Iding-which-oreated-multiple
. some markers and paper. The client took the top j | new skill asguisition focused areas.
- off the marker and swiped an area of the paper; -
i ! Preventative Measures: In addition to-the }
4 there was no funfhogal Sa Of. the maTer' The relocation of the sensory room in the main I
staff presented clay dough which the. client center. Staff will be retrained:both formally'and
manipuiated for a few seconds but displayed no informally on active treatment, functional
consistent response. DSP#5 did not engage with activities/choices, and skill acquisition
f

1 Client #2 to provide training, encouragement, or outcomes implementation documented: through

direction in what to do with these items. The signature sheets.

client took off his shoes and socks and walked

around the home, outside the home for most of | Monitoring: Staff will document usage of the
| the observation period. There were no additional | sensory room on 2 sign in shect in the room.

Usage of the sensory room will also be
documented in the in the daily communication
. | notes. The communication notes will be

| reviewed by the Supervisors weekly through
September to assist in monitoring the

| materials presented to Client #2 for engagement |
' during the morning routine.

" During an interview with DSP #5 at the home, on

717115 at 9:30 AM, DSP #5 indicated they 1 ' | compliance in regards to usage of the sensory
(management) rearranged things at the Center room. The Program Manager will monitor
(day program). The staff noted the day program I | usage monthly throughout the year.
had a sensory room but it was discontinued. Per 1 ; a
| ABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE CTITLE (X6) DATE

L * v\ i g —
S L Osehoors (&0 g-12-15
Any deficiency statement ﬂnjdlngﬂwllh an asterisk (") denoles a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it Is determined that
othar safeguards provide sufficiont protection ta the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days
following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction Is provided. For nuraing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14
days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. if deficiencles are cited, an approved plan of correction la requislte to conlinued
program participation.
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W 104 {-Continued From page 1 W 104 '
. !

staff interview, Human Resources took aver the

-| space where the sensory classroom area was

| located- over 2 months ago. The staff indicated
Client #2 enjoyed the sensory room. According to

staff, Client #2 no longer likes going to the day

program since the sensory room was

discontinued. The staff noted they try to find other

activities'to get Client #2 involved In.

During an additional interview with: DSP #5 at the
home on 7/7/15 at.12:00 pm, DSP #5 explained if
1 Client #2 wants something he will grab it. There

| are days he might participate in:activities, other

| days he wiil not.

During an interview with the Behavior Analyst

- (BA), who was the former Qualified Intellectual
Disabilitles Professional (QIDP) In the Board

1 Room, on 7/8/15 at 9:20 AM, the BA confirmed a
-sensory reom was in use at the day program for

| Client #2 and others. Two months ago, this area

1 for sensory programming became Human
'Resources. The movement was beyond "our"
control. The BA also confirmed the Executive
team made the decision to re-organize and
'discontinued the use of the sensory room at the
time. In further interview, the BA stated Client #2
did attend the day program frequently-and
engaged in activities in that room. The BA further
confirmed client #2 has not attended the day
program since the discontinuation of the:sensory
-room over 2 months ago. i

During an interview with the Executive Director
{ (ED) in the Board Room, on 7/8/15 at 9:50 AM,
the ED confirmed the use of the sensory room
was discontinued at the day program 2 months
ago. The ED stated the facility is still in the
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- W 104 | Continued From page 2 - W 104 i
‘movement process, but will be getting the ! ,
‘sensory room back. The previous location for the | ! !
sensory room is now being used for Human |
Resources. In continued interview, the ED '
reported the furniture for the sensory room is
stored at the Center, and “we" plan to- identify
another location for the sensory room at the day
program. In further interview the ED confirmed, "I
was not aware that client #2 was not attending
the alternate sensory area at the other group "
‘home." The ED confirmed it was a management |
decision to temporarily discontinue the use of the
‘sensory room, and it was not based on clients'
needs. ‘
i. During an interview with the QIDP by phone, on |
7/8/15 at 10:55 AM, the QIDP confirmed the i
. clients_do not like the atmosphere.at the day..
program, and they do not like being there, The
1 QIDP stated, "l am not sure if it is the structure or
i the activities there. | am not sure of what the
| plans are there with the reorganization efforts. |
. have no Idea of what is going on there at the day |
program. | am aware that the clients do not like
going." ]
W 159 | 483.430(a) QUALIFIED MENTAL RETARDATION W 168(| w159 A. B/24115
| PROFESSIONAL i Corrective Action: Clients #2, #4, and #5: ISP
i ' and BSP will be reviewed and updated as needed
| Each client's active treatment program must be to provide clarity of instruction to facilitate staff
integrated, coordinated and moriltored by a , ‘ml?le“:‘“mat“’“l"f:?"?h. fo?mil Zf‘d ‘“lf‘.’lrlmal
qualified mental retardation professional. | 1 :gzxfs-itr;a;fz?c:;;:f“‘as ineluding s
. . , ; Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the
This STANDARD s ‘:'Ot met as evidenced by: finding -and determined that any individual in the
| Base_d on record review, observation, and ) home could receive inconsistent implementation
| interview, the facility failed to ensure each client's | of their programming.
| active treatment program was integrated, !
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coordinated, and monitored by a Qualified
Intellectual Disabllities Professional (QIDP) to
ensure consistent implementation. This affected ¥
of 3 sampled clients (Client #2) and 2 of 3
un-sampled clients (Clients #4, #5).The facility

| also failed to ensure staff was competent in
training on skill acquisition outcomes; the day

| program met client needs; or clients were
afforded an opportunity to participate in meal

preparation, family style dining, and post-meal |
clean-up. This-affected 3 of 3 sampled clients
(Clients #1, #2, #3) and 3 of 3 un-sampled clients ’
| (Clients #4, #5, #6). The facility also failed to ‘
ensure medlcations were not prescribed to i
manage behavior on an as needed basis. This |
affected 3 of 3 un-sampled clients (Clients #4, #5,
| #8),

| The findings included:

See W249 - Staff did not involve, model, teach,

| prompt or reinforce skill acquisition outcome of
signing "yes" with Client #2. Staff did not
implement the gait belt plan as outlined in Client
#2's Individual Support Plan (ISP). Staff did not
prompt or teach Client #2 to implement outcame
of putting on socks with verbal prompts. Staff also
falled to assess why Client #2 did not want to
attend the day program. Staff did not involve,
“model, teach, prompt or reinforce skill acquisition
outcome of increasing independent living skills in |
the kitchen by sefting the oven temperature for |
his recipe Independently with Client #4. Staff did
not invalve, model, teach, prompt or reinforce skill
acquisition for the outcome of working at the Hunt
Opportunity Center for 3 hours, four days each
week. Staff were not observed to invoive, model,
teach, prompt or reinforce Client #5's skill
acquisition outcome of engaging Client #5 in an

(X4 Ip | SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ID PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION : (X5)
PREFIX |' (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
TAG ! REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING |INFORMATION) TAG ! CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE i DATE
i DEFICIENCY) i
Preventative Measnres: The ICF/IID at Life
W 159 | Continued From page 3 W 169 | Bridges has been restructured to-widen the

~ scope:of both. accountability and the number

© of personnel resources brought to bear on the
challenges faced by the individuals served and
the staff who serveithem. This change includes
changes in personnel including the QIDP and
Assistant Program Manager. The ICF Director
will provide operating directions and |
supervigion.fo ensure considtent |
implementation. This will both provide the
changes necessary for-compliance with the _
active treatment condition of participation and |’
ensure future compliance, !

Monitoring: The ICF Director will provide
ongoing teaining and supervision of the
Program Manager who maintains the role of
the Qualified Intelleétual Disabilities
Professional(QIDP),

B. Corrective Action: Client #1-6's staff will | | 8/24/15
be retrained as evidenced by training: agenda |
and handouts along with signature sheets on '
skill acquisition outcomes and:active
treatment, Staff will receive training in
implementing family style dining, This

] training will be both immediate and ongoing.

| Clients #4:and #S prefer to eat in thicir rooims,,
Non-gompliance with programming is an

- ongoing barrier for them. The Behavior.

Client- which includes an-individualized

compliance plan. Staff wilf be trained on and

follow the new plans,

Identification: Each individual in the home
was cited in the finding.
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1

See W312 - The QIDP failed to ensure there
were na medicatlons to manage behavior
administered on an as needed basis for Clients
#4, #5-and #6.

;lDuring a phorie interview with the Qualified
Intellectual Disabilities Professional (QIDP) on
'7/8/15 at 10:65 am, the QIDP confirmed she had
‘been on the job for less than 6 weeks. The QIDP
Ifurther confirmed Client #2, #4, and #5's ISP
Igoals should be followed by staff. The QIDP also
confirmed she was aware Client #2 had refused
to attend the day program. The QIDP confirmed
she was still In the transition stage of her role,
‘observing stage and had a lot to learn about the
clients. Final interview confirmed the QIDP she
had not had time to observe the routine in the
‘home and had time to adequately assess staff
;implementation of goal outcomes and the ISP for
| Client #2, #4, and #5.

PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION

|

(X4) ID ~ SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ! ) (X5)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PREGEDED BY FULL | PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE GOMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DATE
J| DEFICIENCY)
' ' [l Preventative Measures: Staff training in
— W-159 | Continued From page 4 - - W 1591 | —skill acquisition,-active treatment, and — -
activity outside of his room, in the common areas faraily style dining which will be immediate
of the house, for three minutes. Staff were not provided formally (provided in multimedia ]
| observed to involve, madel, teach, prompt or Sem“.gd"":.% ICF l?"fc“-’--’) and ""g"'”‘f
| reinforce Client #5's skill acquisition outcomne of gﬁoﬂvlle:de:;‘)orma 3 oy ROpeVBaIBIET
picking up hls groceries and placing them in the ' {
van. Monitoring: Supervisors will observe
_ mealtimes at least weekly through 8/31/15
 See WA488 - Staff did not involve, teach, prompt and at least monthly through 12/31/15.
‘or reinforce acquisition of dining skills in meal | Documentation will be recorded in
pr_epalza,’(i_on. family- style dining, or postémea| supc_rvisory contacts, Program manager will
clean-up for Clients #1, #2 #3, #4, #5, #6 during monitor monthly through the monthly .
observations in the home. review process and as nesded, The ICF !
Director will provide ongoing training and 1
See W104 - The sensory classroom was ey - e '&f;frﬂiﬁg?iﬂ“&mﬁ" who !
discontinued at the day program due to Intellectual Disabilities Professional
reorganization. The QIDP did not monitor to (QIDP).
@nsure appropriate sensory programming for n
Client #2. 159 C. Corrective Action: Physician 824115

discharged all medical/behavior protocols
for Clients #4, #5, and #6, Psychotropic
medications were reviewed and adjusted as
needed. This is documented by physician
orders. |

Identification: The Director of Nursing, ! i
ICF Charge Nurse, and ICF Director _
reviewed the findings noting that the other

individuals in the home:could potentially be |
affected by the practice. ’

developed and put into practice regarding
medications for behavior. Staff will be
trained on the protocol as documented by
signature sheets.

Preventative Measures: A profocol was ' ‘

Monitoring: This will be monitored by ICF
Director, Program Manager and Supervisors
through weekly event management, by the
Clinical Team through monthly Clinical
Treatment Team, and through agency event

FORM CMS-2667(02-99) Previous Veralons Obsolete
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I » _ : : : | w190 - i
W 190 | 483.430(e)(2) STAFF TRAINING PROGRAM W 190| | corrective Action: ISP and BSP for Clients | 8/24/15
B . . #1-6 will be réeviewed and updated as needed
For employees who work with clients, tralning to provide clarity of instruction to facilitate’
must focus on skills and competencies directed staff implementation of both formal and:
toward clients' developmigntal needs. informal active treatment activities including |

. skill acquxsmon outcomes. Their staff will
| ! receive ongoing training to facilitate quality

| This STANDARD s not met as-evidenced by: o it |

| Based on pbservation and iriterview, the facllity
failed to provnde training in developmental | progrmiuing tahelrhighist capability.
programming principles and techniques including | - Identification: Bach individual in the hoie
how to involve clients in their programs to their . was identified in:the citation.
highest capabilities, use of positive reinforcement, |

| and fading:prompts; resulting in a lack of skill | . Preventative Measures: Thé ICE Director
.acquisition for 3 of 3:sampled clients (Clients #1, will provide formal training events focusingon
#2 #3) and 3 of 3 un- sampled clients (Cllents #4 active treatment, pos:t:vc-mmforcem?nt, and .

fading prompts. Program Manager wilt work

#5, #8). with shift leaders and supervisors to provide |

' A . ongoing formal and informal training on

The findings included: de\%elogmentél programming, use ofgposit'ive l
. _ reinforces; and fading prompts throvghout the

See W249 - Staff-did not'Involve, model, teach, | year,

prompt or reinforce the skill acquisition outcome |

of signing "yes" with Client #2. Staff did not | Maonitoring: Signature sheets attached to

‘prompt or teach Client #2 to implement his ' training agendas and handouts will be used to

outcome of pulting on socks with verbal prompts. document compliance. The ICF Director will

provide operating directions and supervision to

| Staff did not involve, model, teach, prompt or
ensure consistent unplementatlon

 reinforce the skill acquisition outcome of
increasing independent living skiils in the kitchen
by setting the oven temperature for his recipe
Independently with Client #4. Staff did nat involve,
model, teach, prompt or reinforce the skill

- acquisition outcome of working at the Hunt
Opportunity Center for 3 hours, four days each
week without 1:1 staffing." Staff'did not involve,
model, teach, prompt or reinforce the skill
acquisition outcome of engaging Client #5 in an
activity outside of-his room, in the common areas |
j of the house, for three minutes. Staff did not '
; involve, model, teach, prompt or reinforce the skill
| acquisition outcome of picking up his groceries
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PREFIX
TAG

W.190- Gontinued From-page 6 -
every other week by helping to put the groceries
in‘the van with Client #5.

See WA488 - Staff did not involve, teach, prompt
or reinforce the acquisition of dining skills in meal
preparation, family style dining, or post-meal
clean-up for Clients #1, #2 #3, #4, #5, #6 during
observations In the home.

During an interview with the Behavior Therapist
(BT), the former Qualified Intellectual Disabilities
Professional for the facility, in the home office on
7/7115 at 2:00 pm, the BT confirmed the facility
provides no formal training on developmental
programming techniques such as using positive
reinforcement or fading prompts to train direct
care staff how to involve clients in their programs
to their highest capabilities. The BT stated

__training.on what Active Treatment Is, such as__
offering choices, accurs during house staff
meetings.

During an interview with the Director of Case
Management and Client Services (DCM) in the
Board Room, on 7/8/15 at 9:45 am, the DCM
confirmed the facllity does not provide training on
teaching to direct care staff.

483.440 ACTIVE TREATMENT SERVICES

W 195

Thefacility must ensure that spécific active
treatment services requirements are met.

This CONDITION is not met as evidenced by:
/'Based on observation, interview, and record
"review, the facility failed to provide a planned

2D, Sectisnl, (contribickon+o Ordlerly DeelgmaEMERTAL #1

May 27, 20'ﬁf;‘TEDi 07/20/2015

ORM APPROVED
10:30 am O 0938-0391
(%2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION | .. .
A BUILDING
B. WING 07/08/2015
STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
2601 BOWER LANE S E
il CLEVELAND, TN 37323
{358
w490 _
W 196
y.L0) 8/24/15

Corrective Action: ISP and BSP for Client #2
will be reviewed and updated as needed to
provide clarity of instruction o facilitate siaff
implementation of both formal and informal
active treatment activities including skill
acquisition outcomes. Their staff will receive
ongoing training to facilitate quality
developmental programming so that individual
Clients are supported in being involved in their
programming to their highest capability.

S T o
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+ program of formal and informal training

" opportunities designed to increase skills and lead
. to greater independence for 1 out of 3 sampled
 clients (Clients #2) and 2 out of 3 un-sampled

| clients (Clients #4, #5).

" The findings included: 1|

| See W104 The sensory classroom was' |
discontinued at the day jprogram due to
rearganization and:no accommodations, of clients
needing sensory programming were made.

- See W159 The facility failed to ensure each client
was receiving an active treatment program to !
, assure outcomes were implemented

- See W196. The facllity failed to provide
| aggressive and consistent training and services
i leading to appropriate adaptive behaviors and
!; purposeful activity.

; See W190 The facility failed to provide Direct

i Support Staff training in developmental

| programming principles and techniques
necessary to involve clients in their programs to
their highest capabilities.

|
| See W224 The facility failed to identify the !
+ specific behavioral management needs of clienits. i

See W227 The facility failed to ensure the
Comprehensive Functional Assessment (CFA)
! was updated annually to assess the behavior of
| non-compliance and assure a plan was
I developed to address the needs most likely to
. interfere with daily life. 5
. |
.! See W249 The facility failed to implement the |

(X4) 1D SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X5)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE | COMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG GCROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DATE
DEFICIENCY)
W 195 | Continued From page 7 W 195 The BSP for Clients #4 and #5 will be

updated to include a compliance plan which
focuses on positive reinforcement and
participation in appropriate skill acquisition
programming.

Identification: The ICF Director reviewed
the practice and found that each individual
in the home is at risk to be effected by the
practice,

Preventative Measures: The ICF/IID at
Life Bridges has been restructured to widen
the scope of both accountability and the
number of personnel resources brought to
bear on the challenges faced by the
individuals served and the staff who serve
them. This change includes changes in
personne! assignments; including the QIDP
and Assistant Program Manager.

Monitoring: Behavior Analyst will provide
updated BSPs. The ISPs will be reviewed
and updated. This will be documented
through ISPs and BSPs dated post 7/8/15 as
well as through planning teams in the same
period. Staff will be trained on the new
documents demonstrated by signatures on
training documents. The ICF Director will
provide operating directions and
supervision to ensure consistent
implementation. I
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W 195

W 196

-Continued From page 8

Individual Support Plan (ISP) through a i
! continuous active treatment program of sufficient
| number and frequency to meet outcomes.

no medications to manage behavior administered |

oon an as needed basis.

|

| See W488 The facility falled to ensure clients

‘were provided support, training, socialization, and |
'opportunities to eat meals in a manner consistent
‘with their developmental levels.

483.440(a)(1) ACTIVE TREATMENT

 Each client must receive a continuous active
‘treatment program, which includes aggressive,
consistent implementation of a program of
specialized and generic training, treatment, health
services:and related -services-deseribed-n this
subpart, that is directed toward: d

(i) The acquisition of the behaviors necessary for
| the client to function with as much self

| determination and independence as possible; and |

| (i) The prevention or deceleration of regression
or loss of current optimal functional status.

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
Based on observation, interview and record
review, the facllity failed to provide aggressive
‘and consistent training and services leading to

‘See W312 The facility failed to ensure there were |

appropriate adaptive behaviors and purposeful
activity for 2 of 2 un-sampled clients (Client #4 ,
#5).

] 1. An abservation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4:01
I

The findings included: ‘
|
!

- W 198/

W 196 -

. an increase in functional activities throughout

| the morning when resistance to functional

4 plan. The IDT will meet to develop a plan to

WI196 |
Corrective Action: Non-compliance with
programming is an ongoing barrier for Clients
#4, The Behavior Analyst will provide a new
BSP for Client #4, which includes an
individualized compliance plan. The IDT will
meet-to develop a-plan to address interests and

8/24/15

the day. Staff will be trained on and follow the
new plans. Staff will provide functional
choices throughout the day but particularly in

activity and skill acquisition are at their height.
The focus will be on getting Client #4 to
establish the habit of going to work and
ultimately completing the workday.

Non-compliance with programming is an
ongoing barricr for Clients #5. The Behavior
Analyst will provide a new BSP for Client #5,
which includes an individualized compliance

address interests and an increase in functional
activities throughout the day. Staff will be
trained on and follow the new plans. Staff will
provide functional choices throughout the day
but particularly in the morning when resistance
to functional activity and skill
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.pm revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom
with the covers drawn over his head. Continued
observation in the home revealed dinner was

.| served at 5:16 pm but Client #4 remained in his
bedroom and did not come to the table to eat.

| Further observation in the home from 4.02 pm
| until 6:37 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his
bedroom lying In his bed asleep.

| An observation in the home on 7/7/15 at 7:05 am
{ revealed Cllent #4 was. asleep in his bedroom
| with the covers drawn over his head. Continued

observation in the home revealed breakfast was

! served at 8:08 am but Client #4 remained in his

| bedroom and did not come to the table to eat.
Further abservation in the home from 7:06 am

L until 12:17 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his
bedroom lying in his bed asleep.

During an interview with Direct Support

| Professional (DSP) # 1 in the living of the home

| on 7/6/16 at 6:01 pm, the DSP confirmed Client
#4 "does as he chooses." Further interview with
:DSP#1 confirmed "we do give him choices and if
he wants to lie in his bed and stay in his room, we
have to-respect those choices." Final interview
with DSP #1 confirmed Client #4 "does not eat his
‘meals with the rest of the home unless he
chooses."

‘During an interview with DSP #3 In the living
‘room of the home on 7/7/15 at 8:29 am, DSP #3
‘confirmed Cllent #4's day "depends on lots of
.variables." Continued interview with DSP #3

| confirmed Client #4's attendance at the Hunt
Opportunity Center (HOC) [his day program
services] was not what it used to be and he rarely
makes his goal to attend 4 times per week.
Additional interview with DSP #3 confirmed Client

| Day Programming, They will also work to
" increase functional activities in the home.

. Identification: The ICF Director reviewed

J

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES 1(%1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/GUIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION
| AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: COMPLETED
A BUILDING
44G0S0 B. WING 07/08/2015
' NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREETADDRESS, CITY, STATE; ZIP CODE
1 LIFE BRIDGES CATE HOUSE 2601 BOWER LANE S E
3 CLEVELAND, TN _37323
I xayio | SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X8)
PREFIX | (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
TAG i REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) | TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DATE
: ' ' 1 DEFICIENCY)
' i \ Vi -
W 196 | Continued Erom page 9 LW 196! | acquisition arc at their height. Client #5 and

his staff will:explore opportunities in the
community to include work, volunteer
opportunities; and possible:alternatives for

the practice and determined that.other

compliance as a barrier.

Preventative Measures: The Behavior
Analyst will assess compliance with
behavior plans as part of the BA monthly
review and the annual assessment for
Clients #4 and #5. Staff' will document
compliance and-positive:reinforcers as part
of the communication notes.

Monitoring: Supervisors-witl observe and
coach staff in following the BSPs. They
will review communication notes weekly
through September 2015 to ensure
appropriate practice and documentation.
The Program Manager will review notes at
least monthly to engure compliance.
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#4 rarely meets his goals because “lots of his
goals are hit or miss and it depends on how his

‘day his going." Final interview with DSP #3
confirmed his "behaviors [were] pretty severe and
not provoking [Client #4] into having a behavior"

is the primary reason non-compliance was
iaccepted by the staff at the facility.

“During an interview with the Behavior Therapist A
(BT) in the living room of the home on 7/6/15 at ' {
| 6:07 pm, BT confirmed Client#4's behaviors and 1
Irefusal to participate in active treatment is a - -
"significant barrier to learning skills." Further
linterview with BT confirmed non-compliance was
not addressed in the current behavior support .
plan (BSP) for client #4. Final interview confirmed i
“respecting choice was the primary reason the
‘team decided to not address non-compliance with
[Client#4]*

A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP)
dated 8/11/14 revealed "[Client #4] does not like |
being told what to do." Further review of the ISP |
revealed "[Client #4] works on contracts at [HOC] |
as he desires." Additional review of the ISP '
1 identifles "[Client #4's] non-compliance and
attention to task could be a barrier to progress..." |
Non-compliance by [Client #4] was repeatedly
described as an Impediment to active treatment
in-6 out of 7 outcomes listed in his ISP.

A review of the BSP dated 4/21/15 revealed 3

target behaviors for Client #4: verbal aggression, | '
physical aggression and obsessive behaviors.
Further review of the BSP revealed it did not
address non-compliance as a target behavior.
Additional review of the BSP revealed DSP's
were to address non-compliance by "[respecting
Client #4] and his decisions ... [and ta only]
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1:nothing in the BSP for Glient #4 that addresses

| interview with the QIDP confirmed the "facility

1 2. An observation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4:01

1 pm revealed Client #5:was asleep in his bedroom
| with the covers drawn over his head. Continued |
| observation in the home revealed dinner was !

.engage in activities which he enjoys."

During a conference call interview with the
Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional
(QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15
at 10:45 am, the QIDP: confirmed there was

non-compliance. Further interview confirmed
non-compllance was a "significant barrier to
achieving active treatment and:the circle of
support (COS) needed to address it." Additional |

practice of engaging [Client #4] only in preferred
activity does not:lead to self-sufficiency and teach |
any skillful things to [Client #4] "

‘served at 5:16 pm but Client #5 remained in his
bedroom:and:did not:come to the table:to:eat.
Additional observation at §:17 pm revealed Client
#5 came out of room, retrieved an apple, and
returned to his room. Further observation in the
home from 4:02 pm until 6:37 pm revesled Client
#5 remairied in his bedroom lying in his bed,

-sitting at his computer, or standing in the room. |

il An observation in the home on 7/7/15 at 7:05 am

| revealed Client #5 was asléep in his bedroom

| with the covers drawn over his head. Continued

| observation in the home revealed breakfast was
served at 8:08 am but Client #5 remalned in his
“bedroom asleep and.did not come to the table to

| eat. Further observation in the home at7:56 am
revealed Client#5 came out of his bedroom,
retrieved a pair of jeans and a shirt, and returned
| to his room. Additional observation at 8:21 am

|
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revealed Client #5 had changed from his pajamas:
to the jeans and shirt he had retrieved earlier but .
had gone back to bed. Final observation from
8:03 am until 12:17 pm revealed Client #5
remained in his bed in his bedroom except to |
retrieve an apple from the kitchen at:8:47 am.

During an interview with Direct Support
Professional (DSP) #2 in the living room of the
home on 7/6/15 at 6:24 pm, the DSP confirmed
Client #5 "does as he chooses." Further interview
‘with DSP # 2 confirmed "we do give him choices
‘and if he wants to lie in his bed and stay in his |
room, we have to respect those choices." Final
interview with DSP #2 confirmed Client #5 "does !
not eat his meals with the rest of the home unless:|
he chooses." \

During an-interview-with DSP #4-in the living | |
room of the home on 7/7/15 at 8:52 am, DSP #4 |
confirmed Client #5 has a goal to wake up before |
'10:00 am. Continued interview with DSP |
confirmed Client #5 "gets $5.00 if he gets up : '
before 10:00 am even if he gets up and then goes i
back to bed." Further interview with DSP #4 ' 1
iconfirmed "we do not like to push him to provoke | |

|

|

"him to have a behavior since he has been doing
much better with just letting him do-what he wants''
o do for the day." Final interview with DSP #4
confirmed Client #5 primarily wants to "be on his
computer and watch his movies."

i.During an interview with the BT in the living room

| of the home on 7/6/15 at 6:07 pm, BT confirmed

| Client #5's prefers to be in his room “on his
‘computer or watching movies." Further interview

' with BT confirmed refusal to participate in active

| treatment was not addressed in his Behavior

| Maintenance Plan (BMP). Additional interview |
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W 196 Continued From:page 13
with BT confirmed the primary difference between
a BSP and BMP was the latter was not as
“intense as a BSP and it marked improvement
with behaviors." Final interview with BT confirmed
if Client #5 decided to do nothing for the day,
although it was not preferred by the facility, "they
would -have to respect his choice."

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES
(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL
REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)

A review of the Individual Support Plan:(ISP)
dated:4/10/15 revealed Client #5 graduated from
high school in 6/14. Additional review of the ISP
revealed despite -having a history of "causlng
severe damage or harm to people and/or
property...[Client #5] does not currently require
active behavior support services." Continuied
review of the ISP reveals “[Client #5] has a strong
preference towards his computer and TV."
Further review reveals Client #5 prefers to sleep
rather than engage in active treatment and
receives $5.00 if he-gets up by 10 am as the
"COS feels the higher need at this time is to get
up." However, continued review of the 1SP
revealed the $5.00 Client #5 receives was not
contingent on:particlpating in any activities
instead; it is-eamed for waking up only.

Areview of the BMP dated 4/23/16 revealed 1
target behaviors for Client #5: "physical
aggression towards others" [defined by] "hitting,
kicking, scratching, biting, and causing harm to
others." Further review of the BMP reveals these
behaviors are most likely to occur when “asking
him to complete a task he does not want to do."
Final review of the BMP reveals "giving Client #5

preventing physical aggression.

During a conference ¢all interview with the
Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional
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Continued Frompage 14 pEe b
(QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15
at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed there is no

| "COS on horizon to address [Client #5]'s routine
he is determining and we have to change...and
we have nothing in the BSP to address .
non-compliance." Further interview with the QIDP
confirmed "everything we do is non-productive
and we avoid all non-preferred activities because
it his choice." Additional interview with the QIDP
confirmed there is a conflict "with the:whole

deal with Client #5's need to learn something by
giving him a defined array of choices." Further
interview with the QIDP confirmed there were
“boundaries on choices and non-compliance and
non-participation.” Final additional interview with
_the QIDP confirmed the facility "practice of
_engaging [Client #5] only in preferred activity does
_notJead-to self-sufficiency and teach any-skillful
things to [Client #5]."

1483.440(c)(3)(v) INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM PLAN

The comprehensive functional assessment must
iinclude adaptive behaviors or independent living
skills necessary for the client to be able to
function in the community.

“This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
- Based on observation, interview and record
review, the facility failed to identify the specific
behavioral management needs for 2 of 2
un-sampled clients (Client #4, #5)

The findings included:;

' 1. An observation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4:01
| pm revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom

i

choice concept and putting something in place to |

“W 196

W 224

Client#4 and adjust:his plan as needed to
eflect current needs. The new BSP will

| ‘The new BSP will address compliance with
| skill acquisition programming. The BA will

w224

Corrective Action: The Behavior Analyst

will review behavior management needs of h
|
|
|

8/24/15

address compliance with skill acquisition
programming: The BA will train staff on
the:new plan.

The Behavior Analyst will review behavior

management needs of Client #5 and adjust
his plan as needed to reflect current needs.

train staff on the new plan.
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W 224 | Continued From page 15 W 224 ([ Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the

practice and determined that others in the home
are at risk for plans that do not identify the
specific behavioral management needs.

| with the covers drawn over his:head. Continued
- observation in the home revealed dinner was
| served at 5:16 prm but Client #4 remained in his

bedroomn and did not come to the table. to eat. p tative M + The Behavi
| Further observation in the home from 4:02 pm ok B o & o Dcnavion
s 5 o L nalyst will review and update plans for
until:6:37 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his individuals in the home as needed to reflect
{ bedroom lying in his bed asleep. current behavior management needs. Staff will

be trained on these plans as they are updated.
An observation in the home on. 7/7/15 at 7:05 am
revealed Client #4 was:asleep in his bedroom: Monitoring: Timely completion of behavior

o with the covers drawn over his hiead. Continued | assessments, BSP's, and periodic reviews will
| observation in the home revealed breakfast was | be monitored by the Program Manager and

1 served at 8:08 am but Glient #4:remained in his | supervised by the Therapies Director. The ICF
' bedroom and did not come to the table to eat. Director will provide operating directions and
{ Further observation in the home from 7:06 am f;‘;jg;se’s;;‘; cnsure consistent

| until 12:17 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his '

I bedroom lying in his bed asleep.

During an interview with the Behavior Therapist

+(BT) in the living room of the home on 7/6/15 -at

 6:07 pm, BT confirmed Client #4's behaviors and

| refusal to participate in active treatment Is a
"significant barrier to learning skills.” Further
interview with BT-corifirmed nen-compliance was

. hot addressed in the current behavior support
plan (BSP) for client-#4. Final interview confirmed |,
“respecting choice was the primary reason the
‘team decided to not address non-compliance with
[Client #4]."

‘A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP)
dated 8/11/14 revealed "[Client #4]} does not:like
‘being told what to do." Further review of the ISP |
revealed "[Client #4] works on contracts at [HOC]
as he desires." Additional review of the ISP
identifies "[Client #4's] non-compliance and
attention-to task could be a barrier to progress..." !
Non-compliance by [Client #4] was repeatedly '
described as an Impediment to actlve treatment
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in 6 out of 7 outcomes listed In his ISP. |
A review of the BSP dated 4/21/15 revealed 3 |
target behaviors for Client #4. verbal aggression,
physical aggression and obsessive behaviors.

Further review of the BSP revealed it did not j i
address con-compliance as a target behavior.
Additional review of the BSP revealed DSP's
were to address non-compliance by “[respecting
Client #4] and his decisions...[and to only] engage
'in activities which he enjoys."

During a conference call interview with the
Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional |
| (QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15
at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed there was
nothing in the BSP for Client #4 to address
non-compliance. Further interview confirmed the
non-compliance was a "significant barrier to
achieving-active treatment-and-the cirele-of--- e S M e DT e o 2 e
support (COS) needed to address it." Additional
interview with the QIDP confirmed the "facility
practice of engaging [Client #4] only in preferred
activity does not lead to self-sufficiency and teach
any skillful things to [Client #4]." i |
2. An observation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4:01 !
pm revealed Client #5 was asleep in his bedroom
with the covers drawn over his head. Continued
observation in the home revealed dinner was
served at 5:16 pm but Client #5 remained in his
‘bedroom and did not come to the table to eat.

' Additional observation at 5:17 pm revealed Client
#5 came out of room, retrieved an apple, and
returned to his room. Further observation in the
-home from 4:02 pm until 6:37 pm revealed Client
#5 remained in his bedroom lying in his bed, ; |
sitting at his computer, or standing in the room.

An observation in the home on 7/7/15 at 7:05 am 1
revealed Client #5 was asleep in his bedroom [
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with the covers drawn over his head. Continued

. observation in the home revealed breakfast was
served at 8:08 am but Client #5 remained in his

.| bedroom asleep and did not come to the table to
1 eat. Further observation in the home at 7:56 am
revealed:Client #5 came out of his bedroom,
rétrieved a pair of jeans and a shirt, and returned
to his room. Additional ebservation at 8:21 am
revealed Client #5 had changed fram his pajamas
to the jeans and shirt:he had retrieved earlier but
' had gone back to bed. Final observation from

1 8:03 am untit 12:17 pm revealed Client #5

i remained in his bed in his bedroom except to
retrieve an.apple from the kitchen at 8:47 am.

J During an interview with the BT in the living room |
1 of the home on 7/6/16 at 6:07 pm, BT confirmed

- Glient #5's prefers to be in his room "on his

I computer or watching movies." Further interview
with BT confirmed refusal to participate in active |
treatment was not addressed in his Behavior [
Maintenance Plan (BMP). Additional:interview

with BT confirmed the primary difference between. |
a:‘BSP and BMP was the latter was not as '
"intense as a BSP and it marked improvement

: with behaviors." Final interview with BT confirmed
‘if Client #6 decided to do nothing for the day,
-although it was not preferred by the facility, "they
“would have to respect his choice.”

' A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP)
{ dated 4/10/16 revealed Client #5 graduated from
1 high schoel in 5/14. Additional review of the ISP |
| revealed despite having a history of "causing
| severe damage or harm to people andfor

| property...[Client #5] does not currently require

| active behavior support services." Continued '

I review of the ISP reveals "[Client #5] has a strong
i preference towards his computer and TV." |
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| Further review reveals Client #5 prefers to sleep
rather than engage in active treatment and

 receives $5.00 if he gets up by 10 am as the

"COS feels the higher need at this time is to get

up." However, continued review of the ISP

| revealed the $5.00 Client #5 receives was not

| contingent on participating in any activities

| instead; it was earned for waking up only. |

A review of the BMP dated 4/23/15 revealed 1 |
target behaviors for Client #5: "physical
‘aggression towards others "[defined by] hitting,
kicking, scratching, biting, and causing harm to [
others." Further review of the BMP reveals these ,
behaviors are most likely to occur when "asking |
him to complete a task he does not want to do."
Final review of the BMP reveals "giving Client #5 1
choices" was the most effective manner of ’
-preventing-physical-aggression:- i |

During a conference call interview with the '
Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional '
'(QIDP) in the board room of the facllity on 7/8115 '
‘at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed there was no
"COS on horizon to address [Client #5]'s routine
e is determining and we have to change...and
i ‘we have nothing in the BSP to address
‘non-compliance." Further interview with the QIDP |
confirmed "everything we do Is non-productive
-and we avoid all non-preferred activities because
‘it his cholce.” Additional interview with the QIDP
confirmed there is a conflict "with the whole
_choice cancept and putting something in place to
deal with Client #5's need to learn something by :
giving him a defined array of choices.” Further . |
interview with the QIDP confirmed there were ‘
[

“"boundaries on choices and non-compliance and
non-participation." Final additional interview with |
| the QIDP confirmed the facility “practice of | |
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engaging [Client #5] only in preferred activity does
not lead to self-sufficiency and teach any skillful
things to [Client #5]."
483.440(c)(4) INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM PLAN w 227

The individual program plan states the specific
objectives necessary to meet the client's needs,
as identified by the comprehensive assessment
required by paragraph (c)(3) of this section.

This STANDARD s nat met as evidenced by:
Based on record review, observation, and
interview, the facility failed to ensure the
Comprehensive Functional Assessment (CFA)
was updated annually to assess the behavior of
non-compliance and assure a plan was
developed to address the needs most likely to
Interfere with dally life for 2 of 2 un-sampled
clients (Client #4, #5).

The findings included:

1. Areview of Client #4's CFA dated 6/25/14
revealed a need to "increase in independence
with appropriate behavior and attention to task."
Further review of the CFA revealed an "Ihcrease
focus on tasks presented to Client#4. Further
review of the CFA revealed. there was: no
assessment of the behavior of non-compliance
which posed a significant barrier to success in
daily life for Client #4.

A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP)

dated 8/11/14 revealed "[Client #4] does not like
being told what to do." Further review of the ISP

Event ID: JCMZ 11

Facility ID: TNP5387

CLEVELAND, TN 37323

PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (X6)
(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APFROPRIATE
DEFICIENCY)
8/24/15

w227

Corrective Action: Comprehensive Functional:
Assessments (CFA) will be updated to reflect
the current needs of Clients #4 and #5. The ISP
will be adjusted to reflect the current needs
identified in the CFA. Staff will be trained on
skill acquisition outcomes,

* Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the
practice and determined that the other
individuals could be at risk for CFAs which do
not reflect current needs.

Preventative Measures: The ICF/IID at Life
Bridges has been restructured to widen the
scope of both accountability and the number of
personnel resources brought to bear on the
challenges faced by the individuals served and
the staff who serve them. This change includes
changes in personnel including the QIDP and
Assistant Program Manager,

Monitoring: The Program Manager will work ||
with staff to gather pertinent data and complete |
the Comprehensive Functional Assessment at
least annually. The ICF Director will provide
operating directions and supervision to ensure
consistent implementation.
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| with DSP #3 confirmed his "behaviors [were] |

“Continued From page 20

.An ebservation in the home on 7/7/15 from 7:06

revealed "[Client #4] works...as he desires."
Additional review of the ISP identified "[Client _
#4's) non-compliance and attention to task could -
be a barrier to progress..." Non-cempliance by |
[Client #4] was repeatedly discussed and

‘revealed as an impediment to active treatment in

6 out of 7 outcomes listed in his ISP.

| pm until 6:37 pm revealed Client #4 remained in

l
:
{
'An observation in the home on 7/6/15 from 4:02 1
| his bedroom lying asleep in his bed. |[

am until 12:17 pm revealed Client #4 remained in
his bedroom lying asleep in his bed.

During an interview with Direct Support
Professional (DSP) #3 in the living room of the
home-on7/7/15 at-8:29 am, DSP #3 confirmed
Client #4 rarely meets his goals. Further interview

pretty severe and not provoking [Client #4] into
having a behavior" is the primary reason
non-compliance was accepted by the staff atthe |
facility. Final interview with DSP confirmed the
non-compliance was accepted by the facility and
“we just work around his schedule of things he
wants to do."

During an interview with the Behavior Therapist
(BT) in the living room of the home on 7/6/15 at
6:07 pm, BT confirmed Client #4's behaviors and
refusal to participate in active treatment is a
"significant barrier to learning skills." Further
interview with BT confirmed non-compliance was -
not addressed in the current behavior support
plan (BSP), ISP, or assessed in the CFA for client.
#4, Final interview confirmed "respecting choice
was the primary reason the team decided to not

W227| — T e
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address non-compliance with [Client #4]."

| During a conference call interview with the
Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional
| (QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15 |

at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed there was
nothing in the BSP, ISP, or assessed in the CFA
to address non-compliance by Client #4. Further
interview confirmed the non-compliance was a
“significant barrier to achieving active treatment
and the circle of support (COS) needed to
address it."

2, Arevlew of Client #5's CFA dated 3/26/15
revealed "[Client #5] lacks interest in socializing...
[and] prefers to keep to himself," Further review
|of the CFA, under the heading "Attending Skills,"
repeatedly revealed "If [Client #5] enjoys task
then he will remain focused. If the task is one he
does not enjoy will rarely stay on task." Further
‘review of the CFA reveals there was no
assessment of the behavior of non-compliance
which poses a significant barrier to success in
dally life for Client #5, - '

A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP)
“dated 4/10/15 revealed "[Client #5] does not
currently require active behavior support
sservices." Continued review of the ISP revealed
“[Client #5] has a strong preference towards his
i computer and TV." Additional review reveals

| Client #5 prefers to sleep rather than engage in !
| active treatment. Further review of Client #5's ISP
| reveals he has no interest in "non-preferred
| tasks" and routinely will not leave his room.

J An observation in the home on 7/6/16 from 4:02
pm until 6:37 pm revealed Client #5 primarily
I remained in his bedroom lying in his bed, sitting
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at his computer, or standing in the room.

Additional observation at 5:17 pm revealed Client
#5 came out of room, retrieved an apple, and ,
returned to his room. |

An observation in the home on 7/7/15 from 8:03
am until 12:17 pm revealed Client #5 remained in
his bed in his bedroom except to retrieve an
apple from the kitchen at 8:47 am.

During an Interview with DSP #4 in the living
room of the home on 7/7/15 at 8:52 am, DSP #4
confirmed “we do not like to push him to provoke

| him to have a behavior since he has been doing

| much better with just letting him do what he wants

| to do for the day." Final interview with DSP #4

| confirmed the facility was aware Client #5's

| non-compliance and the "strategy was to let him
set the tone for theday." ~————"— "~ ~

During an interview with the BT in the living room
of the home on 7/6/15 at 8:07 pm, BT confirmed
refusal to participate in active treatment was not
addressad in his Behavior Maintenance Plan

| (BMP), ISP, or assessed in the CFA. Final
interview. with BT confirmed if Client #5 decided
to do nothing for the day, although It was not
 preferred by the facliity, "they would have to
respect his choice."

| During a conference call interview with the

Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional |

(QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15

| at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed there was ’

| nothing in the IPP, BMP, or assessed in the CFA
to deal with non-compliance. Further interview
, with the QIDP confirmed there were "boundaries

- | on choices and nan-compliance and [

non-participation." Final additional interview with
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the QIDP confirmed the facillty "practice of
engaging [Client #5] only in preferred activity does l
: not lead to self-sufficiency and teach any skillful !
things to [Cllent #5]."
W 249 | 483.440(d)(1) PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION W 249 ol -
. . ) Corrective Action: The IDT will meet with
As soon as the interdisciplinary team has physical:therapist to review Client #2 gait belt

| formulated a client's individual program plan,

-This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
- Based on observation, interview, and record
‘review the facility failed to implement the

" continuous active treatment program of sufficient

_number and frequency to meet outcomes for 1 of ||
‘3 sampled clients (Client #2) and 2 of 3

The findings included:
1. Observation at the home on 7/6/15 from 4:00

| Professional (DSP) #1 held on-to Client #2's gait

 the gazebo outside, movement in and out of the
"home. There were no leisure or sensory
| materials presented to the client throughout the

each client must receive a continuous active
treatment program consisting of needed
interventions and services in sufficient number
and frequency to support the achievement of the
objectives identified in the individual program:
plan.

Individual Support Plan (ISP) through a

un-sampled clients (Clients #4, #5).

PM to 7:00 PM revealed Direct Support

belt at midline from back waist area throughout
the observation. DSP #1 followed the client as he
roamed from the common area, to the kitchen, to

- acquisition outcomes and formal and informal

* total day. This training will be documented by

: Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the

| Managers and supervisors to ensure timely

needs and plan. The result will be reflected in
the ISP. Staff-will be trained on skill

active treatment to be incorporated into the

signature sheets attached to the agenda and
handouts:

citation and recognized that others in the home
could be at risk of the deficiency,

Preventative Measures: The Program
Manager will track and trend outcome results
monthly; training staff, and alerting the IDT to
changing needs as appropriate, The Program
Manager will work with Assistant Program

implementation of programming.

Corrective Action: Clients #4 and #5 CFA,
ISP, and BSP will be reviewed and updated to
reflect-barriers posed by non-compliant {
tendencies. Staff- will be trdined in providing
functional choices, active treatment and skills |
acquisition outcomes. Staff and Program '
Maunager will work together to increase 1
compliance with programming.

|
Identification: The ICF Director reviewed the ||
noted practices finding that other persons ]
served are at risk for the deficient practice. .
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afternoon/evening routine. The client took his
shoes off at 4:35 PM; staff followed him into the
kitchen holding on to the gait beit. The client
turned off the light as he entered the kitchen. The
client left the kitchen and entered the common
room area and sat on the couch. The client's
socks and shoes were on the floor at the time.
The client continued this pattern of movement
throughout the observation and only paused. to
consume his dinner meal. DSP #1 continued to
hold on to the client's gait belt throughout his
movement in and outside the home. There were
no materials presented to Client #2 for
engagement.

During an interview with DSP #1 concerning his
continuously holding on to the client's gait belt, at
-—the-home-on 7/6/15-at 4:10 pm; DSP#1-indicated
he was supposed to hold on to Client #2's gait
belt at all times because the client is unsteady.

Observations at the home on 7/7/15 from 8:30
am to 9:30 am revealed DSP #5 presented Client
#2 with some markers and paper. The cllent took
the top of the marker off and swiped an area of
the paper; there was no functional use of the
marker. DSP #5 presented clay dough which the
client manipulated for a few seconds, but he
displayed no consistent response to the material.
DSP#5 did not engage with Client #2 to provide
training, encouragement, or direction in what to
do with these items. The client took off his shoes
and socks and walked around the home and
outside the home for most of the observation
period. There were no additional materials
presented to Client #2 for engagement during the
morning routine in the haome.
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trained in active treatent and skill

| acquisition outcomes. The Program

| Manager will track and trend outcome
results monthly; training staff and alerting

- the IDT to changing needs as appropriate.

Monitoring: Outcome results will be
reviewed with Supervisors quarterly
through the Supervisor Meeting. The ICF
Director will provide operating directions
and supervision to ensure consistent
implementation.
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! During an interview with DSP #5 at the home, on

{ 7/7/15 at 12:00 pm; DSP #5 was asked how
Client #2 communicated, DSP #5 reported Client
#2 will grab what he wants, The surveyor asked
about the client's communication goal to sign
"Yes," DSP #5 indicated she implemented It ence
this morning in the bathroom. DSP #5 noted she
did not integrate the communication: program at
any other time during the morning routine.

| In further interview, DSP #5 stated there are days !
| Client #2 might participate in activities, other days
. he will not. DSP #5 stated his ambulation plan )

says staff is to stay within arm's length unless his |
gait is unsteady, and we grasp the gait belt when |
he ambulates over uneven terrain or if ha is
unsteady.

A review of the Individual Support Plan (ISP),
dated 10/31/14, for Client #2 on 7/7/15 revealed
the client's favorite activity is looking at:

' magazines, especially phone books and

| magazines about cars, He enjoys watching
automobile racing, caaking shows.. He.enjoys
video games, will occasionally Join in but
generally prefers to watch the game played by
others. He enjoys:sweeping:and helping.in the
kitchen,

‘Continued review of the ISP revealed Client #2

‘wears a gait belt and staff Is to remain within | |
arm's reach while client is ambulating. Because i !
Client #2 values his personal space, the planning | [
| team agreed it would be sufficlent for staff to be !
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within arm's reach instead of holding the gait belt.
The ISP also noted originally staffs were holding
the gait belt which resulted In many behavior
issues.

Additional ISP review noted Client #2 stays at
home some times during the day. On these days
he does work on different activities at the home.
He enjoys watching cookihg shows, playing play
station, karaoke, and coloring with markers. He
will go to the center and participate at the sensory
room or at Mcintire house as he desires. He
enjoys functional sensory activities at the center,
enjoys play dough and finger painting.

Further ISP review revealed Client #2 has an

-—outcome training goalby 4/30/15-to-learn to-put-----~~ - -~
his socks on with verbal prompts for each
sock/foot. Client #2 has an outcome goal by
10/31/15 to improve communicating by learning
"ves" by raising and lowering his fist. The
behavior support plan (BSP) for Client #2, dated
4/29/15, indicated staff are to have client
communicate by signing "yes" when asked if he
would like a break, a preferred item, a change of
activity or staff attention. Per the BSP staff
should offer opportunities to sign "yes" throughout
each shift. Staff should model the sign for "yes"
when they say yes to Client #2.

During a telephone interview with the Qualified
Intellectual Disabllities Professional (QIDP), on
718/15 at 10:55 am, the QIDP indicated she has
been on the job less than 6 weeks. The QIDP
indicated Client #2's ISP goals should be followed
by staff. The QIDP indicated she was aware
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Client #2 has refused to attend the day program.

' The QIDP indicated she is still in the transition
stage of her role, the observing stage, and has a
lot to learn about the clients. The QIDP noted
she has not had time to observe the routine in the
home to adequately assess staff implementation |
of goal training and the ISP for client #2. | !

. 2. An observation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4:01
pm revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom
' with the covers drawn ever his head. Continued

| observation in the home revealed dinner was

1 served at 5:16 pm but Client #4 remained in his

* bedroom and did not come to the table to eat. |
1 Further observation in the home from 4:02 pm

| until 6:37 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his
{ bedroom lying in his bed asleep.

An observation In the home on 7/7/16 at 7:05 am | |
revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom I I[
with the covers drawn over his head. Continued +
‘observation in the home revealed breakfast was
served at 8:08 am but Client #4 remained in his
‘bedroom and did not come to the table to eat.
Further observation in the home from 7:06 am
‘until 12:17 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his
‘bedroom lying in his bed asleep. ’

|
|
| .
During an interview with Direct Support !
'Professional (DSP) # 1 in the living of the home |
!

‘on 7/6/15 at 6:01 pm, the DSP confirmed Client
#4 "does:as he chooses." Further interview with
DSP # 1 confirmed “we do give him choices and
if he wants to lie in his bed and stay in his room,
we have to respect those choices."

During an interview with DSP #3 in the living
room of the home on 7/7/15 at 8:29 am, DSP #3
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confirmed Client #4's day "depends on lots of ’
variables.” Continued interview with DSP #3 ) i
confirmed Client #4's attendance at the Hunt '
Opportunity Center (HOC) was "not what it used
to be and he rarely makes his goal to attend 4
times per week."

A review of the ISP dated 8/41/14 reveals the
following outcome: "[Client #4] will work on task at
the OC [his day prograin] for 3 hours, four days |
| each week without 1:1 staffing." Further review of l
' the IPP, under a separate heading listed as . '|
“Barriers," the IPP reveals "[Client #4]'s - '
|
|

non-compliance and attention to task could be a
barrier to progress in this area." Final review of

the |PP reveals Client #4 was to attend the OC at
least 16 times in a month. |

I A review of the- daily notes for the-month-of-June,
2015 reveals Client #4 did not meet the outcome *
of working on task at the OC for 3 hours, four
days each week at any time during the month of
June.

[CMR] for the month of May, 2015 reveals Client
#4 met this goal only 2 times out of 6. Final
review of the CMR for the month of April, 2015
reveals Client #4 only met this goal 5 times out
16.

I

A review of the "Confidential Monthly Review" |
|

F

Areview of the ISP dated 8/11/14 reveals the
following outcome: "[Client #4] will increase his
independent living skills in the kitchen by setting |
the oven temperature for his recipe
independently.” Further review of the IPP, under a

separate heading listed as "Barriers," revealed
[Client #4]'s non-compliance and attention to task -
could be a barrier to progress in this area." Final
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/| review of the IPP reveals Client #4 was to work
1 on this outcome at least 12 times in a month.

A review of the daily-notes for the month of June,
2015 reveals Client #4 did not meet this outcome
 to increase his independent living skills in the

. kitchen by setting the oven temperature.

|

. {

A review of the CMR for May, 2015 reveals Client | !
#4 did not meet this outcome for the month.

During a conference call interview with the
Quallified Intellectual Disabilities Professional
(QIDP) in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15
| at 10:45 am, the QIDP confirmed non-compliance |
I was a "significant barrier to achieving active

: treatment and the circle of support (COS) needed

to address it." Additional interview with the QIDP

| confirmed the "facility practice of engaging
[Client #4] only in preferred activity does not lead i
1to self-sufficiency and teach any skillful things to |, i
[Client #4]." - !

| 3. A obsérvation in the home on 7/6/15 at 4.01 |
pm revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom | 3
with the .covers drawn over his head. Continued i
observation in the home revealed dinner was | )
served at 5:16 pm but Client #4 remalned:in his }

‘bedroom and did not come to the fable to eat.
“Further observation in the home from 4:02 pm 1
until 8:37 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his !
‘bedroom lying in his bed asleep. 3 j
; !

"An observation in the home on 7/7/15 at 7:05 am
| revealed Client #4 was asleep in his bedroom

with the covers drawn over his head. Continued | |
observation in the home revealed breakfast was |
served at 8:08 am but Client #4 remained in his |
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bedroom and did not come to the table to eat.
Further:observation in the home from 7:06 am
until 12:17 pm revealed Client #4 remained in his

bedroom lying in his bed asleep.

During an interview with DSP #4 in the living
room of the home on 7/7/15 at 8:52 am, DSP #4
confirmed "we do not like to push him to provoke
| him to have a behavior since he has been doing
much better with just letting him do what he wants
to do for the day." Final interview with DSP #4
confirmed Client #5 primarily wants to "be on his
computer and watch his movies."

| A review of the ISP dated 4/10/15 reveals the

| following outcome: “[Client #5] will engage in an
activity outside of his room, in the common areas
of the house, for three minutes. Further review of

R the'|IPP-under a-separate hieading listed as—- ¢ S G B o e B S
"Barriars," the IPP reveals "[Client #5] prefers to |
be in his room." Final review of the IPP reveals
Client #5 was to work on this outcome at least 30
times in a month.

A review of the dally notes for the month of June, |
. 2015 reveals Client #4 did not meet this outcome

! to engage in an activity outside of his room, in the |
common areas of the house, for three minutes at |
any time during the month.

' Areview of the CMR for the month of May, 2015
reveals Client #5 did not meet this outcome for
:the month. Final review of the CMR for the month
of April, 2015 also reveals Client #5 did not meet
this outcome during the month.

|
A review of the ISP dated 4/10/15also reveals the
following outcome: "[Client #5] will assist with
picking up his groceries every other week by
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| helping to put the groceries in the van." Further

review of the IPP, under a separate heading listed
as "Barrlers," the IPP reveals "[Client #5] has
strong preferences and may fixate:on doing a
preferred activity rather than pick up groceries."
Final review of the IPP reveals Client #5 was to
work on this outcome at least two (2) times in a
month.

' 2015 also reveals Client #5 did not meet this

A review of the daily notes for the. month of June,
2015 reveals Client #5 did not meet this outcome °
to pick up his groceries by helping to put the

groceries in the van at any time dufing the- month. 1

A review of the CMR for the month of May, 2015 :
| reveals Client #5 did not meet this outcome to

« pick up his groceries by helping to put the
groceries in the van at any time during the month. |
Final review of the CMR for the month of April,

outcome for the month.

| Areview of the ISP dated 4/10/15 also reveals the |

i following outcome: "[Client #5] will increase his

i review of:the IPP under a separate heading listed

. as Barriers," the PP reveals "[Client #5] often

| lacks interest in household/domestic activities,

| His attention to non-preferred tasks may be
barrier to this outcome." Final review of the IPP
reveals Cllent #5 was to work on this outcome at '
least four (4) times in a month,

I A review of the daily notes for the month of June,
2015 reveals Client:#5 did not meet this outcome
ta increase his independence with doing his
laundry at any time during the month.

‘ A review of the CMR for the month of May, 2015

l

|
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reveals Client #5 did not meet this outcome to
increase his independence with doing his laundry
in the month. Final review of the CMR for the
month of April, 2015 also reveals Client #5 did not
meet this outcome during the month.

During a conference call interview with the QIbP
in the board room of the facility on 7/8/15 at 10:45
am, the QIDP confirmed there is no "COS on
horizon to address [Client #5]'s routine he is
determining and we have to change." Further
interview with the QIDP confirmed "everything we
do is non-productive and we avoid all
non-preferred activities because it his choice."
Further interview with the QIDP confirmed there
were "boundaries on choices and
non-compliance and non-participation." Final
additional interview with the QIDP corifirmed the
—facility "practice of engaging [Client#5] only in—— -

preferred activity does not lead to self-sufficiency
and teach any skillful things to [Client #5]."

W 312 483.450(e)(2) DRUG USAGE

Drugs used for control of inappropriate behavior
must be used only as an integral part of the
client's individual program plan that is directed
specifically towards the reduction of and eventual
elimination of the behaviors for which the drugs
are employed.

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
Based on record review and interview, the facility
failed to ensure there was no use of drugs for
behavior management on an as needed (PRN)
basis for 3 of 3 unsampled clients (Client #4, #5
and #6).
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Corrective Action: As needed medications
for Clients #4, #5, and #6 were reviewed

-and discontinued by the physician,
Medical/behavioral protocols for each |
individual were discontinued. Psychotropic
medications were reviewed and adjusted as
needed.

Identification: The ICF Director, ICF |
Charge Nurse, and Director of Nursing met
to review the practice and found that other
individuats in the home were not at risk for
this practice.

Preventative Mcasures: A new protocol
for medications effecting behavior was

. deyeloped and implemented. Medications
for behavior were reviewed for each
individual in the home,

- E
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- o ) nurses on the protocol. The ICF Director
The findings included:; trained ICF Administration on the protocol.

. The ICF Charge Nurse, Assistant Program

i | Manager (Case Management) and supervisor
1. Areview of Client #4's "MEDICAL BEHAVIOR ] will review the eMAR monthly:
PROTOCOL," revised 10/20/14, revealed staff
was to first follow the Behavior Support Plan for
behaviors. The protocal listed signs and
symptoms of agitation that might escalate into a
1 behavior and instructed staff to call the

| supervisor/stiift leader on call if the ‘behaviors

| appeared:to be escalating to a point of "imminent |
| risk of danger to self or others." Continued
review revealed the supervisor would determine if
the PRN protocol was needed and would direct

| staff to call the nurse on call for authorization | |
| administration of 20 milligrams (mg) of Geodon |
| by injection (per protocol). Further review
revealed 20 mg of Geodon could be administered
‘every 10 hours not to exceed 2 doses in a 24
'hour period.

A review of a facility "Current Medication List" for
Client #4, dated 7/7/15, revealed the following

PRN medication: Geodon 20 mg by injection .
 every 10 hours for:severe béehaviors per protocol. !

| During an interview with the: Behavior Therapist
(BT) in the home's office, on 7/7/15 at 6:45 pm,
+the BT confirmed psychotropic medication for
-altering behavior is administered to Client#4 on a
PRN basis.

2. A review of Client #5's "MEDICAL BEHAVIOR
PROTOCOL," revised 10/28/14, revealed staff
was to follow the client's Behavior Maintenance |
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W 312 | Continued From page 34 W 312

Plan (BMP) for deescalating behaviors. If

| behaviors cantinued or showed "signs of

escalating into a severe behavior," staff was to
contact the on call supeivisor who would
determine if the nurse on:call should be contacted
to authorize administration of PRN Atarax by
injection. ‘Continued review revealed oral Atarax
could bé administerad, with authorization, if the

 "AGITATION IS AT THE LEVEL THAT AN
INJECTION WOULD CAUSE HARM ..."

Additional review 'reve'a_le_q_ i:pst;uctions for the
severe aggression is not eliminated within 45
minutes of the administration of the Atarax.
Further review revealed instructions for staff to
call the nurse on call for an emergency room

‘referral if severe behaviors continue after
‘administration of the Risperdal.

A review of a facility "Current Medication List" for
Client #5, dated 7/7/15, revealed the following
PRN medications: Atarax 10 mg/5 ml orally PRN
for Bipolar per protocol; Atarax 100 mg PRN by

injection for Bipolar per protocol; and, Risperdal

0.5 mg/1 ml cream transdermal every 24 hours

‘PRN for Agitation :per-protacol..

‘During an interview with the BT in the home's
office, on 7/7/15 at 6:45 pm, the BT conflrmed

psychotropic medication for altering behavior is
administered to Client #4 on a PRN basis.

'3. Areview of Ciient #6's "MEDICAL
‘BEHAVIORAL PROTOCOL FOR AGITATION,"

revised 9/10/14, revealed staff was to "cbserve

for severe aggression ..., yelling and screaming,
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W 488"

| unusual behaviors for service recipient.”

| Additional review revealed the house nurse was |
| to contact the Registered Nurse (RN) on duty for

hours for agitation.

Continued From page 35

| hitting ..., and rocking back and forth and talking
' to self in agitated voice, holding head - any

Continued review revealed staff should check

large bowel movement within 2 days, the Bowel
Movement Protocol was to be followed.

"prn psychotropic approval.” The house nurse
would then administer 1 mg of Ativan orally as
every 4 holrs as needed, limited to 4 doses in 24
hours.

bowel movement logs. If Client#6 had nothad a |

| Areview of a facility "Current Medication List" for

Client #6, dated 7/7/15, revealed the following
 PRN medication; Ativan 1 mg orally PRN every 4

During an interview with the BT in the home's
office, on 7/7/15 at 6:45 pm, the BT confirmed
| psychotropic medication for altering behavior is
|administered to Client #4 on a PRN basis.
i483.480(-d-).(:4) DINING AREAS AND SERVICE

;Th_e facility must assure that each client eats in a
manner consistent with his or her developmental
level.

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
Based on observation, record review, and
interview, the facility failed to ensure clients were
provided support, training, socialization, and
opportunities to eat meals in a manner consistent
| with their developmental levels for 3 of 3 sampled

W 312

w-488| -
1| Corrective Action: Clients #1, #2, #3, and

i BSPs.

T 8/24/15

#6 will be:;provided with support to join in
family style dining to the level of their
ability.

Clients #4 and #5 prefer to eat in their
rooms. They will be supported to assist with
food preparation and encouraged to eat with
theif peers: This will be:addressed as part
of their compliance plans through their
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clients (#1, #2, #3) and 3 of 3 un-sampled clients
j' (#41 #5| #6)' '

The findings included:

:1. An observation in the home of the dinner meal
oh 7/6/15 at 5:16 pm, revealed Client #1, #2, and
#6 seated at the table. Additional observation
ravealed Client #1, #2, and #6 received their
pre-plated meals and pre-poured drinks from
Direct Suppert Professionals (DSP). Continued
observation revealed, although there were

were provided te Client#1, #2, and #6 for their

. personal use and they were not encouraged to
use napkins during the meal. Continued
observation also revealed Client #1, #2, and #6
were periodically using their fingers to scoop food -
-| onta theirspoons:and received no-instruction or
‘encouragement in the proper use of utensils for
I_thls need. Additional continued observation
revealed there was no instruction or

| 'encouragement to engage in conversation or
socializatlon during the dinner meal. Continued

| observation revealed there were no serving bowls
or pitchers set at the table; Further observation of |
the pre-dinner preparation, dinner meal, and the
post-dinner clean-up, revealed clients #1, #2,#6
‘did not assist with any of the meal preparation,
set the table, serve themselves, clear the table
after the meal, or wash dishes or place dishes in
a dishwasher, or clean the kitchen following the
dinner meal.

A review of the Individua!l Support Pian (ISP) for !
Client #1 dated 9/1/14 reveals “[Client #1] is
increasing his participation in household chores
| and is Independent with some tasks in the
| kitchen." Further review of the ISP reveals "[Client

napkins sitting at one part of the table, no napkins |

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES {X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA {X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION {X3) DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: COMPLETED
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s H CLEVELAND, TN 37323
‘a0 | SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES . ID \ PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION | (X5)
PREFIX | (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL ! PREFIX {EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE | COMPLETION
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1 |
Continued From page 36 W 488 Identification: Each individual in the home }

was tagged in this citation. l'
Preventative Measures: Staff will be trained
on family style dining, supporting to foster
the highest possible level of functional
independence, and table manners and
hygiene.

Maonitoring: Supervisors will observe
mealtime for family style dining at least
weekly through September and at least
monthly thereafter to ensure.implementation,
Documentation will be provided through
supervisory contacts. The Program Manager
will monitor through supervisor meetings
through September and monthly through the
review process to ensure implementation
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#1] should be encouraged to participate in
household activities and independent living skills"
 during the meal time.

| NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER

Areview of the ISP for Client #2 dated 10/31/14 '
| reveals he enjoys sweeping and helping in the | |
| kitchen. Further review of the ISP reveals Cllent | !
#2 has been working on participating In meal '
preparation,

1

1 Areview of the ISP for Client #6 dated 9/22/14

| reveals, although he has not assisted with meal

| preparation in the past, he does require modeling |
because he has difficulty using the proper

utensils and must be encouraged to "drink

periodically and control portion size."

During an Interview with DSP #1 on 7/6/15 at

| 5:52 pm, DSP #1 confirmed the dining.experierice
during the evening for Client #1, #2, and #8 was

. "pretty typical" of what happens daily during

mealtimes at the facility. 1

During a phone interview with the Qualified

Intellectual Disabilities Professional (QIDP) on .

7/8/15 at 11:11 am, the QIDP confirmed Client #1,

#2.and #6 should be using proper utensils and

| napkins during meals. Additional interview with

'the QIDP also confirmed Client#1, #2, and #6

i were to have "independent skills and teach them
so they can help themselves." The QIDP also

| confirmed there were some staff where a "shift

into mode from caretaker to trainer was needed."

2. An observation in the home of the dinner meal
on 7/6/15 at 5:16 pm revealed Client #3, #4, and
| #5 never came to the table to eat with their

_housemates, Additional observation revealed [
Client #3, #4, #5 were in their bedrooms during _
Event ID:JCMZ11 Facliity ID: TNP5387 If continuatlon sheet Page 38 of 40
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the dinner meal. Further observation from 5:16
:pm until 5:57 pm revealed Client #3, #4, and 5
‘were in their bedrooms either in their bed asleep,
watching television, or using the computer.

A review of the ISP for Client #3 dated 3/27/15
reveals Client#3 is to "follow mealtime
instructions" and assist with household activities
such as meal time preparation.

A review of the ISP for Client #4 dated 4/10/15
reveals Client #4 has a dining plan because he
“avoids using utensils while eating" and "{staff]
are to encourage him to use utensils" Further
review of the ISP reveals [Client #4][enjoys]
helping with his meal preparation and should be
encouraged to participate in these activities.

" Areviewof the ISP for Client-#5 dated 8/11/14 - |
reveals Client #5 was to "[assist] with meal [ .
preparation.”

During an Interview with DSP #1 on 7/6/15 at

5:52 pm, DSP #1 confirmed Client #4 and #5
"choose to not come to the table." Further
interview confirmed Client #6 will come fo the
table "if he feels like it." Final interview with DSP
#1 confirmed the dining experience was "pretty
typical" of what happens dally during mealtimes at
the facility.

During a phone interview with the QIDP on 7/8/15,
at 10:55 am, the QIDP confirmed they were in a
transition stage for their new role at the facility
since starting in early May, 2015. The QIDP
further confirmed they had not had time to i
| observe the routine in the home to adequately .
assess Client #2, #4, and #5's involvement In |
| meal preparation, and the support, training, and |
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PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHARUI30 am

Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision date, as published in T.C.A. § 68-11-1609(c): 7/27/16

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final agency action on that date; indicate the number of days

from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

1.

Phase

Architectural and engineering contract signed

DAYS
UIRED (MONTH/YEAR)

Anticipated Date

2. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee
_ Department of Health 60 9/2016

3. Construction contract signed

4. Building permit secured

5. Site preparation completed

6. Building construction commenced 680 9/2016

7. Construction 40% complete 90 10/2016

8. Construction 80% complete 120 11/2016

9. Construction 100% complete (approved for occupancy 150 12/2016
10. *Issuance of license 180 1/2017
11. *Initiation of service 180 1/2017
12. Final Architectural Certification of Payment 180 1/2017
13. Final Project Report Form (HF0055) 210 2/12017

* For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation: Please complete items

10 and 11 only.

Note:

If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final

determination to reflect the actual issue date.
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF Bradley

NAME OF FACILITY: __Life Bridges, Inc.

I, iD .\O/YLOL JOLC Kso [\ ., after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |

have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true,

accurate, and complete.

Keaaa b Ce

Signature/Titl

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the Qi day of AM%* 20 _llg

witness my hand at office in the County of '_P)ra Qu,w\ , State of Tennessee.
1/
OTARY P, IC
My commission expires O -24 _, 2017 .
HF-0043 e

Revised 7/02
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though it is already owned by Life Bridges, Inc. This move will not affect the per diem rates for
the individuals served at Cate House.

Service Area — The intended service area of this home will be Bradley County and the
surrounding counties in Tennessee, specifically Hamilton, McMinn, Meigs, Monroe, Polk, and
Rhea.

Need — The six men who live at Cate House need the privacy provided by having their own
bedroom. Their behavioral needs would be more effectively met in a home with space to retreat
to when they feel anxious and/or agitated. Lockhart House will provide both communal living
spaces and the privacy of a bedroom for those moments. Behavioral issues often stem from
having to wait on the restroom as six men currently share two restrooms. Lockhart House has
four restrooms. The nurses have limited space for medications and preparation at Cate House.
Lockhart House provides ample space for medication storage, preparation, and administration.
Lockhart House is located in a neighborhood on the edge of a Cleveland State Community
College. The college campus is beautiful with abounding sidewalks that would be appropriate for
enjoyable walking paths. The close proximity of the campus provides increased access to
concerts and sporting events.

Existing Resources — Bradley Cleveland Property Management already owns Lockhart House
thus limiting the cost of the move to renovation and moving expenses.

Project Cost - $622,065
Funding — Life Bridges will fund the project from the cash operating account.
Financial Feasibility — The financial feasibility of this project is excellent.

Staffing — The staffing needs of the individuals who wish to relocate to Lockhart House are
determined by the Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) and are outlined in both CMS guidelines and the
comprehensive care plan developed by the Qualified Intellectual Disability Professionals. The
relocation is not anticipated to change the staffing needs of the home. Thus there would be no
additional staffing expense. Staffing will continue to meet CMS, CARF, and licensure
expectations.
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II. Provide a detailed narrative of the project by addressing the following items as they
relate to the proposal.

A. Describe the construction, modification and/or renovation of the facility (exclusive of
major medical equipment covered by T.C.A. §68-11-1601 ET SEQ.) Including square
footage, major operational areas, room configuration, etc. applicants with hospital projects
(construction cost in excess of $5 million) and other facility projects (construction cost in
excess of $2 million) should complete the Square Footage and Cost per Square Footage
Chart. Utilizing the attached Chart, applicants with hospital projects should complete
Parts A.-E. by identifying as applicable nursing units, ancillary areas, and support areas
affected by this project. Provide the location of the unit/service within the existing facility
along with current square footage, where, if any, the unit/service will relocate temporarily
during construction and renovation, and then the location of the unit/service with proposed
square footage. The total cost per square foot would provide a breakout between new
construction and renovation cost per square foot. Other facility projects need only
complete parts B.-E. Please also discuss and justify the cost per square foot for this project.

If the project involves none of the above, describe the development of the proposal.

This project is intended to relocate six individuals served in an ICF/IID home (2,400 square feet)
to a larger location (4,916 square feet) which will be better suited to their needs. Renovation of
the new home (Lockhart House) will involve installing a fire sprinkler system throughout the
facility meeting all State and local fire codes (estimated cost $72,113.00). The existing fire panel
will be upgraded to accommodate existing smoke detectors (estimated cost $1,000.00), any
supervisory alarms related to the sprinkler system and notification of local fire authorities.
Electrical upgrades (estimated cost $900.00) will be completed as necessary to accommodate the
new fire systems and to the riser room for heat to protect from freezing. Earth disturbed for
trenching the riser area will be reshaped and seeded. Miscellaneous costs are estimated at 10% or
$7,401.00. Adaptations for handicap accessibility are estimated at $32,650. This leaves a total
estimated renovation cost of $114,065 which is $21.38 per square foot. The total project is
valued at $622,065 which includes the value of the home.
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PROJECT COSTS CHART

Construction and equipment acquired by purchase:

1.
2.

© ® N oo~ w

Architectural and Engineering Fees

Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee),
Consultant Fees

Acquisition of Site

Preparation of Site

Construction Costs

Contingency Fund

Fixed Equipment (Not included in Construction Contract)
Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000)

Ungispt efreNTAL #1

May 27, 2016
10:30 am

$114,065

Other (Specify)

Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:

1.

S

Facility (inclusive of building and land)
Building only

Land only
Equipment (Specify)
Other (Specify)

Financing Costs and Fees:

1.

2.
3.
4.

Interim Financing

Underwriting Costs

Reserve for One Year's Debt Service
Other (Specify)

$505,000

Estimated Project Cost
(A+B+C)

CON Filing Fee
Total Estimated Project Cost
(D+E)

TOTAL

$619.065

3,000

$622,065
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3. Discuss and document the reasonableness of the proposed project costs. If applicable,
compare the cost per square foot of construction to similar projects recently approved by
the Health Services and Development Agency.

The proposed cost of this project is $622,065. The majority of the projected cost is an upgrade to
the existing fire suppression system, handicap accessibility and moving cost. The property and
building are currently owned by Life Bridges eliminating the cost of purchasing property and
new construction. A project comparable in cost in which property and building are not currently
owned would increase the expense by $505,000.
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Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision date, as published in T.C.A. § 68-11-1609(c): 7/27/16

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final agency action on that date; indicate the number of days

from the above agency decision date to cach phase of the completion forecast.

Phase

Architectural and engineering contract signed

2. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee
Department of Health
3. Construction contract signed
4, Building permit secured
5. Site preparation completed
6. Building construction commenced
7. Construction 40% complete
8. Construction 80% complete
9, Construction 100% complete (approved for occupancy
10.  *Issuance of license
11. *Initiation of service
12. Final Architectural Certification of Payment
13.  Final Project Report Form (HF0055)

Anticipated Date

DAYS
REQUIRED (MONTH/YEAR)
. 9/2016 _
60 9/2016
90 10/2016
120 _11/2016
1580 12/2016
_ 180 1/2017
180 1/2017
180 /2047
210 2/2017

For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation: Please complete items

10 and 11 only.

Note: If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final

determination to reflect the actual issue date.
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Bﬁpf%\és Life Brideoes Inc10=3o am
Serving People with Intellectual 1 g 9 ¢

Disabilties since 1973 P.O. Box 29 * 764 Old Chattanooga Pike SW

Cleveland, TN 37364-0029 * (423) 472-5268 * Fax (423) 479-1492

May 25, 2016

State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, ot Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

RE: Economic Feasibility — Type of Funding

To whom it may concern:

Life Bridges, Inc. will be financing the project costs from our cash operating account to convert a group
home to an ICF home. The estimated project costs are approximately $114,065.

Sincerely,

Qoin cxo

Ginger Davis
CFO
Life Bridges, Inc.

CARF Accredited Rehabilitation Center Since 1994
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Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility or

agency. The fiscal year begins in ¢ 555‘ (Month).

A.
B.

Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure) ’2‘\‘ROB
Revenue from Services to Patients
1. Inpatient Services

Outpatient Services

2.
3. Emergency Services
4. Other Operating Revenue, '«

(Specify)

AT

Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments
2. Provision for Charity Care yexpnsa reinbursed by
3. Provisions for Bad Debt Gtream

Total Dedyctions $__ (5

NET OPERATING REVENUE

D.

QOperating Expenses

Salaries and Wages [ (0 nei)e, ;
Physician’s Salaries and Wages '

Supplies
Taxes
Depreciation
Rent

N O RAON

Interest, other than CapitalCN

8. Other Expenses (Specify)
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- Gross Operating Revenue $\ 10 424
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E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net (Specify)
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

F. Capital Expenditures

1. Retirement of Principal

2. Interest (_\\or

\t}?;faﬁ;ﬁr%?iﬁnéﬁ-gxmpeﬁ\scgé $1 N2, 8

Total Capital Expenditurés $ §Z§

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART - OTHER EXPENSES Ll
FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
Bed Tax $ 58,029 $ 60,961 $ 64,380
Maint $ 9082 S 7,192 $ 8,086
Comm $ 7503 $ 6482 $ 7,167
WC $ 15714 $ 19,801 $ 20403
Utilities ¢ 9588 S 8424 $ 9734
Food $ 19914 $ 25741 $ 22337
Insurance S 13,742 S 12,633 S 12,781
Prof Exp S 27,553 S 21,313 S 16,695
Trans Exp S 23,602 S 19,414 S 11,274
Travel $ 1,292 $ 2,426 $ 2,191
Misc $ 5947 $ 6,363 $ 4861
TOTALS $ 191,966 $ 190,750 $ 179,909

*Misc - Memberships, Advertising, Rental Expense

531 L
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PROJECTED DATA CHART

Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year

begins in ®\>' (Month). w N
(2. ‘C\OB Year 2O\ T Year &
A. Ultilization Data (Specify unit of measure)d 2\80 Z; \ SO

B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services $ $

Outpatient Services

2
3. Emergency Services
4

Other Operating Revenue (Spec:fy)M L22s080Aa | 232843

Gross Operating Revenue $ \._'L’L‘E)‘QQQ $ \,.'2,5'2_,QQ7_~,

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments $ $
2. Provision for Chariiy Care
3. Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions $__ @& $_ @
NET OPERATING REVENUE $1, 200 $ BG5S
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries and Wages [ L))Qx\e%% $_ &b, &S $.G0\ 24%
2. Physician’s Salaries and Wages
3. Supplies : 79 (A 33 Y
4. Taxes
5. Depreciation 72%.00 20,1
6. Rent -
7. Interest, other than Capital .
8. Other Expenses (Speci ) 2N, (0R &\ 000
\&Q:;\évm%%w( ,p%f{llnotal Operatln;?\\i?b‘éﬁhscé%} $1\A\L a4\ $\\SS BA
Q. €NC . ' .
E. Other Revenue (Expen_ses) -- Net (Specify) $ $
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) A 553 $ I \2.4
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ $
2. Interest
Total Capital Expenditures $ %) $ @
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $m§§3 $ 11\ Zﬂ
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PROJECTED DATA CHART - OTHER EXPENSES 10:30 am
FY2017 FY2018
Bed Tax $ 67,430 $ 67,815
Maint $ 8257 $ 8464
Comm S 7,685 S 7,877
WC $ 21,749 $ 22,293
Utilities $ 9941 $ 10,190
Food $ 22,583 $ 23148
Insurance S 12,976 S 13,301
Prof Exp S 17,248 S 17,680
Trans Exp S 11,746 S 12,040
Travel $ 2,287 $ 2,344
Misc $ 5,706 $ 5849
TOTALS $ 187,608 $ 191,000

*Misc - Memberships, Advertising, Rental Expense

<y R



Supplemental #2
-0Original-

Life Bridges, Inc

CN1605-017
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4:00 pm

State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency

Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN
37243

www.tn.govihsda Phone: 6156-741-2364/Fax.615/632-9940
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May 31, 2016

Diana Jackson, CEQ

Life Bridges, Inc.

764 Old Chattanooga Pike
Cleveland, TN 37311

RE: Certificate of Need Application CN1605-017
Life Bridges, Inc.

Pear Ms. Jackson:

This will acknowledge our May 27, 2016 receipt of your supplemental response for an
application for a Certificate of Need for the relocation of a 6 licensed bed ICF/IID home from
2601 Bower Lane, Cleveland (Bradley County), TN to 3745 Adkisson Drive, Cleveland
(Bradley County), TN,

Several items were found which need clarification or additional discussion. Please review the
list of questions below and address them as indicated. The questions have been keyed to the
application form for your convenience. I should emphasize that an application cannot be
deemed complete and the review cycle begun until all questions have been answered and

furpished to this office.

Please submit responses in {riplicate by 12:00 noon, Tuesday May 31, 2016. If the
supplemental information requested in this letter is not submitted by or before this time, then
consideration of this application may be delayed into a later review cycle.

—me —_— ——— = . —_—— e

1. Section C, Economic Feasibility, Item 5

Your response is noted. Please verify the following table identifying the project’s gross
charge, average deduction from operating revenue, and average net charge per patient
day. The applicant should divide the total patient days in Year One of the Projected Data
Chart into the total gross charges, deductions from operating revenue total, and total net
charges to calculate the charges.

L o Year One Year Two i
Average Gross Charge $1,225,994/2.190=3559.8 | $1,232,993/2190=8563 .0
{Gross charges/total days) | 1 [ 1 o

Average Deduction G ’ 0

(Total Deductions/total

days) S R ]
Average net Charge Total | $1,225,994/2,190=8559.8 | $1,232,993/2190=$563.0
Net Operating i 1

Revenue/total days) i
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2. Section C. (Need) Item 4 (Population Demographics)

Your response to this item is noted. Using population data from the Department of
Health (https://www tn gov/health/article/statistics-con), enrollee data from the Bureau of
TennCare, and demographic information from the US Census Bureau, please complete the
following table and include data for each county in your proposed service area,

Variable

¥ S S = 3 o B @ ~
g ¥ g g < 2
= I
Current Year (CY), 17,879 61,073 11,089 | 2,677 | 9,325 3,680 6,389 112,312 1,012,937
Age6S+ | N I
Praojected Year (PY), 28,381 69,752 12,656 | 3,151 10,680 | 4,134 7,571 128,319 1,134,565
Age 65+
Age 65+, % Change | 14.0% | 14.2% | 14.1% | 17.7% | 14.5% | 12.3% |14.9% |143% | 12.0%
Age 65+, % Total (PY) | 16.9% | 17.1% | 20.4% | 21.9% |20.0% |21.1% |19.4% |19.8% | 15.2%
CY, Total Pnpumtwn 105,549 | 356,156 | 54,449 | 12,221 | 46,563 | 17,442 | 33,934 | 626,314 6,649,438
PY, Total Population | 109,706 | 368,666 | 55,724 | 12,462 | 48,648 | 17,812 | 35,216 | 648,234 | 6,894,997
Total Pop. % Change | 3.5 3.5%  |123% 20% |45% |21% 3.8% 135% 13.7%
TennCare Enrollees | 20,321 (61,399 | 11,276 | 2,907 | 10,881 | 3,784 | 8,490 | 119,052 | 1,331,838
TennCare Enrollees as | 19.3% 17.2% 20.7% | 23,8% |234% |21.7% |250% |19.% 20.0%
a % of Total
Population - o )
Median Age 38 139 42 |43 |2 | 40 |41 38 }
Median Household $41,083 | $46,702 | §39,4F | §25,15 | 837,59 | 839,07 | 836,74 | 337,965 44,298
Incomie = . = 0 0 5 4 L : R
Poputation % Below 19.6% 16.8% 18.0% |209% |19.6% | 16.4% |22.5% |19.11% 17.6%
PovertyLevel | | - - |

3. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) 6.a and 6.b

The Current per diem rate of $585.77 is noted. However, please provide the proposed
per diem rate as reflected in the Projected Data Chart. Please verify the Per Diem charge

for 2017 is $559.81 ($1,225,994/2,190 days) and the per diem charge for 2018 is $563.01
($1,232,993/2,190 days).

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated, §68-11-1607(c) (5), ".If an
application is not deemed complete within sixty (60) days after written notification
is given to the applicant by the agency staff that the application is deemed
incomplete, the application shall be deemed void.” Tor this application, the
sixtieth {60") day after written Notification is Tuesday, July 12, 2016, If this
application is not deemed complete by this date, the appémauma will be deemed
void. Agency Rule 0720-10-.03(4) (d) (2) indicates that "Failure of the applicant to
meet this deadline will result in the application being considered withdrawn and
returned to the contact person.  Resubmittal of the application must be
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accomplished in accordance with Rule 0720-10-.03 and requires an additional filing
fee." Please note that supplemental information must be submitted timely for the
application to be deemed complete prior to the beginning date of the review cycle
which the applicant intends to enter, even if that time is less than the sixty (60) days
allowed by the statute. The supplemental information must be submitted with the
enclosed affidavit, which shall be executed and notarized; please attach the
notarized affidavit to the supplemental information,

If all supplemental information is not received and the application officially deemed
complete prior to the beginning of the next review cycle, then consideration of the
application could be delayed into a later review cycle. The review cycle for each
application shall begin on the first day of the month after the application has been
deemed complete by the staff of the Health Services and Development Agency.

Any communication regarding projects under consideration by the Health Services
and Development Agency shall be in accordance with T.C.A. » 68-11-1607(d):

(1) No communications are permitied with the members of the agency once the
Letter of Intent initiating the application process is filed with the agency.
Communications between agency members and agency staff shall not be
prohibited. Any communication received by an agency member from a
person unrelated to the applicant or party opposing the application shall be
reported to the Executive Director and a written summary of such
communication shall be made part of the certificate of need file.

(2) All communications between the contact person or legal counsel for the
applicant and the Executive Director or agency staff after an application is
deemed complete and placed in the review cycle are prohibited unless
submitted in writing or confirmed in writing and made part of the
certificate of need application file. Communications for the purposes of
clarification of facts and issues that may arise after an application has been
deemed complete and initiated by the Executive Director or agency staff
are not prohibited.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not
hesitate to contact this office.

Sincerely,

Phillip M. Farhart
Health Services Development Examiner
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AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF [Dvaidle f
' ) :
NAME OF FACILITY: | Lils I L(L__.l‘,_--«,! L

I, Diana \5 aclsor , after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |
have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true,

accurate, and complete.

@xmw ' \«r’l(;’f"am«’ Ce¢o
Signature/Title//

4 .
Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the 31° day of _MMay 201\,
. State of Tennessee.

witness my hand at office in the County of “Bradle Y

( O NS '\'—.J (‘_c\_[-..q_
NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires ég_lj e , 2o\ s
Sywenne ‘z‘f

HF-0043 :-3 e mfé
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